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Chairman DeKrey: We will open the hearing on HB 1038. 

Vonette Richter, Legislative Council: Neutral, explained HB 1038 (see attached). This bill 
is the product of the Interim Judiciary Committee. That committee was assigned the 
responsibility to review and study the feasibility and desirability of implementing the Uniform 
Debt Management Services Act, which was one of the recommendations of the Uniform 
Laws Commission. The committee reviewed this bill and they worked closely with the 
Dept. of Financial Institutions and Parrell Grossman, Consumer Protection and Antitrust 
Division, in the office of the Attorney General. Those two agencies took that Uniform Act 
and reviewed it; they came back to the committee with a recommendation that there were 
portions of that bill that they weren't comfortable with since other states were having issues 
with the Act. They prepared a bill draft using portions of that Uniform Act as well as 
implementing current law and I believe that they adopted into that bill draft, some legislation 
that was enacted in Illinois. That compilation of sources is what became the bill draft you 
have in front of you. The bill draft would create a new chapter to Title 13, it would become 
13.11. That chapter begins in section 2 of the bill; actually section 2 is the remainder of 
that bill, creates a new chapter. The handout I gave you is the excerpt from the final report 
of the Judiciary Committee with all the background, and analysis of the testimony and 
committee considerations, as well as their review of the bill that you have in front of you. I 
will briefly go through the bill. This language was not drafted by Legislative Council. When 
I refer to a section of the bill, I am referring to the sections of this new chapter that were 
created. For example, on line 15 on the first page, it's 13.11.01, that's the new section one 
in that chapter. So I will refer to them by those sections and will try to point out the page 
numbers at the same time. Beginning with the first 3 or 4 pages, we have the definitions 
that would apply to this new chapter. A couple of definitions that are especially relevant to 
this bill is the definition on page 2, line 25 is the definition of Commissioner, that's the 
Commissioner of the Dept. of Financial Institutions, and that would be the agency that 
would be in charge of the regulation, licensing, and enforcement of the whole debt 
settlement provider process. On page 3, line 5, the definition that is subsection 6 is the 
definition of a debt settlement provider. As you can see, it means any person engaging in 
or holding it out as engaging in the business of providing debt settlement services in 
exchange for a fee or compensation. The subdivisions (e) through (h) which continue on 
the next page are those entities or professions that would be exempted from this act. The 
definition on page 4, line 4, which is the definition of debt settlement service, which defines 
what these services are that debt settlement providers provide; again there are exclusions 
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beginning on line 19 of those activities that do not fall under the definition of debt settlement 
service. Continuing on past the definitions, section 2 provides that it's unlawful for a debt 
settlement provider to do business in this state without a license. This is an important 
difference from the Uniform Act. I understand that they require a registration. This would 
be part of the licensing process. It also provides that debt settlement providers are deemed 
to be able to do business in the state, if the debtor resides in the state. The next sections 
3, 4 and 5, which are pages 6 and 7, are the application process that this provider would 
have to go through to become licensed in ND, as well as the fees that they would have to 
pay for licensure and any bond requirements, the qualifications for the provider. The next 
three sections, 6, 7 and 8, which are essentially pages 7 and 8 of the bill, provides for the 
renewal of a license and any licensing reporting requirements. Sections 9, 10 and 11 of the 
bill provides for the authorization of the Commissioner to revoke, suspend or call for the 
surrender of the license, based on various violations. Section 12, which is in the middle of 
page 10, provides for the restrictions on advertising and marketing practices that the debt 
settlement provider can do while doing business in the states; limitations on what claims 
they can make regarding the services they can provide. Sections 13 and 14, provides for 
the contract records and trust fund requirements of the debt settlement provider. That 
takes us up to section 15 which is on page 12, in the middle; a requirement of good faith. 
The next section, customer service, requires this debt settlement provider doing business in 
the state, to maintain a toll-free communication system that is staffed during ordinary 
business hours. Section 17 requires the provider to make certain pre-sale consumer 
disclosures and warnings regarding the debt settlement process and how it might affect the 
consumer, including the verbatim language that must be provided to the consumer. As you 
can see on page 14, in all "caps" is the actual notice that must be given to a consumer, 
before they enter into a contract with a debt settlement provider. Section 19 lays out the 
elements that must be included in the contract between the two parties, on pages 15, 16 
and almost down to the bottom of page 17 are the contract requirements. Section 20 
provides for the consumer's rights to cancel the contract and the fees that consumers are 
entitled to have returned to him/her upon cancellation. It provides for the fees that can be 
retained based upon the amount of services that have been provided up to that point, and 
provides that any refunds required under that section must be made within 7 days after the 
notice of cancellation. Section 21 establishes the fees that a provider may charge the 
consumer, provides a maximum upfront fee of $100 and that a settlement fee may not 
exceed 15% of the savings. Section 23 gets into the penalties and prohibited acts and 
practices that would result in penalties for the provider. Sections 26 and 27, on the bottom 
of page 22, are the powers of the Commissioner in enforcing this act, their powers of 
investigation, serving cease and desist orders upon the company, the provider. The 
authority to suspend, deny, revoke, or condition any renewal of licensure. Section 27, 
which begins on line 25, on page 23, provides for the criminal penalties for violations of the 
chapter. If you will notice on page 24, line 5, subsection 3 authorizes the attorney general 
to also enforce the chapter; so both the commissioner and the attorney general would have 
enforcement authority under this bill. Section 28, line 11 provides for voidable contracts, 
the conditions under which a contract would become voidable and then the last section 
creates a private cause of action against the provider. That is a very brief overview of a 
very complicated bill. 

Rep. Boehning: On page 23, lines 26-28, I know in administrative rules this last interim we 
were talking about fines and charging people with misdemeanors, felonies, etc. Is this 
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commission going to be able to charge these people with a class C felonies, is the court 
going to do it, or how is this going to be handled. Are we going to have a commission with 
one person, who would be able to charge the provider with the class C felony? 

Vonette Richter: The attorney general has the power to do it as well as the commission. 

Rep. Koppelman: I'm not sure if this relates to Rep. Boehning's question or not, but I think 
what he's driving at is the administrative rules committee had some concern and I think 
others in the legislature as well, about criminal penalties being assessed by rule, and I think 
it refers specifically to rule in the bill. 

Vonette Richter: That's a good point. Maybe that would have to be an amendment that 
would have to be made that it couldn't be based on a rule. 

Rep. Koppelman: I think this department, in particular, there's been a lot of discussion on 
the administrative rules committee in recent years, particularly about the fact that that office 
was creating policies that they treated as rules, and they were enforcing them as rules and 
of course, if they're not adopted as administrative rules, they don't carry the force and effect 
of law; so there was a lot of controversy - they were adopting rules at their national 
association. I think it advised and just enforced them as if they were part of the 
administrative code. So that would come into play, particularly with this agency as well. 

Rep. Klemin: In response to Rep. Koppelman's question, I wasn't present at all the 
administrative rules committee meetings, but I think what you are really talking about is the 
securities commissioner, and not the Dept of Financial Institutions. 

Rep. Koppelman: Okay. 

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Testimony in support of HB 1038. 

Parrell Grossman, Director, Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division, Office of Attorney 
General: (see attached testimony and exhibits). To add clarification to Rep. Boehning's 
question to Vonette Richter, I believe in this particular instance, if the Commissioner 
thought a rule or probably more likely a statute was violated, they would make a report to 
the local law enforcement , police department or sheriff, or the Bureau of Criminal 
Investigations, etc. The matter would be investigated and if a violation was determined to 
be found, it would be forwarded to a state's attorney for review, and the state's attorney 
would make a decision at that particular time on whether to prosecute or not. The reason I 
say "more likely" a statute than a rule, I think Rep. Koppelman raises the point about what 
would be the force of the rule, and technically under this language, yes, if it was a rule that 
was properly implemented by the Dept of Financial Institutions and approved through the 
legislative process, and the Dept of Financial Institutions felt strongly enough, I suppose 
they could refer that for investigation and possible prosecution. I simply see that as 
something that would be reserved. More likely, for a serious violation of this statute, we all 
know that state's attorneys have significant priorities with other types of cases and probably 
wouldn't act on something like this absent a very compelling case involving substantial loss 
to consumers. That is kind of my best guess. I hope that provides some clarification on 
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that particular point. I appear in support of this bill (went into testimony) (went through the 
suggested amendments). 

Rep. Delmore: Have you ever worked with a TASC you eluded to, I think most of this 
committee got their printout that they sent. I went through some of it this morning. They 
seem to represent a lot of companies; have you dealt with the TASC or with specific 
companies under their prevue. What is some of the background/history? 

Parrell Grossman: I have not specifically dealt with that entity, they reached out to us and 
wanted to have a discussion with Commissioner Entringer and the Attorney General's 
office. I believe we are going to have a meeting on Friday, January 7, 2011, and almost 
immediately after they made that call, they submitted their comments. I have some 
understanding of what they do through my experiences with the National Association of 
Attorneys General working with my colleagues throughout the country. They are really a 
trade association of debt settlement entities and their job is to put the best possible face or 
spin on debt settlement services. I am certain that they probably do have legitimate 
members who provide some legitimate debt settlement services. However, again, I ask 
you to bear in mind that the information provided in the GAO report suggests that these 
members aren't adhering. There are no real enforcement mechanisms. I suppose that 
they could dismiss you as a member. So as that trade association, I think they probably 
present it themselves to other attorneys general and this state attorney general, that they 
can resolve issues through self-regulation. They adopt these strict standards that their 
members adhere to and that we don't really need this legislation. I think is probably the jist 
of what their proposal is. Obviously, they don't like the ban on up-front fees. They would 
rather continue to be able to collect those fees and in that regard, we would remind you of 
the experiences of ND consumers, and consumers throughout the country, as very well 
detailed in that GOA report, suggests that consumer after consumer pays thousands of 
dollars, never gets any debt settlement services, never gets their money back. I don't have 
an intimate knowledge of that particular organization and we're happy to discuss it with 
them, but I expect that they would like ND to adopt the model rule. 

Rep. Klemin: I have a couple of questions. One, as I understand it, the for-profit debt 
settlement providers are not currently regulated under ND law, it's only the non-profit 
counseling services, is that correct. 

Parrell Grossman: I believe that is probably correct. The reason I say "probably" is 
because I think the definition of debt adjusting could be more clearly worded. I think they 
are probably regulated under the criminal statute in 13.06, but not regulated to the extent 
that there is any control or authority over the amount of fees or exactly what they do. I think 
they fall under that statute, if they are a for-profit and they can't do it; if they are a non­
profit, then they could operate under 13.06. 

Rep. Klemin: So what this bill would do then would be to allow those companies to actually 
do business legitimately in ND, provided they are licensed and follow the provisions of the 
statute that this would enact. 

Parrell Grossman: That is correct. This bill does present an opportunity for for-profits to 
engage in debt settlement services in this state. 
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Rep. Klemin: In a service that right now appears that they are not authorized to do it in ND, 
but are doing anyway. 

Parrell Grossman: That is correct; I don't recall the exact number of settlements we have 
engaged in, but one of the assistant attorney general's, Mrs. Ellen Alm, who works in my 
division has been working in this area. I think that probably in the last two or three months 
we have banned at least 10 of these companies from doing business, and reached 
settlements providing for consumer restitution. That is correct, currently they are doing it, 
but they are doing it illegally. 

Rep. Klemin: I have heard on radio advertisements for these debt settlement companies 
that they are able to settle your credit card debt or other bills, and seen ii on TV as well. 
Those are the companies we are talking about. 

Parrell Grossman: That is correct. There just seems to be something very attractive to 
consumers with these ads. These ads are on the radio, television, and internet. They 
seem to suggest that you can simply resolve all of your financial problems by paying 
substantially less than the amount that you owe; for whatever reason, educated and 
uneducated consumers alike, seem to flock to these debt settlement companies. They plop 
down huge up-front fees, without a real understanding of what will happen. When I say 
"without a real understanding" I think they are told and they believe that, in fact, they will get 
results and it doesn't seem to be happening. 

Rep. Klemin: This bill, as I understood the reading of it, would be to prohibit those types of 
up-front fees and then to allow the debt settlement provider to be compensated based on 
actual performance. 

Parrell Grossman: That is correct, that is exactly what this bill does; bans the up-front fees 
and permits them to collect 15% of the amount saved. 

Rep. Klemin: You had mentioned that there were 33 complaints and you've been in the 
complaint business for a long time, those 33 complaints - based on your previous 
experience, so you think that there are likely other consumers out there in ND that have 
been similarly defrauded who actually haven't filed a report. 

Parrell Grossman: I believe there are many more consumers that have been defrauded by 
this. I really think it is the tip of the iceberg. Some of the individuals haven't even bothered 
to contact us, they have been referred to us through the bankruptcy court, or individuals 
who are engaged in providing consumer credit counseling services that have told 
consumers that they should contact the attorney general's office, you have been ripped off. 
You have been ripped off, you have been a victim of a scam and you should seek 
assistance. I am very confident that there are far more consumers who have been 
victimized and have contacted our office. I think, frankly, at that point they feel like they 
gave it a shot and they don't know what to do, so they turn to bankruptcy. I think many of 
them think that they might be viewed as having engaged in some sort of foolish agreement 
and are reluctant to come forward and say, "Look what has happened to me". 
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Rep. Maragos: I am having a little trouble matching up your proposed amendments here. 
Page 4, line 18, delete "or". Then replace the period with "or" and insert (3). Is that just a 
miss, that first delete "or". I don't see "or" on line 18. 

Parrell Grossman: That is intended to address the debt settlement service, means in lines 
4-18, take out the first "or" and add the second "or" after 18 and then add the next section. 
Just cross that out. 

Rep. Onstad: You're talking about the fees. This legislation basically sets the maximum 
fee that can be charged by a debt settlement company, is that correct. 

Parrell Grossman: Yes, that is correct. 

Rep. Onstad: I think on that part, it states that $100 on the first line, on page 18, on the 
fees, a one-time enrollment fee of $100 and then it gets into section 3; it talks about the 
15%. Is that $100 the maximum enrollment fee to be enrolled by a particular company and 
then the maximum they can charge is 15% of the savings? 

Parrell Grossman: That is correct. Currently, they often times charge exorbitant up-front 
enrollment fees and then they may even charge them an on-going monthly fee and then 
there may be some percentage of the savings, or the debt that they reduced. This sort of 
sets that ceiling of saying, okay you can charge a one-time upfront fee of $100 and then 
after that you can collect no more than 15% of the savings. If you negotiated a $50,000 
debt down to $25,000, you could charge 15% of that savings. 

Rep. Koppelman: I have a few questions. First, on page 23, bottom of page, we discussed 
the rule issue briefly, but it talks about a commissioner's order. It says that any person that 
violates this chapter or an order of the commissioner under this chapter, etc. is guilty of a 
class C felony. I understand that the order would have to be in concert with what the 
chapter sets forth. I am not familiar with the kinds of orders that would be issued. So if the 
commissioner would issue an order, claiming to have authority under the chapter, and it 
would be something totally going beyond what the law says, are we giving a state 
government official the authority to sort of define what would constitute a class C felony, by 
ordering someone to do something and saying that I have the authority to do that because 
the legislature passed this bill. The wording seems a little problematic. 

Parrell Grossman: I certainly understand your concern there; it's possible that could be 
tweaked. I think what this contemplates is something like a cease and desist order, that the 
Dept. of Financial Institutions would have that authority as the attorney general does. In 
that particular case, when someone is engaged in illegal or fraudulent conduct, that 
government agency issues a cease and desist order. Then they have an opportunity to 
request a hearing on it and then even appeal that order if they have an unfavorable 
decision. In that particular case, that order may ban them from engaging in some violation 
without the proper license. So yes, this particular language then would suggest, that if an 
entity was told to cease and desist from engaging in that particular violation of HB 1038, or 
ultimately this chapter and they continued that conduct in violation of that order, again that 
commissioner of the Dept of Financial Institutions, could go to the state's attorney and say 
that we think this is something where you might want to consider criminal charges. So ii 
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does give a fair amount of discretion in those particular cases. Without speaking for the 
Dept of Financial Institutions, if you wanted to limit that to a violation of the chapter, that is 
certainly something that you can consider. I think more and more, we are finding that these 
organizations are banned by other types of orders in which they have had the opportunity 
for a hearing to explain their conduct or to ask the particular agency not to issue that order, 
to modify that order. I wouldn't want you to think that these are orders that are issued wily­
nily and now they violate them and now suddenly it's a class C felony. 

Rep. Koppelman: But the language in the bill could imply that. So maybe we could tighten 
it up by saying "a cease and desist order" dealing with a portion of this chapter or 
something like that. 

Parrell Grossman: I would be happy to visit with Commissioner Entringer and see if we can 
put something together that would address that. 

Rep. Koppelman: On page 10, we're talking there about the advertising and marketing 
practices and so on. In the last item that's listed, item 3, is basically a disclaimer that I think 
you're proposing would be involved in any advertising. I'm concerned about the last 
sentence, with the first word "will". Not all creditors will agree to reduce principal balance 
and they may pursue collection including lawsuits. You don't know whether creditors will or 
won't agree so I'm thinking the word "may" should be used. 

- Parrell Grossman: I would not disagree with that. I wouldn't have a concern about that. 

• 

Rep. Koppelman: I'm looking at chapters 13.06 and 13.07 and looking at the bill. Can you 
explain, in general, how the two would interact, because we're not appealing 13.06 and 
13.07. I think in the amendment you made a proposal for an amendment to the definitions 
in 13.07, but how would activity of various entities interplay when all of these would be on 
the books. 

Parrell Grossman: I will try to explain that. If I didn't make that clear, our amendments are 
proposing to repeal 13.06; 13.06 is the legislation that really defines debt adjusting, albeit a 
rather poor wording definition that needs some fixing. That's the chapter that kind of 
defines what the concept of debt adjusting, and then it essentially says that you're 
prohibited from engaging in debt adjusting unless you're an attorney, etc. and there is the 
laundry list. One of those things is that essentially a non-profit entity engaged in services 
under 13.07. 

Rep. Koppelman: One of the last things you covered was the fee structure that is in the 
legislation, the $100 advance. I, too, am concerned with consumers being defrauded by 
these kinds of practices. By the same token, I think the balance we strike is how much 
government regulation of private business we want to do and how specific should it be. So 
you say a $100 fee, that may be reasonable. When you talk about 15% that is allowable, 
do we want to get into the business of telling businesses what fees they can charge. If a 
company wants to charge 18% and that's agreeable to their client, should government be 
telling them they can't charge that amount. Is there another way to get at that without being 
so rigid and specific? There may be legitimate businesses out there who want to engage in 
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this business. That's why we are creating a regulation and a licensure, etc. If that's the 
case, are we being pretty specific or should we just outlaw the practices we don't like. 

Parrell Grossman: That's a very difficult issue and it is somewhat of a philosophical issue. 
It's also a practical issue. Yes, there is no magic in that 15%, I think 15% was adopted 
because I think most statutes throughout the country that regulate consumer credit 
counseling services, with the non-profits and set up these payment plans, etc. that they are 
limited to the 15%. As far as I know, those entities have never complained about that. 

Rep. Koppelman: You're talking about the non-profits. 

Parrell Grossman: Yes, I was talking about non-profits. They are certainly different. I think 
it comes down to maybe there is nothing magical about 15%, but I think there is some 
benefit to imposing some caps because of the particular abuses by the industry in the past 
and I think somewhat because of the vulnerabilities of these individuals who are turning to 
this entity, that's located someplace in California, for help. Some of those individuals, in the 
end, might think that a 50% was great. That's really a decision you have to make as a 
legislature and I think in many regards, we've keyed in on 15% because it's what worked 
under the Consumer Credit Counseling statute. Could that be some other amount, yes? 
Could you choose not to impose the maximum amount, absolutely? I think that would be 
somewhat inconsistent with the practices of Consumer Credit Counseling services under 
13.07. 

Rep. Koppelman: First of all, this relates more to the enforcement side of it. To use the 
example you just used, if some company in California came in and offered this service in 
ND, when they don't have an office or presence here, would your office have difficulty 
prosecuting those companies. How would this be enforced in those kinds of cases. 

Parrell Grossman: How we anticipate this would work is that the Dept of Financial 
Institutions would investigate it, determine there was a violation, they would probably put 
the company on notice, possibly try and initiate some sort of settlement. If they weren't 
able to do that, then I anticipate that they would turn to the attorney general's office, which 
provides legal services for them. That could be civil litigation division or the consumer 
protection division that would initiate that particular case. We provided the dual authority 
because I think traditionally the Dept of Financial Institutions probably hasn't invested as 
much in bringing enforcement actions per se. We have a lot of experience to do this and 
we were trying to plan for the possibility that, if there were a large number of these types of 
violations, then we would have the ability to help them with the prosecutions of those 
cases. 

Rep. Koppelman: You don't see that being an issue in going after someone half-way 
across the country. I know that you have instances where you get complaints now, and I 
know sometimes it's like, how do we·get at these people. 

Parrell Grossman: Yes, it's always an issue. But I think most of the work we do in many 
respects, is going after out-of-state entities and our success does vary. There are many 
companies that will come to the table and will negotiate settlements in good faith and 
change their conduct. There are many companies which skip out, you can't reach the 
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principals, and they've spent all the money. Yes, it may create some enforcement 
problems, but one of the benefits of this legislation is that we now have the ability to ban 
them from advertising and soliciting in ND, and you now have the ability to notify 
consumers that they shouldn't do business with this particular company. 

Rep. Koppelman: Are you able to address the fiscal note. 

Parrell Grossman: Commissioner Entringer will be testifying next. 

Rep. Klemin: I have a question about the enforcement. As I understand this bill, it does 
have a requirement for a surety bond in the amount of $50,000 or an additional amount as 
required by the commissioner by rule. So would that not be one source that could be 
looked at in the event of a violation, if you are unable to enforce it, they would be required 
to have the surety bond in order to do business here in ND. 

Parrell Grossman: Absolutely. If one of these companies engaged in a violation, in 
particular, took $7,000 from a consumer, and didn't provide the services, I think the 
Commissioner of the Dept of Financial Institutions would be able to go against that bond. 

Rep. Klemin: Requiring a surety bond of these companies is really not out of the ordinary. 
A lot of companies have to post bond in order to do business in ND in various respects . 

Parrell Grossman: That is correct. Companies that do business as consumer credit 
counseling agencies under chapter 13.07 are required to have a surety bond or cash bond 
for the same type of conduct of dealing with consumer's money that's placed in trust. That 
is not unusual. 

Rep. Klemin: It's my understanding from testimony that was given to the Interim 
Committee that some portions of this bill were taken from the current law in the state of 
Illinois. Do you know, did that 15% maximum fee, where did that come from, from Illinois 
law? 

Parrell Grossman: I'm not absolutely certain on that. I don't know if asst attorney general, 
Erin Webb, in our office who drafted that, would recall that. I think maybe that is what 
Illinois uses, but I also know that that's a fairly common fee limitation throughout the 
country in regard to consumer credit counseling services or similar services dealing with 
this. I think Illinois uses that amount, but whether that is just something that Illinois 
initiated, I don't think so. 

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Who is going to explain the fiscal note to us? 

Robert Entringer, Commissioner, Dept. of Financial Institutions: Most of my testimony 
(attached) walks you through the bill; page 13 of my testimony talks about the fiscal note. 

Rep. Koppelman: On the fiscal note, as a business person, when I look at $86,000 of 
income and $316,000 for expenditures I get concerned. This is obviously a losing 
proposition for your department; even though it's not general funds, as you pointed out. If 
the numbers flows just as you've set forth here, it looks like your department would be 



• 

• 

House Judiciary Committee 
HB 1038 
January 5, 2011 
Page 10 

taking a pretty good hit on special funds to make this happen. You've anticipated that, and 
in essence, other entities that pay your fees would be subsidizing this activity. 

Robert Entringer: Without any other revenue sources, yes that's exactly what would 
happen. It would be subsidized, at least initially for the first biennium. 

Rep. Koppelman: Just following up with that, you're asking for 1 FTE and a new person 
and lot of other stuff and that involves most of the costs. Is that really necessary. I'm not 
familiar with the staffing of your department. If this all goes into effect and you gear up and 
nothing happens, which might be the intent of the legislation. You've got a person sitting 
there and a lot of money being allocated and is there a way that your department could look 
at this and say, you will assign this to so and so who's expertise could handle it and they'll 
spend 20% of their time on it the first year, and see how it goes for the first biennium. 

Robert Entringer: That is exactly what I would do. I do have one employee who will 
probably be retiring in this biennium. I would replace that individual. I would wait and see 
what kind of licensing activity we get and go forward. The biggest impact, out of the fiscal 
note, is the programming costs. That's what hits us the hardest. These are based on 
previous expenses we've incurred when we added a license. So, I don't know that these 
figures are accurate or how accurate they are. 

Rep. Koppelman: Having served on Appropriations and watching what happens with ITD, 
and you're talking about programming and so on. When that agency began, there was this 
grand plan to say we're going to do all the IT activity within state government under one 
umbrella, and it's going to be streamlined and that will make it more cost efficient. We're a 
long way down the road from when that occurred. We're still talking about what I consider, 
I mean $85,000 for records management programming, is a lot of money. I'm sure there is 
software out there that can help you manage records, probably off the shelf, or maybe 
something in your office now. It's a related question and a little broader. Do you see a 
solution to that, is there a way to bring that all under control and make sure we're not 
spending so much money in that area. 

Robert Entringer: We have looked at an off-the-shelf product to assist us with keeping 
track of all the entities we regulate, licensing, and our on-line applications and so on. Just 
a guesstimate from the company, was that that was about $400,000, and we seriously 
looked at trying to pay for that became quite a challenge. That would include banks, credit 
unions and all of the consumer entities we license. It would be split up amongst all those 
entities. We took the number of hours we were billed for during the last biennium when we 
made a change and applied the new fee schedule to that number of hours and did the 
same thing with the online application processing and that's how we came up with those 
numbers. We estimating it would take them about the same amount of time to do that. So 
they're not accurate, I don't have an estimate from ITD, but I would guess that this is pretty 
close. 

- Rep. Maragos: The revenue side, the $86,000 would be probably every biennium. 

Robert Entringer: With the exception of the investigation fees which are a one-time fee, so 
we would have annual licensing fee, the $28,000 that occurs every biennium, because that 



• 
House Judiciary Committee 
.HB 1038 
January 5, 2011 
Page 11 

is doubled. The examination fees I would expect to increase assuming we have 35 
companies licensed. So the revenue could go up. 

Rep. Maragos: The $316,000 on the expenditure side, how much of that would be a 
recurring expenditure beyond this biennium. 

Robert Entringer: Probably office supplies down through operating fees. 

Rep. Maragos: So at some point, maybe down the road in the future, you'll recoup (maybe 
in 10 bienniums) you could recoup that $316,000, is that correct. 

Robert Entringer: That's correct. 

Rep. Klemin: What is the basis for the $400 for the license fee and the investigation fee? 

Robert Entringer: We use the same fees that we charge the other entities that we regulate, 
like collection agencies, money-transfer groups. 

Rep. Klemin: So this fee is simply a number that you put in based on what you charge for 
licensing other entities. But this fee could be higher, could it not, in order to recoup more of 
this expense. 

- Robert Entringer: Absolutely, I would love that. 

Rep. Klemin: You talked about 35 companies; do you know how many of these companies 
there are out there in the country doing this kind of work. 

Robert Entringer: No, the reason we used 35 in our licensing is, when we started with the 
interim committee, I surveyed the states that do regulate debt settlement, debt 
management companies and it seemed like 30-35 was a good number. 

Rep. Boehning: The question I have, on the examiner fee - 6, to be completed. If you have 
35 licenses and 35 investigations, you only have 6 exam fees, what does that include. 

Robert Entringer: As far as expenses? 

Rep. Boehning: What are the examination fees, are we sending someone out from the 
office to go test these people, what is the exam fee. 

Robert Entringer: Yes we will be sending them out, my anticipation is that these companies 
are not going to be located in ND. So we would send someone to their location wherever 
that may be. So they are going to be billed for our travel, lodging, meals, and the salary 
hourly fees for the examiner to complete the examination. 

Rep. Boehning: Wouldn't it be a lot better if we could have them set up in ND. Aren't there 
testing facilities or any online testing that could be used, instead of having someone go to 
their business, do you need a classroom setting in order to instruct them first. 
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Robert Entringer: We do complete off-site examinations, where we send you a request list 
and you send us all the information. Those aren't necessarily as effective as when you 
show up in person. So it would be my intent that we go there and examine them onsite. 
There are a lot of companies that we license, where we are now participating in multi-state 
examinations, because so many of these companies are just money transmitters. For 
example, many of them are licensed generally in all 50 states. They don't want 50 states 
coming, 50 different times throughout the year. So we will participate, send one person in 
to do an examination, produce one report, but our examiner is there to look for compliance 
with ND law, as well as financial information. So it just works better when you go onsite. 
To require them to set up an office in ND is a constitutional issue. I've tried to run that by 
the attorney general's office and they keep shooting me down. 

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in support of HB 1038. Testimony in 
opposition to HB 1038. 

Marilyn Foss, general counsel for ND Bankers Association: (see attached testimony and 
amendments). 

Rep. Koppelman: If I'm understanding what you're driving at here, in plain language, you're 
saying that if a debt settlement company is doing business and they make agreements with 
all the creditors with that debtor, and they agree to lower the amount due to the creditors, 
and the debtor begins to make payments through this debt collection agency, with this fund 
that's set aside, the debtor makes payments to the fund, that settlement company then 
parcels out the payments to the various creditors under whatever arrangements they made 
with them. Your concern seems to be that because that fund would be exempt from any 
liens or attachments, garnishments, whatever, that there could be a creditor out there that 
was absent from those agreements or maybe one of the ones that made an agreement but 
is violating it, would go out and sue that debtor and have a judgment against them and then 
be able to attach those funds. Is that what you're driving at? 

Marilyn Foss: That is certainly one of the things I am driving at. But one of the problems 
with this bill is that we all assume that there are things in it like money has to be paid to a 
creditor, that's not in it. We assume that we're talking about consumer debt but that's not 
the way the definitions seem to work. When you are in the business of representing 
creditor interests, you learn that people who, for whatever reason, are not paying their 
obligations, or in this case, you have a money judgment against somebody that you're 
trying to collect and they don't want to pay it. They are pretty clever at using the laws to not 
pay. In this state, for instance, in bankruptcy, has adopted the approach that we use state 
exemptions in bankruptcy. This creates an unlimited exemption. The 8th Circuit Court of 
Appeals, in a recent decision, talked about how the Court doesn't disapprove of pre­
bankruptcy planning and interprets state exemptions very broadly. I am highly concerned 
then about, not only, how this would apply in state court proceedings, but in bankruptcy 
court proceedings because of the way the exemptions work, and because it is unlimited. 
There actually is no requirement in this bill that monies in this fund get paid to a creditor or 
released and available within a reasonable period of time. 

Rep. Koppelman: If those loopholes were tightened, in other words, if there was a 
provision in the bill that would require that the monies go to the creditors, as whatever 
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agreements might be proposed, and that those concerns you mentioned would be dealt 
with, would you favor that or do you just want to get rid of the inability to attach those funds 
in general. 

Marilyn Foss: In theory, tightening the bill could improve it a lot. When you create an 
exemption of this nature, because these companies are disreputable, you are actually 
encouraging people to go to use the services of these companies and to incur fees instead 
of working with your creditors directly, and I, at least, in trying to think of acceptable ways to 
tighten the language regarding that exemption, haven't come up with a solution for the 
problem of being able to prefer creditors with this kind of language in the bill. 

Rep. Klemin: I just wanted to go through how you think this might work under the bill with 
the trust fund account that's not being subject to attachment. On page 11, on lines 18 and 
19, it says that all these funds received by the debt settlement provider, constitutes trust 
funds. Then, at the bottom of that page, starting on line 28, it says that it must be 
deposited in a bank, in an account in the name of the debt settlement provider-designated 
trust account, or by some other appropriate name indicating that the funds are not the 
funds of the debt settlement provider. As I read this, it says a debt settlement provider is 
establishing a trust account, into which funds from a consumer or many consumers can be 
put into the same trust account. Now, if someone was going to attach or attempt to levy on 
that trust account for money that may have been put in by a particular consumer, how 
would anyone know what was in there for that consumer without some kind of discovery of 
the debt settlement provider, because if the funds are all consolidated from many 
consumers in the same account. How could you actually levy on it? 

Marilyn Foss: I am presuming that since this is a statutorily created trust account that rules 
that apply to trustees might also apply to these accounts, which do not just generally allow 
comingling of funds of various beneficiaries. So that might be one issue to be resolved; but 
at least without specific authority to do the comingling, but in terms of required discovery on 
the debt settlement provider, I would agree that may be likely if they are using comingled 
accounts, it probably would require discovery of the debt settlement provider but I don't see 
that as preventing an accounting as it were, of whose money belongs to which consumer. 
You are executing on the fund, and I think if there is a provision in here talking about the 
funds continuing to belong to the debtor and that certainly is appropriate and if you were, 
you would be doing discovery in aid of execution. I don't really see that that would prevent 
you from serving a levy; as you serve a levy on a bank, you just say give me the money, 
you owe such and such. I serve a levy on a debt settlement provider and say pay over 
whatever you owe, for the money that belongs to "Joe Debtor". I do not do complicated 
collection work, so that's just my take on it. 

Rep. Klemin: I guess I can see more readily somebody doing a levy on the debt settlement 
provider, who is holding those trust funds, but I just don't see how you can do it on the bank 
and say give me all the money in this trust account, because I have a judgment against one 
of many different debtors. But by analogy, let's say, landlords who rent out apartments in 
buildings. As you know, we have a statute that requires security deposits to be deposited 
in a bank or other financial institution and that there is supposed to be interest paid on 
those security deposits. It is my understanding that, especially larger landlords that collect 
security deposits don't have an individual account in the separate name of each tenant at a 



• 

• 

House Judiciary Committee 
HB 1038 
January 5, 2011 
Page 14 

bank; rather they comingle those funds into essentially a trust account, and they keep 
records of whose money is in there on their own books. The bank doesn't know potentially 
which tenant has a security deposit or not. They just know that the landlord has an account 
there where he puts security deposits. How could a creditor levy on a security deposit 
account like that to get at money that may have been put there by just one tenant? I don't 
see how that could happen. 

Marilyn Foss: I think you would probably do it by garnishing or levying on the landlord; the 
person who holds the account. My issue with this is not concerned with the problems that 
banks would incur if people are trying to execute on the trust account. Those problems 
might occur, but that is not the focus of my concern with the bill. My concern is setting up a 
law that says it provides a mechanism for a person who owes another person money to set 
aside money in an account in an unlimited amount with no fixed obligation to pay it and 
keep that money from your creditors. That is my concern, not that banks are going to be 
harassed by executions against the trust account. 

Rep. Klemin: It just seems to me, like whether this language is in here or not in here, the 
mechanics of how this trust account works would be the same. I'm not sure; maybe this 
language isn't needed and wouldn't have any effect on the bill at all. 

Marilyn Foss: That's actually my view, that if the language is removed, the structure of 
supervision and regulation for debt settlement providers is in place and what happens to 
the monies that are set aside and simply handled under the laws we now have for 
execution and exemption. 

Rep. Koppelman: If your amendment were adopted and the bill would pass, and if there is 
no limitation on attachments, where an agreement has been made, and let's assume what 
the bill intends that there would be some legitimate operators doing honest business in this 
field and so, theoretically, they would go out and make agreements. Let's say that they 
made agreements with most of the creditors, but there were one or two creditors that didn't 
agree, but let's say that 90% of the creditors that this debtor had, did agree. So they said, 
alright, of these people have all agreed to reduce their debt by 10% and agree that 
because the debtor has agreed to make payments in X number of dollars on a regular 
basis, that money would then go into this trust account, set aside for that purpose. The 
debt settlement company, if they are legitimate would make those payments, etc. So there 
is an account at the bank, but there are a couple of other creditors hanging out there that 
didn't agree, not playing ball with that debt settlement company, and they want to get their 
money. They know this account is there. Creditors can be crafty, they know this account is 
out there, and they know they didn't agree, so in good faith the debtor has made payments, 
the company has made settlements; the companies who have those settlements are 
expecting to be paid and this creditor hanging out here, who wasn't a part of any of that 
process, says I know there is an account there, they come to your bank and say I want all 
that money because this debtor owes me money. That's hardly a fair scenario. So I 
assume that is why this is in the bill, is there another way to avoid that kind of 
circumstance. 

Marilyn Foss: I would say that the way to address that, if you are in the position of 
consumer who owes debt and a creditor who wants to get paid, and doesn't want to be 
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coerced into that by the prospect of allowing the debtor to set aside money through the 
chapter 13 process of the bankruptcy court. In hearing this discussion, both here and 
elsewhere, the more I listen to it, the more it does seem to me to be somebody's notion that 
this is a private chapter 13 sort of arrangement. But we have a process to essentially force 
everybody to the table, debtor and creditors alike, under the federal consumer bankruptcy 
laws. 

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in opposition. 

Greg Tschider, Mid America Credit Union Association: We support the bill; we think it's a 
great idea except that we have the same problem that Ms. Foss talked about. I've been 
around a few years, a number of years ago; we had a situation where an individual owed 
millions of dollars. They had some property, though, that was free and clear and they 
quickly liquidated it and generated $350,000 in cash. At that time, because of our 
exemption laws under ND law that money would have been lost to creditors, but instead the 
debtor went to MN, which at that time had an unlimited homestead exemption, and bought 
a house for $350,000 so that nobody could touch it. What does that have to do with this? 
If you're the same person or corporation or whatever entity you have, you can take that 
$350,000, give it to these debt settlement people and they would hold it, and hold it, and 
hold it until the consumer business got exactly what they wanted out of the creditors. If 
they couldn't, they could leave the money there, there is nothing in the bill that says that it 
has to be dispersed after 12 months, 24 months or what have you. Or you could take the 
money and then run to a different state that has an unlimited homestead exemption, like 
Texas, or you could end up filing bankruptcy. The moral of the story is that there are no 
controls here. This is a safeguard, this is an exemption. Worse yet, if you do file 
bankruptcy, the bankruptcy court could say that under this law, there is a new exemption 
under ND law and all of that money is protected. Well, isn't that generous. The bottom line 
is, we have a good bill that serves a good purpose. I've had people call me complaining 
about how they've been ripped off, especially by out-of-slaters. If the people had only 
come and talked to me first, I might have been able to structure something for them. But 
these out-of-state companies have no conscience, they rip these people off and so a poor 
consumer loses $3,000-4,000. They can't afford to hire an attorney in California to pursue 
these people. So I think the bill really has merit. Credit Unions certainly support it to 
protect consumers. I don't know that we need to protect business, corporations. I would 
like to see the definition of person changed so that we truly are talking about individuals. 
But I think the section that Ms. Foss referred to, is a trouble spot for us because I really 
don't think it solves the problems that we're concerned with. 

Dana Bohn, ND Farm Credit Council Executive Director: Opposed to same sections as Ms. 
Foss and Mr. Tschider (see attached). 

Rep. Koppelman: With all the exemptions, in the sense, that if a lawyer was working on a 
bankruptcy, for example, and says let's try to settle your debts before you file for 
bankruptcy. They are kind of engaging in this service and so they are exempt under this 
bill from licensure. A credit institution, you wouldn't typically be engaged in the business of 
trying to settle all of someone's debts and negotiating with other creditors, so why do you 
need exemption under this. 
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Dana Bohn: We are actually already exempt, we're kind of in that catch-all thing, but we 
just want to make sure that we wouldn't be excluded. 

Rep. Koppelman: Why do you need to be? 

Dana Bohn: Why do credit unions need to be? It's just to make sure that there is no 
misunderstanding or misinterpretation should you ever get to that point, that it's very clear 
that we are not in the business of debt settlement or debt management. 

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in opposition. 

Don Forsberg, Executive Vice President of Independent Community Banks of ND: I'm 
going to make a brief comment, that is "me too" to the concerns on page 12, section 2, we 
too, see it as a potential for misuse. While we strongly support the legislation, we have 
many of our customers and community bankers that are concerned about losing monies to 
these organizations for their deceptive and false advertising. We do wholeheartedly 
support the vast majority of this bill. I wasn't aware of this bill until just recently and so 
didn't attend the interim meetings, so I don't know what is behind each of these sections. 
That section gives us a great deal of concern. 

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in opposition. We will close the hearing. 
I will appoint a subcommittee, chaired by Rep. Klemin, Rep. Koppelman, and Rep. Onstad . 
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Chairman DeKrey: We will open the hearing on HB 1038. What are the 
committee's wishes in regard to HB 1038. 

Rep. Klemin: You had appointed a subcommittee consisting of myself, Rep. 
Koppelman, and Rep. Onstad. The subcommittee met and reviewed the 
amendments that were proposed by the Attorney General's office that were 
presented at the hearing. We also reviewed amendments that were proposed in 
writing by the organization that represents the debt settlement providers; The 
Association of Settlement Companies (TASC). We also considered a proposed 
amendment that the ND Bankers Association and other lenders had requested to 
remove the provision relating to the money that is held by a debt settlement provider 
would not be subject to lien or attachment. I passed out the proposed amendments 
to HB 1038. This includes the amendments requested by the AG's office, it also 
includes a definition of a person in the bill. The bill, the way it originally read, was 
what a person is not, and since the term "person" was used in various places in the 
bill, we deemed it appropriate to also define person, and that's on page 5, line 10. If 
you look at the amendments, page 7 line 2 of the amendments, TASC had 
requested an amendment to delete a provision that if a person had been disciplined 
in respect to a license, that the commissioner could not issue a license. It really 
wasn't set out in here very well a to what, if a person had been disciplined, if he had 
completed the discipline and had been rehabilitated and so forth, the mere fact that 
there had been some previous discipline, which did not result in a felony or 
misdemeanor, then we didn't think that would be an appropriate reason to deny it in 
and of itself, to deny an application for license. Another amendment from TASC was 
on page 10, line 27. All we did there, was change the word will to may, not all 
creditor may agree to reduce principle balance, that same change was made in a 
couple of other places, on page 12, line 29, page 14, line 18. Page 18, line 26 there 
was a limitation there on line 26 that the settlement fee couldn't exceed an amount 
greater than 15% of the savings; in looking at that, it was the opinion of the 
subcommittee that nobody's going to do these in ND for 15% of the savings and so 
we, after negotiation with the AG's office, increased that to 30% so that they could 
charge a debt settlement fee not to exceed 30% of the savings. I should also 
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mention that on page 18, line 23, we took out the provision that they could charge a 
one0time enrollment fee of no more than $100. It was pointed out by TASC that that 
might conflict with FTC requirements; so we took that out so that they can't charge 
any up-front fees, not even the $100. Page 19, beginning on line 9, the association 
also suggested that we take out a provision allowing a provider to accept voluntary 
contributions. They can't solicit voluntary contributions in the bill, but then it goes on 
to say that they can accept voluntary contributions. That association thought that 
wasn't very good procedure and we agreed with it so we took ii out. On page 19, 
line 19 the association also had a recommendation to delete the language on line 
19, beginning with the word "unless the" and then lines 20 and 21, so that you take a 
power of attorney that authorizes a provider to settle a debt they can't do that if there 
is no qualification to that, it just makes it a lot easier if it's black and white and not 
get into the "unless" type of situation and that association recommended that 
change. On page 20, line 20 we added some language from the association 
recommended, after the word "debt" on line 20 or is part of a payment plan, the 
terms of which were included in the certification, that upon completion will lead to full 
settlement of the debt and we agreed with that one. The one that had the most 
controversy was on page 12, at the top of the page, lines 1-3, subsection 2, as you 
will recall from the hearing on this, the lenders, the Bankers Association, credit 
union, farm credit services, etc. they are all united in that independent community 
bankers, they had a concern that this created an unlimited exemption under ND law, 
a new one and we already have numerous exemptions under ND law that can be 
applied and those have been recently studied in some of our interim committees and 
the exemptions have been increased, sometimes 100% of what they were and so 
the conclusion of the subcommittee that there are sufficient exemptions now to 
protect almost all of these people. We don't need to give them another unlimited 
exemption under ND law. II also was my impression that, while they really 
supported this bill, they were likely to go in and oppose ii if we didn't take ii out, 
since it really seems to be covered by other state law, the AG conceded the point 
and we removed that section from the bill. That's really the sum of the amendments. 
We included the consideration of everyone that had proposals for amendments. We 
did not adopt all of those that TASC wanted; they had a number of others that 
basically would have taken a lot of good things out of this bill that we didn't include. I 
move the amendments. 

Rep. Koppelman: Second the motion. 

Chairman DeKrey: Voice vote, motion carried. 

Rep. Delmore: On page 19, line 21, why you took out more than 50% of the principle 
amount of the debt owed. 

Rep. Klemin: TASC said this is a prohibited act, a provider may not take a power of 
attorney that authorizes the provider to settle a debt. Then we had some qualifying 
language that would allow ii under certain circumstances. TASC in their comments 
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recommended that that be deleted because an FTC prohibits using a power of 
attorney to obtain pre-authorization of a settlement. 

Chairman DeKrey: We will take a voice vote, motion carried. We now have HB 
1038, as amended before us. 

Rep. Delmore: I move a Do Pass as Amended and Rerefer to Appropriations. 

Rep. Kingsbury: Second. 

Chairman DeKrey: The clerk will call the roll on HB 1038 as a Do Pass as Amended 
with a Rereferal to Appropriations. 

12 YES 2 NO O ABSENT CARRIER: Rep. Klemin 

DO PASS AS AMENDED WITH REREFERRAL TO APPROPRIATIONS 



• 
Amendment to: HB 1038 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/26/2011 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundinn levels and annrooriations anticioated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $( $85,95 $151,53 

Expenditures $( $173,90; $93,09 
Annrooriations $( $1 $1 

1B. Countv ci"' and school district fiscal effect: /dentin, the fiscal effect on the annrooriate oolitical subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

$ $1 $1 $ $1 $ $ $1 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

School 
Districts 

$1 

This House Bill will require Debt-Settlement Providers to be licensed and regulated. This will have no fiscal impact to 
the general fund however will have a negative impact to the special regulatory fund. 

- B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The Department of Financial Institutions is a self-funded regulatory agency and the revenue from the licensing will be 
deposited into the regulatory fund. The expenditure will include operating expense and programing cost for 
implementation of online licensing. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

License 35 per year@ $400 $28,000 
Investigation fee 35@ $400 $14,000 
Exam Fees 6 to be completed $43,950 

(includes motel, air fare, 
Meals and salaried hours) 

Total Revenue 2011-2013 $85,950 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected 

Office Supplies 
Travel 
IT Telephone 
Printing 

• 

Data Processing 
ostage 

308 
24,750 

893 
2,224 

17,160 
667 



Professional Dev (Schools) 
Professional Services (Legal) 
Operating Fees & Ser 

IT Record Mgmt programming 
On Line Application programming 

Total Expenditures 

3,174 
7,674 

1,407 

85,650 
30,000 

$173,907 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

This bill does not include any appropriation in the executive budget. The Department of Financial Institutions will ask 
to increase appropriation House Bill 1008 for the operating line item if this bill passes. 

Name: Joan Becker De artment of Financial Institutions 
Phone Number: 701-328-9958 ared: 01/26/2011 
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FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/15/2010 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundinn levels and annronriations anticinated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $r $85,951 $151,53( 

Expenditures $( $173,901 $93,09! 

Appropriations $( $ $( 

18. Counh• citv. and school district fiscal effect: ldentifv the fiscal effect on the annrooriate oolitical subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

$1 $ $ $1 $ $1 $1 $1 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summa,y of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

School 
Districts 

$1 

This House Bill will require Debt-Settlement Providers to be licensed and regulated. This will have no fiscal impact to 
the general fund however will have a negative impact to the special regulatory fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The Department of Financial Institutions is a self-funded regulatory agency and the revenue from the licensing will be 
deposited into the regulatory fund. The expenditure will include operating expense and programing cost for 
implementation of on line licensing. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget 

License 35 per year@ $400 $28,000 
Investigation fee 35@ $400 $14,000 
Exam Fees 6 to be completed $43,950 
(includes motel, air fare, 
Meals and salaried hours) 

Total Revenue 2011-2013 $85,950 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Office Supplies 
Travel 
IT Telephone 
Printing 
IT Data Processing 

308 
24,750 

893 
2,224 

17,160 



Postage 
Professional Dev (Schools) 
Professional Services (Legal) 
Operating Fees & Ser 

IT Record Mgmt programming 
On Line Application programming 

Total Expenditures 

667 
3,174 
7,674 

1,407 

85,650 
30,000 

$173,907 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

This bill does not include any appropriation in the executive budget. The Department of Financial Institutions will ask 
to increase appropriation House Bill 1008 for the operating line item if this bill passes. 

Name: Joan Becker De artment of Financial Institutions 
Phone Number: 701-328-9958 ared: 0110612011 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL 1038 

Page 1, line 4, after "fund" insert "and section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century Code relating to 

the definition of consumer credit counseling service" 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon, insert "to repeal chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code 

relating to the regulation of debt adjusters;" 

Page 1, after line 12, insert: 

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century Code 

is amended and reenacted as follows: 

13-07-01. Consumer credit counseling service - Definition. As used in this chapter "consumer 

credit counseling service" means a nonprofit corporation eRgagee iR lae eusiRess of eeet aajusting as 

aefiReEl in seetioR 13 Q6 Ql whose agreements contemplate that debtors will liquidate their debts by 

structured installments or creditors will reduce finance charges or fees for late payments. default. or 

delinquency. For purposes of this chapter a nonprofit corporation means an entity that is: 

a. organized and properly operating as a not-for-profit entity under the laws of the state in 

which it was formed; 

b. exempt from taxation under the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. Section 501; and 

c. not owned. operated. managed by. or affiliated with a for-profit entity." 

Page 3, line 11, replace "the" with "this" 

Page 3, line 17, after "credit union." insert "farm credit system institutions." 

Page 4, line 1, after "person" insert "currently''. and replace "chapter 13-10'' with "any chapter 

administered by the department of financial institutions or registered with the attorney general's office" 

Page 4, line 11, remove "or'' 

Page 4, line 18, replace the underscored period with ";_Q[ 

{3) Offering to provide advice or service. or acting as an intermediary between or on behalf of a person 

and a state or federal government agency where the primary purpose of the advice. service. or action is 

to obtain a settlement. adjustment. or satisfaction of the person's tax obligation to the government 

agency in an amount less than the current outstanding balance of the tax obligation." 

Page 4, line 24, remove "or'' 

Page 4, line 31, replace the period with ";_Q[ 

{4) A nonprofit corporation engaged in consumer credit counseling services under chapter 13-07." 
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Page 5, line 10, after "Person" insert "means an individual. corporation. limited liability company, 

partnership. trust. firm. association. or other legal entity. The term" 

Page 7, line 2, remove "disciplined with respect to a license or" 

Page 8, line 5, replace "registered" with "licensed" 

Page 10, line 27, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 12, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 12, line 4, replace "I' with "'l,." 

Page 12, line 10, replace "1" with "'l,." 

Page 12, line 29, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 14, line 18, replace "WILL" with "MAY" 

Page 18, line 23, remove". except for a one time" 

Page 18, line 24, remove "enrollment fee of no more than one hundred dollars" 

Page 18, line 26, replace "fifteen" with "thirty" 

Page 19, line 9, remove "A provider may accept voluntary" 

Page 19, remove lines 10 through 12 

Page 19, line 19, remove". unless the" 

Page 19, remove line 20 

Page 19, line 21, remove "more than fifty percent of the principal amount of the debt owed a creditor" 

Page 20, line 20, after "debt" insert "or is part of a payment plan. the terms of which are included in the 

certification. that upon completion. will lead to full settlement of the debt" 

Page 22, line 3, after "law" insert "in this state" 

Page 23, line 26, remove "or any rule or order of the commissioner under this chapter or which engages 

in any act. practice. or transaction declared by any provision of this chapter to be unlawful" 

Page 24, after line 25, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed." 

Renumber accordingly . 
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11.0225.02002 
Title.03000 

Adopted by the Judiciary Committee 

January 19, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1038 

Page 1, line 4, after "fund" insert "and section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to the definition of consumer credit counseling service" 

Page 1, after line 4 insert "to repeal chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code relating to 
regulation of debt adjusters;" 

Page 1, after line 12, insert: 

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

13-07-01. Consumer credit counseling service - Definition. 

As used in this chapter, "consumer credit counseling service" means a nonprofit 
corporation whose agreements contemplate that debtors will liquidate their debts by 
structured installments or creditors will reduce finance charges or fees for late 
payments, default. or delinquency. For purposes of this chapter, a nonprofit corporation 
means an entity that is: 

.L Organized and properly operating as a nonprofit entity under the laws of 
the state in which it was formed; 

2. Exempt from taxation under the Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 501 ); 
and 

l,_ Not owned, operated, managed by, or affiliated with a for-profit entity." 

Page 3, line 11, replace the second "the" with "this" 

Page 3, line 17, after the fourth underscored comma insert "farm credit system institutions," 

Page 4, line 1, after "person" insert "currently" 

Page 4, line 1, replace "chapter 13-1 O" with "any chapter administered by the department of 
financial institutions or registered with the attorney general's office" 

Page 4, line 11, remove "or" 

Page 4, line 18, replace the underscored period with "; or 

.Ql Offering to provide advice or service, or acting as an intermediary between oron 
behalf of a person and a state or federal government agency where the primary 
purpose of the advice, service, or action is to obtain a settlement. adjustment. or 
satisfaction of the person's tax obligation to the government agency in an 
amount less than the current outstanding balance of the tax obligation." 

Page 4, line 24, remove "or" 

Page 4, line 31, replace the underscored period with"· or 

ffi A nonprofit corporation engaged in consumer credit counseling services 
underchapter 13-07." 

Page No. 1 11.0225.02002 
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Page 5, line 10, after "Person" insert "means an individual. corporation, limited liability 
company, partnership, trust. firm, association, or other legal entity. The term" 

Page 7. line 2, remove "or disciplined with respect to a license" 

Page 8, line 5, replace "registered" with "licensed" 

Page 10, line 27, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 12, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 12, line 4, replace "~" with "i" 

Page 12, line 10, replace "~" with "~" 

Page 12, line 29, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 14, line 18, replace "WILL" with "MAY" 

Page 18, line 23, remove", except for a one-time" 

Page 18, line 24, remove "enrollment fee of no more than one hundred dollars" 

Page 18, line 26, replace "fifteen" with "thirty" 

Page 19, line 9, remove "A provider may accept voluntary" 

Page 19, remove lines 1 0 through 12 

Page 19, line 19, remove ", unless the" 

Page 19, remove line 20 

Page 19, line 21, remove "more than fifty percent of the principal amount of the debt owed a 
creditor" 

Page 20, line 20, after "debt" insert "or is part of a payment plan, the terms of which are 
included in the certification, that upon completion, will lead to full settlement of the 
debt" 

Page 22, line 3, after "law" insert "in this state" 

Page 23, line 26, remove "or any rule or order of the commissioner under" 

Page 23, remove line 27 

Page 23, line 28, remove "provision of this chapter to be unlawful is" 

Page 24, after line 25, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 11.0225.02002 
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11.0225.02002 
Title.03000 

Adopted by the Judiciary Committee 

January 21, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1038 

Page 1, line 3, after "6-01-01.1" insert "and section 13-07-01" 

Page 1, line 4, after "fund" insert "and the definition of consumer credit counseling service; to 
repeal chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulation of debt 
adjusters" 

Page 1, after line 12, insert: 

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

13-07-01. Consumer credit counseling service - Definition. 

As used in this chapter, "consumer credit counseling service" means a nonprofit 
corporation engaged in the business of debt adjusting as defined in section 
13 0€i 01whose agreements contemplate that a debtor will liquidate the debtor's debts 
by structured installments or that a creditor will reduce finance charges or fees for late 
payments, default, or delinquency. For purposes of this chapter, a nonprofit corporation 
means an entity that is: 

1,_ 

£. 

~ 

Organized and properly operating as a nonprofit entity under the laws of 
the state in which 11 was formed 

Exempt from taxation under the federal Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. 
501); and 

Not owned, operated, managed by, or affiliated with a for-profit entity." 

Page 3, line 11, replace "the" with "this" 

Page 3, line 17, after the fourth underscored comma insert "farm credit system institution," 

Page 4, line 1, after "person" insert "currently" 

Page 4, line 1, replace "chapter 13-1 O" with "any chapter administered by the department of 
financial institutions or registered with the attorney general's office" 

Page 4, line 11, remove "or" 

Page 4, line 18, after "debt" insert ";_Q[ 

.Q} Offering to provide advice or service, or acting as an 
intermediary between or on behalf of a person and a state or 
federal government agency where the primary purpose of the 
advice, service, or action is to obtain a settlement, adjustment, 
or satisfaction of the person's tax obligation to the government 
agency in an amount less than the current outstanding balance 
of the tax obligation" 

Page 4, line 24, remove "or" 

Page 4, line 31, after "requirement" insert ";_Q[ 

Page No. 11.0225.02002 
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.(11 A nonprofit corporation engaged in consumer credit counseling 
services under chapter 13-07" 

Page 5, line 10, after ""Person"" insert "means an individual, corporation, limited liability 
company, partnership, trust, firm, association, or other legal entity. The term" 

Page 7, line 2, remove "or disciplined with respect to a license" 

Page 8, line 5, replace "registered" with "licensed" 

Page 10, line 27, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 12, line 1, remove "Such funds are not subject to attachment, lien, levy of execution, or 
sequestration by" 

Page 12, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 12, line 4, remove"~" 

Page 12, line 10, replace "4." with"~" 

Page 12, line 29, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 14, line 18, replace "WILL" with "MAY" 

Page 18, line 23, remove ", except for a one-time" 

Page 18, line 24, remove "enrollment fee of no more than one hundred dollars" 

Page 18, line 26, replace "fifteen" with "thirty" 

Page 19, line 9, remove "A provider may accept voluntary" 

Page 19, remove lines 10 through 12 

Page 19, line 19, remove", unless the" 

Page 19, remove line 20 

Page 19, line 21, remove "more than fifty percent of the principal amount of the debt owed a 
creditor" 

Page 20, line 20, after "debt" insert "or is part of a payment plan, the terms of which are 
included in the certification, that upon completion, will lead to full settlement of the 
debt" 

Page 22, line 3, after "law" insert "in this state" 

Page 23, line 26, remove "or any rule or order of the commissioner under" 

Page 23, remove line 27 

Page 23, line 28, remove "provision of this chapter to be unlawful" 

Page 24, after line 25, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 11.0225.02002 
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Com Standing Committee Report, 
January 24, 201111:31am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep::._14:.__005 
Carrier: Klemin 

Insert LC: 11.0225.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1038: Judiciary Committee (Rep. DeKrey, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1038 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 3, after "6-01-01.1" insert "and section 13-07-01" 

Page 1, line 4, after "fund" insert "and the definition·of consumer credit counseling service; to 
repeal chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulation of debt 
adjusters" 

Page 1, after line 12, insert: 

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

13-07-01. Consumer credit counseling service - Definition. 

As used in this chapter, "consumer credit counseling service" means a 
nonprofit corporation eAgaged iA tl1e b~siAess of debt adj~sliAg as defiAed iA seslioA 
13 96 91whose agreements contemplate that a debtor will liquidate the debtor's debts 
by structured installments or that a creditor will reduce finance charges or fees for late 
payments, default, or delinquency. For purposes of this chapter, a nonprofit 
corporation means an entity that is: 

i 

£. 

.1. 

Organized and properly operating as a nonprofit entity under the laws of the 
state in which it was formed; 

Exempt from taxation under the federal Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 
5011" and 

Not owned, operated, managed by, or affiliated with a for-profit entity." 

Page 3, line 11, replace "the" with "this" 

Page 3, line 17, after the fourth underscored comma insert "farm credit system institution," 

Page 4, line 1, after "person" insert "currently" 

Page 4, line 1, replace "chapter 13-10" with "any chapter administered by the department of 
financial institutions or registered with the attorney general's office" 

Page 4, line 11, remove "or" 

Page 4, line 18, after "debt" insert ";.,Q!: 

.Q1 Offering to provide advice or service or acting as an intermediary 
between or on behalf of a person and a state or federal 
government agency where the primary purpose of the advice 
service, or action is to obtain a settlement adjustment or 
satisfaction of the person's tax obligation to the government 
agency in an amount less than the current outstanding balance of 
the tax obligation" 

Page 4, line 24, remove "or" 

Page 4, line 31, after "requirement" insert ";.,Q!: 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 14_005 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep~14::_005-
Carrier: Klemin 

Insert LC: 11.0225.02002 Title: 03000 

M} A nonprofit corporation engaged in consumer credit counseling 
services under chapter 13-07" 

Page 5, line 10, after ""Person"" insert "means an individual, corporation, limited liability 
company partnership trust firm association or other legal entity. The term" 

Page 7, line 2, remove "or disciplined with respect to a license" 

Page 8, line 5, replace "registered" with "licensed" 

Page 10, line 27, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 12, line 1, remove "Such funds are not subject to attachment lien, levy of execution, or 
sequestration by" 

Page 12, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 12, line 4, remove "g_,_" 

Page 12, line 10, replace "4." with "b" 

Page 12, line 29, replace "will" with "may" 

Page 14, line 18, replace "WILL" with "MAY" 

Page 18, line 23, remove", except for a one-time" 

Page 18, line 24, remove "enrollment fee of no more than one hundred dollars" 

Page 18, line 26, replace "fifteen" with "thirty" 

Page 19, line 9, remove "A provider may accept voluntary" 

Page 19, remove lines 10 through 12 

Page 19, line 19, remove", unless the" 

Page 19, remove line 20 

Page 19, line 21, remove "more than fifty percent of the principal amount of the debt owed a 
creditor" 

Page 20, line 20, after "debt" insert "or is part of a payment plan the terms of which are 
included in the certification, that upon completion will lead to full settlement of the 
debt" 

Page 22, line 3, after "law" insert "in this state" 

Page 23, line 26, remove "or any rule or order of the commissioner unde(' 

Page 23, remove line 27 

Page 23, line 28, remove "provision of this chapter to be unlawful" 

Page 24, after line 25, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed." · 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_ 14_005 



2011 HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 

HB 1038 



• 
2011 General Discussion 

(Check appropriate box) 

D Committee on Committees 

D Rules Committee 

D Confirmation Hearings 

D Delayed Bills Committee 

D House Appropriations 

D Senate Appropriations 

D Other 
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Government Operations 
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II Committee Clerk Signature ~ a 

Minutes: 

Chairman Thoreson opened the general discussion. 

Chairman Thoreson: We have one bill that has been referred to us by the Judiciary 
Committee which is HB1038. We've had some discussions with leadership about 
where we're looking to go here. What I'm asking the committee members to do is if you 
can start looking through some of these budgets that we've heard; identify priorities 
where you think we can have a discussion with those agencies and look at where we 
can trim some things. I think we should find areas that could be changed or reduced in 
some manner; when we say reduced, we're not talking about a reduction in budgets. 
We're talking about the percentage of increase. I would open it up at this time, for any 
discussion. 

Chairman Thoreson: Representative Dahl you've been working with the Judicial 
branch. You met with them today; are you planning on doing any further meeting in 
subcommittee with them? 

Representative Dahl: Not at this time, but, I am going to ask for a little more information 
on some specific items in their budget. We'll see from there if there are further 
questions that need to be addressed in the subcommittee. 

Chairman Thoreson: I think that is important on some of the IT issues that they brought 
forward and some of the other lines that we get a little more detail as to what it is they're 
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Government Operations 
February 2, 2011 
Page 2 
looking to do with those items. The other thing in that budget to note is the fact that the 
salary line is at a different percentage than most other agencies. So, we need to get an 
idea of what kind of numbers we're talking about if we were to bring them in line with 
other budgets throughout state government. 

Representative Brandenburg: A question that I don't think I have answered yet. I see 
an increased cost coming with DOT dealing with IT. Their system's getting old; they're 
going to have to do something with that. I think we may need to get them both in here 
and find out where they're going with that. 

Chairman Thoreson: This would be the department at ITD you think? 

Representative Brandenburg: I think there's some places there rather than spending 
extra money; it sounds to me like we have a problem there. 

Chairman Thoreson: Tomorrow morning we have the highway patrol back in to work on 
some details within that budget. The clerk can get hold of DOT and ITD to see if they 
would be available after floor session tomorrow. Anything particular that you're seeing 
that raises a red flag or concerns you? 

Representative Brandenburg: We that their system is old and they need to something. 
I'm not sure that they're both in agreement in the direction they need to go. 

Chairman Thoreson: If we can keep both sides together is the most important thing; 
because, we've seen time and again where agencies go off on their own or without 
guidance from their IT people and maybe don't end up with the most value for their 
dollar. 

Representative Klein: Like Representative Brandenburg mentioned, I'm still not 
satisfied with the ITD interface with some of the departments. It seems to me there's 
some duplication of effort going on. 

Chairman Thoreson: I think that's something we're seeing through a lot of these 
budgets; is, the IT issue. I think we still need to get some answers. One area that 
concerns me and I know looking at the Judicial branch, there's an issue where they 
identified when IT was in last week. In some of these cases, where different agencies 
were using DSL service and going directly to the vendor and paying for it; now their 
being asked an additional fee on top of that for administrative purposes of that service. 
Representative Kempenich, are there any specific areas that we need to start looking 
at? 

Representative Kempenich: What I think we need to do, on them any, is get into their 
spend down report a little bit. We'll have to contact their office or 0MB to get some 
spend down reports for the highway patrol. 

Joe Morrissette, Office of Management Budget: We can work with the agency to get 
that information. ·, 
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Representative Klein: The other thing is there's some bills floating around yet that 
directly tie into that. We need to wait until all that comes together. 

Representative Kempenich: I guess one of the things we're going to have to is focus on 
these areas; the $120.00 a month isn't going to solve the problem. The problem is not 
everyone is at the same level and they're going to have to base it on some type of 
performance. 

Chairman Thoreson: Are you seeing a specific language or policy you want to see in 
HB1012? 

Representative Kempenich: They have 29 empty positions. I think they want us to tell 
them how to do it. 

Chairman Thoreson: They hire managers to do exactly that to manage there. 

Representative Brandenburg: I would have to think over in western North Dakota 
there's probably so many more CDL's being done; you're probably doing 10 to 15 per 
day. Based on the workload, maybe, something can be based on how many tests 
you're giving a day versus how many hours you're working a day. 

Chairman Thoreson: Where we can look at the workload in each region of the state and 
make it work towards the areas where the biggest demand is. 

Representative Glassheim: I may not be following the concerns but I certainly wouldn't 
want to hamper their ability to retain employees in the oil patch. 

Chairman Thoreson: They're facing such an increased pressure because of the private 
sector; obviously, better wages and now benefits. More money helps but I don't know if 
it's the absolute only thing we can do to keep people. 

Representative Glassheim: Maybe you could go 3 days a week in Jamestown and 
move them for 2 days to Dickinson. 

Representative Kroeber: I've visited with Representative Klein; and I have HB1008 for 
financial institutions. I have that ready to present to subcommittee and to full committee 
if you want. Keep in mind that this is a special funded self-supporting agency with no 
general fund dollars. If the chair of full appropriations wants to get some bills out; I'd be 
ready to provide that. 

Chairman Thoreson: I did ask the chairman if he wanted us to start moving bills out of 
the subcommittee. He said not quite yet, but, be prepared to. 

Representative Kempenich: Whal we're looking at on aeronautics that was brought up 
the other day. They have an old airplane and he was looking at a new airplane. We 
have 4 :old aircraft around; the Attorney General has one, a baron, the Dot has a 
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Cheyenne. All these planes, other than the one aeronautics has, have over 10,000 
hours on them. What we started a discussion about, I want him to put together is to get 
a scheduler; he has one that he hired as a full time temporary, and that we replace 
those 4 with 2 airplanes and get a scheduler. The highway patrol has a 206+ and we 
have airplanes all over the place in each agency. I'm going to propose we change that 
and we get someone that's scheduling. 

Chairman Thoreson: So you'd go from 4 planes to 2? 

Representative Kempenich: Go from 4 planes to 2 planes; the game and fish has a 
185; they're all 5 or 6 years old. If we got 2 utility planes, like he was talking about, on 
the used side; then we talk to some of these lease outfits, that we talk to them and buy 
a seat or buy some hours; instead of owning a jet. 

Chairman Thoreson: There's fractional owners where we can buy a percentage. 

Representative Kempenich: We don't get into that, all we need to do is buy hours; we 
can cut our costs down, we cut our usage down; instead of having them sit in hangers. 
They're costing money whether they're flying or sitting now matter how you look at 
them. Truthfully, I don't think we're using these planes enough; DOT probably has the 
most legitimate thing, but, that's only e or 4 months out of the year; and then, it sits the 
rest of the year also. We're trying to get a handle on our maintenance and where we're 
at with that. 

Representative Dahl: Something else to think about, if the highway patrol has an 
airplane and they need to use it for some kind of emergency; and you only have 2 
planes. 

Representative Kempenich: There's going to be a plane sitting on the ground at any 
given time. It isn't like these guys are actually flying them; there's pilots sitting on call. 
Highway patrol has a pilot, DOT has a couple pilot; and the thing is, if you're going to go 
to this level and upgrade the fleet, if they're sitting in the hangar it's a waste of time. 

Representative Klein: The other thing we asked is to give a list of how many hours 
these planes are being used each month; and give us that information so we have an 
idea. 

Chairman Thoreson: And that's by agency; how much each one's using? So, you 
would reduce the number of planes; but, upgrade planes that have less hours available 
on them. 

Representative Kempenich: We'll see what Mr. Taborsky comes with; he's going to be 
gone next week. I told him if he can get something to me by the end of the week. Mr. 
Taborsky made a comment that as an_ operator he didn't know if he would go the jet 
route. I think those Caravan's would suite most of the state of North Dakota would do 
within the boundaries of the state of North Dakota. Representative Carlson told me that 
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if we can keep this within a budget, I think it would be better if we just bought them; 
instead of paying that interest money. And then, amortize the amount over 10 years. 

Chairman Thoreson closed the hearing . 

.. 
' 



• 
2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Appropriations Government Operations Division 
Medora Room, State Capitol 

HB1038 
February 8, 2011 

Recorder Job# 14182 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Bill for an Act to create and enact Chapter 13-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to the regulation of debt-settlement providers; to amend and reenact subsection 1 
of section 6-01-01.1 and section 13-07-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the financial institutions regulatory fund and the definition of consumer credit counseling 
service; to repeal chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulation of 
debt adjusters; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Thoreson opened the hearing on HB1038. The clerk noted all members were 
present. 

Representative Duane DeKrey: The policy of the bill is, we've all listened to TV and radio 
and they run the same commercials over and over; I owe the IRS over $600,000.00 and I 
settled for $200.00. It's all scams; there are a very small handful of debt settlement 
companies out there that are legitimate. What this does, is goes after the ones that aren't 
legit. They contact people and they get them to give them their numbers and then these 
companies say they're going to go to bat for them. What they do is, they run up their debt 
thousands of dollars more and they do nothing for them. They tell them to quit paying their 
bills; then someone who was scared that they were going to end up in bankruptcy, ends up 
in bankruptcy; because the debt settlement company breaks them and does nothing about 
their debt. It's a rampant problem and it's probably one of the more unreported problems. 
Because, people are embarrassed that they get hoodwinked by this; and so, they don't 
want to tell anyone about it. What the bill will do, is it will give the Attorney General the 
authority to license these companies; they have to pay the licensing and they can monitor 
them and see that they're doing some kind of service for the client. It also sets a 
percentage. The way they are supposedly supposed to work; they get the credit card 
company to relieve you of 50% of your debt; then they would get to keep up to 50% of the 
money to get the credit card company to reduce your debt. There is an association of debt 
settlement companies that did come in and work with us on the bill. They said that 50% is 
the floor, that they would never work for less than 50%. 

Representative Glassheim: I see 30%. 

Representative DeKrey: Maybe I got my percentage wrong. 
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Representative Klein: Did this come out of the interim committee? 

Representative DeKrey: I don't know if it came out of the interim committee; but, I know ii 
was supported by the Attorney General's office. They're the one that brought the bill to us. 

Representative Dahl: A company that does not register with the state and continues to 
operate. 

Representative DeKrey: I would be a violation of law. 

Representative Dahl: Would that be a class C felony? 

Representative DeKrey: I believe so. The purpose is to put them out of business. So only 
the actual legitimate ones would be left. 

Chairman Thoreson: Section 4 is a repealer; do you know what chapter 13-06 is that's 
repealable? 

Representative DeKrey: I'm not certain what that is; we'll have to check into that. 

Representative Kempenich: These counselors try to negotiate but they may try to help. 

Representative DeKrey: We also don't like to get into the middle of business; it's kind of 
like the payday loan business. You may not agree with the business; but, they do provide a 
service and people are willing to pay for ii. 

Representative Thoreson: In that situation North Dakota has kind of been a shining star; 
that we have gone and regulated and watched over the payday loan industries. 

Representative Kempenich: I see that they're talking about 35 companies; are these the 
legitimate ones? 

Representative DeKrey: We questioned the fiscal note because they thought they had 35 
companies register; and we thought that was a little high. But the Attorney General's 
probably knows better what's out there; they're the ones that with their consumer fraud 
division get all the complaints. What few complaints they do get; because, it goes largely 
unreported because people are so embarrassed that they get sucked into this that they 
don't want to tell anyone. 

Representative Brandenburg: If you could explain that some of these people that do this; 
what do they do on the part that's illegal? 

Representative DeKrey: They promise a service that they don't deliver. They promise that 
they're going to reduce their credit card debt and that they're going to work with the IRS. 
They get the people to agree to this and then they get into their credit card and charge 
them fees for providing all these services; but then they do nothing on the other end about 
contacting creditors and working with creditors to see if they can get their debt reduced. 
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Representative Brandenburg: What kind of penalties are we going to put on these people 
so that we can clean it up? 

Representative DeKrey: A class C Felony is what's in the bill. If it can be proven that they 
haven't executed their duties. 

Representative Kroeber: Obviously a 25 page bill has to be a model legislation from some 
place? 

Representative DeKrey: If it is, I'm not aware from where it came from. 

Representative Kempenich: I just googled debt settlement. There's 2.97 million references 
to debt settlement. 

Robert Entringer, Commissioner, North Dakota Financial Institutions: See attached 
testimony 1038.2.8.11A. 

Chairman Thoreson: When you say you based it on previous experience, have they done 
similar types of work in this area or is that just there billable hours? 

Robert Entringer: We added a license type for money transmitters 2 sessions ago. They 
came in and upgraded our records management system to allow us to add that license type 
and they also upgraded our online application. 

Representative Klein: Do you foresee any problems with handling this with your present 
FTE's or do you need additional help? Is there an FTE involved in this? 

Robert Entringer: In the original fiscal note we had an FTE, but, we took it out based on a 
suggestion from the judiciary committee. We're going to wait and see how many licensee's 
we have before we go forward with an FTE. 

Representative Klein: Do you have to go out and do some verification at sites or is this all 
done online with the system you'll have in place? 

Robert Entringer: We anticipate having to go out to these locations and review the files at 
their locations. 

Representative Klein: Are there any of these that you're aware of in the state or are most 
of them from out of state that do this sort of thing? 

Robert Entringer: To my knowledge they're all out of state. 

Representative Dahl: I had a question on page 2 of your testimony you noted that you 
need about $85,650.00 to update your system which is a data base. It sounds like you use 
to track other pertinent infonmation for all the matters that you regulate; so, is this 
$85,000.00 just specific to this program or is this $85,000.00 going to update other portions 
that you regulate? 
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Robert Entringer: It would be specific to add this license type to that program. 

Representative Kempenich: What I'm trying to understand is how you're going to get these 
35. Are these 35 a known factor right now? 

Robert Entringer: The 35 licensees was based on an estimate. We surveyed other states 
that do license debt settlement providers and most of them were in the 30 range for actual 
licensed entities. I would anticipate because the trade association is aware of this bill this 
legislation that they will notify their members and that will spur them on to be licensed. 

Representative Kempenich: Do they have to register in the state right now? 

Robert Entringer: They currently have to register with the Attorney General's office lb do 
this. It's a registration rather than a license; so, I couldn't tell you how many are registered 
by the Attorney General's office. 

Representative Brandenburg: Are there states that are doing the same kind of program? 

Robert Entringer: Are you asking if this is model law? 

Representative Brandenburg: Is this something that's working someplace else? 

Robert Entringer: What we were asked to do by the interim committee is develop a bill; so, 
what we did we took model legislation. We looked at Illinois law and based it using our 
existing statutes from other licensees; we modeled the bill based on our existing statues, 
drawing from both the model legislation and the Illinois law as well as our law. 

Representative Kempenich: Your fiscal note, they took the FTE out but left the money; so, 
ii looks like it's up to your discretion whether you're going to fill that position. Why not just 
leave the FTE in? 

Robert Entringer: I thought ii would be more palatable. 

Chairman Thoreson: You did say you wanted to evaluate where you're at with this to see 
the number of providers that are coming forward? 

Robert Entringer: Exactly. 

Robert Entringer: We'll absorb it with the existing staff and if we need an FTE we'll come in 
next biennium and ask for an additional FTE 

Testimony continued . 

Chairman Thoreson: Would that be travel out of state? 

Robert Entringer: Yes, it would be. 

Chairman Thoreson: So you basing this on airfare, lodging and food? 
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Robert Entringer: Exactly. 

Testimony continued. 

Representative Glassheim: I note that you anticipate in the next biennium that revenues 
will exceed expenses. Are your projects pretty accurate? 

Robert Entringer: That would be accurate. The major expenditures in the fiscal note is the 
programming costs. With those going away in the next biennium it should be self sufficient. 

Representative Klein: I'd like to have the rep from the Attorney General's office. 

Representative Klein: I'm interest in what the penalties will be and how you're going to 
assess the infraction. 

Ellen Alm, Assistant Attorney General, North Dakota Attorney General's Office: The 
Attorney General's office will have joint enforcement authority with the department of 
financial institutions. It would be a violation of 51-15; which is our consumer fraud law. It 
provides for certain enforcement authority for the attorney general; we can bring actions to 
enforce any violations and the remedies that are provided there injunctive relief, restitution, 
civil penalties up to $5,000.00 per violation, attorney's fees and costs, and any other relief 
that the court might find appropriate. If we do get some complaints, this is the remedy that 
we would have. 

Representative Kroeber: How many do we have registered with the Attorney General's 
office now? 

Ellen Alm: Yes and no. The one's that are registered now are only nonprofit. It's a 
consumer credit counseling under 13-07. The way it's setup now under 13-06, debt 
adjusting, as long as debt settlement falls in that definition, is technically banned in the 
state of North Dakota. The problem with that statute is it primarily a Class A misdemeanor; 
there's no other enforcing authority. It would fall on the State's Attorney primarily to enforce 
any violations of that statute. There's some exceptions in there and that includes nonprofits 
and those are registered to our office. The for profits are not registered. 

Representative Kroeber: Will the nonprofits continue to be registered or will they have to 
go through financial institutions now to be licensed? 

Ellen Alm: They will still be registered-to our office as long as they fall into the exception in 
this bill. Nonprofits that are engaged' in consumer credit counseling will not be registering 
through the department of financial institutions. They will follow the old system but they 
have to be a true nonprofit and that's why we're also amending 13-07 to clarify the 
definition of a nonprofit. 

Representative Kroeber: The $400.0Q;for nonprofit might be quite a burden for licensure. 

Ellen Alm: Yes. 



• 
House Appropriations Government Operations Division 
HB1038 . 
February 8, 2011 
Page 6 

Representative Kempenich: Why did you change on page 12 and 14; change will to may? 

Chairman Thoreson: Do you know which lines we're looking at? 

Representative Kempenich: It's the amendments and one's on page 12 line 29 and 
another ones on page 14 line 18. 

Ellen Alm: Commissioner Entringer told me that it's a suggestion from the industry 
because not all creditors will agree to settle debt. 

Representative Kempenich: I'm still struggling with the numbers. What you've seen in the 
past has it been more of a reactionary type situation with the companies? 

Ellen Alm: That's kind of how the violations will come about. That's how we would know; it 
would be consumers complaining, then we would take actions based on that. There is no 
other way of finding out. They won't self report and I think during last year we had about 11 
enforcement actions we had started against companies that were based on consumer 
complaints that we received. 

Representative Kempenich: There's 2.9 million that reference debt settlement on Google; 
does anyone do any due diligence on these companies? 

Robert Entringer: We do use Google searches, if you Google payday lenders; because we 
license those also, you'll get more than 2.9 million, we have 80 companies licensed. Trying 
to find someone through a Google search; once you get the web address, if they're not 
legitimate, they register through a domain. It's very difficult to track those companies, we 
do use Google to track them if we can. We hear the ads and we'll contact the radio station 
to try and get information from them. We're planning on getting information from other 
states for information on the companies they already have licensed. 

Representative Kempenich: If they're advertising in the state that's probably the biggest 
contact. 

Robert Entringer: Exactly. 

Speaker Drovdal: I'm curious where the authority comes to regulate these companies that 
are not located in the state of North Dakota especially in relationship to off shore 
companies. Where does that authority come from and is it enforceable? 

Robert Entringer: We have in our statutes a provision that if you're engaging in an activity 
with a citizen of North Dakota, you're doing business in North Dakota and that's our nexus. 
We've been challenged based on the interstate commerce clause; that has failed in pretty 
much every instance; because there's tests under the interstate commerce clause. If you 
make ii more difficult to do business in your state then you're violating the interstate 
commerce clause, I believe is one of the tests. 
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Speaker Drovdal: That was the same challenge in quail versus North Dakota and the ruled 
that North Dakota is cumbersome on the quail; therefore, we had no authority. The courts 
have ruled just opposite that in the cases of regulation. Is that what you're saying? 

Robert Entringer: Yes. 

Representative Kempenich: The fiscal note after the amendment still has the money in it. 
The amendment fiscal note still has the funds in it; you want them left there? 

Robert Entringer: What we eliminated was any expense associated with an FTE. I think it 
reduced the expenses from about $310,000.00 to $173,000.00. 

Representative Brandenburg: I'm trying to understand; in order for a debt settlement 
company to do business in the state; they're going to have to pay a fee to the state. What 
is that fee? 

Robert Entringer: $400.00 and $400.00 investigation fee; that's a one time fee. 

Representative Brandenburg: It be a total of $800.00. 

Robert Entringer: For the first year, correct. 

Representative Brandenburg: If they don't pay that fee and they do business in the state; 
then they're subject a Class C felony? 

Robert Entringer: That's correct. 

Representative Brandenburg: Do you have any idea how many are in the state now doing 
business? 

Robert Entringer: I don't. 

Representative Brandenburg: There has to be a problem in the state because the bill's 
here. Why is this bill here? 

Robert Entringer: The reason the bill's here is because they are doing business in the state 
and as Representative DeKrey indicated, the majority of the time you contact a debt 
settlement company to settle your Discover, Visa, etc; and that's what's called your enrolled 
debt. You pay them a fee upfront, the way it's currently structured and essentially they 
don't do anything for you. 

Chairman Thoreson: I just noticed something on the fiscal note; when we make up the total 
revenue for the 2011-2013 biennium, it says license 35 per year at $400.00, $28,000.00. 
But then right below it it says an investigation fee of 3500@ $400.00 is $14,000.00? 

Robert Entringer: That's an annual lic~nse fee. 
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Representative Kempenich: On the fiscal note also, it looks like you just have your 
operating costs is what these revenue and expenditures are; isn't it? You said to add an 
FTE would be about $310,000.00? 

Robert Entringer: Correct. To absorb the salary and benefits it would increase the 
expenditures to about $310,000.00. 

Representative Kempenich made a motion for a "Do Pass" motion. 

Representative Kroeber seconded the motion. 

A roll call vote was taken 7 Yea's O Nay's O Absent 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Regulation of debt-settlement providers; financial institutions regulatory fund and definition 
of consumer credit counseling service; regulation of debt adjusters; provide penalty. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Delzer: This is out of GO. Who is the carrier? 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: I am. This bill came before our sub-committee. This bill deals 
with debt-settlement companies. The financial institution wanted to put some rules around 
these companies. Most of them aren't domiciled in ND, but they figured that they would 
have possibly 35 companies that would have some fees and regulatory costs, that would 
apply to do business in the state. The amendments took off the fiscal note so there isn't 
any fiscal impact. We really didn't do anything to the bill. They had an FTE in there but 
they pulled that out. I move a Do Pass on engrossed HB 1038. 

Rep. Thoreson: Second the motion. 

Chairman Delzer: They removed the FTE, but you're saying that all of the dollars were 
removed. 

Rep. Kempenich: It was stated that there might be some income coming in, the $173,000; 
but they said that there wouldn't be any expenditures out of it. 

Ch. Delzer: The costs that were related with the fiscal note were removed by the 
amendments put on by the Judiciary Committee. 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: The fiscal note says that there is $173,000 in some operating, 
but that all came out with the amendment and it's still following through. 

Chairman Delzer: That is from the head of financial services . 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: Yes 

Representative Nelson: We should do more of this, bringing up revenue without expenses. 
This is from the financial institutions. How can we bring in revenue and not have expenses. 
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Vice Chairman Kempenich: I don't th.ink it will work because every institution that they will 
be dealing with is out of the state of ND. It's going to be voluntary. The way it is amended 
right now, he had travel in there; he had in there an FTE that would travel to their location 
out of state and do an interview and test. Now the FTE is gone, there's no way they are 
going to voluntarily do this. 

Representative Nelson: If it's not going to work, and we're still going to go into it, is there 
any harm that can occur? 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: No, there isn't anything that can occur. I think they had 35 
institutions that probably would be legitimate, that probably would come in voluntarily to do 
business in ND. Most of those are non-profit organizations. They wanted the language so 
they could do this, if somebody voluntarily came into the state and wanted to be legitimate. 
But those aren't the ones that you're going to have problems with. 

Chairman Delzer: If you expect that 35 will probably license themselves and that's the 
reason for the $85,000, but they do not expect that any of them will have to be investigated 
so there would no expenditures. 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: Exactly. 

Representative Kaldor: Was this in a policy committee? 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: Yes it was. 

Rep. Kaldor: Did the policy committee agree with your amendment. 

Rep. Kempenich: It wasn't our amendment. We didn't do anything with it. They figured 35 
would pay in and they pulled the expenditures out of there. It's all a volunteer operation. 

Chairman Delzer: Rep. DeKrey, from the Judiciary Committee, came to the hearing and 
stated that they made these amendments, but they didn't change the fiscal note. By rule, it 
had to come to our committee. 

Representative Glassheim: I thought they had taken the FTE out, but they were still going 
to use their existing staff. The costs of record management and IT for $85,000; travel to 
examine the books of even the good organizations will be expended. You have to examine 
the books or there's nothing happening. I don't remember the discussion that there weren't 
fiscal expenditures. I understood that they came and said there's no FTE, they'll eat that 
cost for the first two years and see. I think we have to do something. 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: He said there would be no fiscal impact with the way it got 
amended. They were going to use exi~ting staff and funds that came in voluntarily. 

Representative Skarphol: In looking at this Fiscal Note, I fully understand why I've never 
been asked to work in a bank, because if you look two-thirds of the way down under #3 and 
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you look at licenses, 35 per year at $400 for $28,000 and then you look at the next one, 
investigation fee, 35 per year at $400 is $14,000. 

Rep. Kempenich: One figure is for one year of the biennium, and the other one is for two 
years. We did ask that question in section 2. 

Representative Skarphol: If this is revenue and it says exam fees six to be completed 
which includes motel, air fare, meals and salary; is that being paid by the six that are being 
examined, is that where the revenue comes from. If you're buying air fare, paying for a 
motel and meals, and salaries, that is an expense not revenue. 

Vice Chairman Kempenich: Well it's to the company, though. 

Rep. Skarphol: That's what I am asking, is that what the anticipated cost to the entity is 
going to be charged for these exams. 

Rep. Kempenich: Yes, that's what it is. That's why I don't think this is going work. 

Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? We have a Do Pass before us as the policy 
committee amended it. The clerk will call the roll for a Do Pass. 

21 YES O NO O ABSENT 

DO PASS MOTION AS AMENDED FROM POLICY COMMITTEE IS CARRIED. 

CARRIER: Rep. Kempenich 
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HB 1038, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 
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Engrossed HB 1038 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regulation of debt settlement providers 

Minutes: Testimony attached 

Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on House Bill 1038. 

Vonette Richter, Legislative Council: She handed out written testimony and report that 
was given to the Judiciary Committee. Stated that the bill was intended to be introduced in 
the 2009 session and there were some issues that some of the affected parties had 
regarding who would administer the licensing structure and some of the other details. It was 
turned into a study during this past interim, during the process they heard testimony from 
the Attorney General's office and the Department of Financial Institutions regarding the 
Uniform Act and all of those parties had concerns about the Uniform Act as it was drafted. 
The committee was asked to take the bill and modify it to make it workable in North Dakota. 
A team from the Attorney General's office and the Department of Financial Institutions 
brought a draft in before the committee which was a combination of North Dakota state law 
and some of the Uniform Law and some laws from other states. The version that came out 
of that committee was a modified version of the Uniform Law. That is what was introduced. 
She then goes through some of the highlights of the bill. 

Chairman Klein: Asked if they had any rules or laws that regulated this organization before 
this committee went into this in depth study and created this. 

Vonette: Said that there are some enforcement tools that the consumer protection division 
currently uses. 

Senator Andrist: Said that by the fiscal note you expect to have 35 registrations under this 
chapter and asked if these people were private for profit or non-profits, or a mix of both. 

Vonette: Said that as she understands they are for profit. . 
Senator Nodland: Stated that the ~

1
ajority of these are out of state. 

Vonette: Said that was correct. 
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Robert J. Entringer, Commissioner, Department of Financial Institutions: Testimony 
Attached. · 

Chairman Klein: Asked if the travel dollars were for all the agencies out of state. 

Bob: Said that was correct and they weren't aware of any debt settlement companies 
located in North Dakota so they would be traveling out of state to conducts the 
examinations. 

Chairman Klein: Asked what they did before. 

Bob: Said he believed they were registered with the AG's office and they had to provide a 
bond of five thousand dollars. 

Chairman Klein: Said that they would now over see this area of business in North Dakota. 

Bob: Said that was correct, it would be shifted to their agency and it would become a 
license rather than just a registration. 

Chairman Klein: Asked if they envision the revenue eventually would off-set the 
expenditures. 

Bob: Yes they expect it will be a net expenditure in the first biennium because of the 
programming costs. The budget was increased to account for the fiscal note. 

Senator Nodland: Asked what they are looking for. 

Bob: Said they would be reviewing the contracts and making sure they are complying with 
what is set forth in the statute and looking at the fees, making sure they are complying with 
the fee limitations. He said the bill requires a trust fund be established so when the 
consumer gives money to the debt settlement provider the money is in there and is being 
saved for the settlement of the consumers debts. At a minimum that is what they will be 
looking at. 

Chairman Klein: Asked if there was uniformity. 

Bob: Said there was uniformity 

Questions 

Parrell Grossman, Director of the Attorney General's Consumer Protection and 
Antitrust Division: Testimony Attac_hed and Proposed Amendment. 

- Senator Schneider: Asked if the Village was a credit counseling center or debt settlement. 

Parrell: Said that ii is a credit counseling center. 
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Senator Schneider: Asked what the difference was. 

Parrell: Said that a debt settlement company will try to resolve your debt for a lump sum 
payment significantly less than the original amount, the consumer credit counseling 
agencies will work with the consumers in trying to set up a payment plan in dispersing 
payments to pay that entire amount of the debt. 

Wesley Young, TASC: Testimony Attached. He stated that they deal only with unsecured 
debt, no mortgages. 

Chairman Klein: Stated that fees were the issue and asked if they were to address the 
issues, one being the federal law which takes care of the concerns that they have and the 
second being the thirty percent cap. He asked if his idea was to remove the cap. 

Wesley: Stated that in Texas and Colorado they have taken the federal law and plugged it 
in. So you have all of your protection, licensing, oversight, do's and don'ts, enforcement, 
plus you have the federal rule, law in place. He said that there are some exemptions under 
the federal law and this would take away those exemptions. 

Chairman Klein: Asked in removing the cap where does that end up for the consumer. 

Wesley: He said he would answer it in two parts; for the consumer before the federal rule 
in states where there were no regulations fees were actually lower than like in Colorado 
where they had a fee cap. The market will help determine the cap. Number two, the fees 
are going to be disclosed up front and can't change during the program. The consumer 
knows what they are and can cancel out of the program and not owe a dime that is the 
extra protection for the consumer. Lastly it is difficult for them to give a number as to what 
would be an appropriate fee write now. The federal law took effect in October of last year. 
They have been doing this new program for four months, out of a three year program. He 
said that all the companies are losing money this year and don't know if they will make 
money next year. That is why there is such a large drop off in the number of companies in 
the industry. They are trying to figure out what an appropriate fee would be. If they had to 
give a number of what the fee would be it would be twenty five percent of the enrolled debt. 
He said because these are three y~ar programs it works out to be eight percent APR a 
year. 

Chairman Klein: Asked if Minnesota continues the program at thirty five percent, how 
would they address the fact we wouldn't be mirroring them. 

Wesley: Said the problem with Minnesota is the law was passed prior to the federal law 
passing which has changed the landscape entirely. He said he doesn't know how many 
companies they have registered there. 

Senator Nodland: Asked if he knew how many companies there are in the United States. 

Wesley: Said that there were one to two thousand but the number has come down about 
seventy five percent. 
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Senator Nodland: Asked what percentage of those are members of his organization. 

Wesley: They have about sixty members. 

Senator Nodland: Asked when they discuss contracts with these people if they give them 
any advice. Do they suggest that they seek legal counsel? 

Wesley: He said all the laws require that a financial analysis be done and all of their 
options be reviewed. He talked about everything they would go through with the client. 

Senator Nodland: Asked how they identify their clients. 

Wesley: Said that they are screened out for various reasons. He said they gather 
information and the initial consultation came be very lengthy, they get enough information. 

Parrell: He said the case that they discussed the Attorney General did not agree with it. 
The federal law only applies to telemarketing sales. Internet sales are not telemarketing 
sales. 

Wesley: Said they were asking for the Federal rule to be put into 1038. If you did that you 
would get ninety eight percent of what the Attorney General is asking for. 

- Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing. 



• 

2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Roosevelt Park Room, State Capitol 

HB 1038 
March 15, 2011 

Job Number 15421 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature _µ,~ 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regulation of debt settlement providers 

Minutes: Discussion 

Chairman Klein: Said the issue from the gentlemen from the debt service provider ... what 
we are attempting to do is regulate these guys. They are from out of state companies ... the 
question is how much should we them have? The Attorney General has suggested they get 
(starting out at 30% and the Attorney General suggested doing 20%). What does the bill 
say? Gentlemen from Texas suggested we take all caps off so when they are helping with 
credit collection/cards. Original Legislation said 30% of what they save you. 

Senator Schneider: Wes said it is different from an attorney's fee. Not sure that it is all that 
different. If these individuals represent someone and save them ten thousand dollars, that 
is a ten thousand dollar benefit to them as well. A contingent contract would get three 
thousand ... l don't know how it would be different. I do think it is important to have some 
cap on this group. The state bar regulates the attorney's fees can be and/or charge. There 
is no such organization for debt settlement providers ... we need to stand in the gap as 
legislators and protect these people who are in desperate circumstances. The Attorney 
General's office has done remarkable work on this. 

Senator Laffen: In general I have nervousness as this is a growing industry and lets 
people go out to spend too much on credit cards and then figure out a way to not have to 
pay the bill. If this industry, I would be concerned that we would be developing this 
mentality that you don't have to pay all your bills. Just get some company to get you out of 
a portion of it. Overall, I am not sure this industry is good for the overall credit industry. I 
sympathize with those who need help ... it seems it does need some regulation on our part. 

Senator Nodland: The fees are on page 19 item 3 under line 17 & 18. Amount would not 
exceed the amount greater that 30% of the savings. This was the most fraud they have 
ever worked with ... consumer fraud ... this is really cleaning it up and we can make it more 
difficult in the next session if need be. They have illuminated some of these companies in 
the U.S. as states are starting tci clean this up. I think it is a good bill. 
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Senator Murphy: Isn't always the case where they save the consumer money ... isn't it 
sometimes consolidating debt, and give them a payment to make it easier? 

Chairman Klein: These groups that you see on TV when you have debt of twenty 
thousand dollars ... call us, we can help you. Sometimes they take the money you give them 
up-front and you never hear from them again. The state is going to regulate this through the 
Attorney General's office and he usually gets the complaint from the consumer who has 
been jilted by these organizations. We have legislation here that would provide for thirty 
percent of the recoverable amount of money so these companies are able to negotiate 
down that you only owed ten thousand dollars of the twenty thousand dollars will allow this 
debt presentment organization to take the thirty percent... they get three thousand 
dollars ... is that correct? 

Senator Nodland: Ten percent of the savings if the original debt was twenty thousand 
dollars, they get it down to ten thousand dollars ... it would be three thousand dollars. 

Senator Andrist: The question we have to ask, if these people provide a good service to 
the North Dakotans ... will they provide the service with a cap of thirty percent are they going 
to provide this service if we don't give them a larger percentage of the recovery? It is a 
mixed service they provide and thirty percent could be a good beginning and wait two years 
and they come back and say they can't do it for this ... so why are we doing this? 

Chairman Klein: I would have felt more comfortable if the gentleman form Texas would 
have suggested that he could go to fifty percent rather than ... it should be completely gone. 
That isn't much negotiation. 

Senator Larsen: The individual from Texas or anybody in testimony did they say how 
much they charge? Are they charging over thirty percent .... thought it was more like ten 
percent? 
I don't remember the fees they are charging. 

Chairman Klein: I don't recall but do recall under this legislation, they can't charge any 
dollars up front. .. when they come to an agreement with a credit card companies, that if the 
debtor does not say "go for it" they still can't collect any money from them. 

Senator Nodland: That is correct. The department of Finances will examine yearly. Now 
they are being treated like a bank in ND and examined every year to see that they are 
operating up and up. This is a tough bill. .. but a good bill. 

Chairman Klein: This bill will have a fiscal effect until the Financial Institutions get their 
arms around examining these people who are doing these businesses. We don't have any 
in North Dakota? 

Senator Nodland: That is correct. 

Senator Laffen: It appears they came from the group who submitted the bill. This is mostly 
just clean up ... language. 
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Chairman Klein: Starts with page seven line twenty three ... discussion of the amendment. 

Senator Nodland: I move to adopt the amendment for engrossed HB 1038. 

Senator Murphy: Seconded the motion. 

Chairman Klein: There has been a motion and a second, discussion? Committee we are 
going to hold onto this to double check ... Erik check on this and we will take a fifteen minute 
break and continue with this HB 1038 when we come back. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regulation of debt settlement providers 

Minutes: Vote 

Senator Klein: Second meeting called to order Tuesday, March 15, 2011 for HB1038. 
Meeting on the motion and clarified the amendments on HB1038 were correct that he had 
the ones we handed out were the correct ones. The ones he had attached to his testimony 
were incorrect because he had it on the wrong version. He asked if there were any more 
discussion on the amendments. The clerk calls the roll on HB1038. 

Clerk: Roll call vote. 7-0-0 

Senator Nodland: I move Do Pass on HB 1038 as amended and rerefer to Appropriations 

Senator Larsen: Second the motion. 

Senator Klein: Asked for Discussion. The Clerk will take the roll on Do Pass as amended 
and rerefer to Appropriations on HB1038. 

Clerk: Roll call vote. 7-0-0 

Senator Klein: Passed. 

Senator Nodland carries the bill. 
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Title.04000 

Adopted by the Industry, Business and Labo"(J;:!? 
Committee 

March 15, 2011 

3,1s-,\\ PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1038 

Page 7, line 23, remove "have not been" 

Page 7, replace lines 24 through 26 with"~ 

ill Have not been convicted of a felony: 

@ Have not been convicted of a misdemeanor involving dishonesty 
or untrustworthiness: or 

.Q} Have not been the subject of an adverse finding or adjudication 
in a license disciplinary or other administrative proceeding 
concerning allegations involving dishonesty or 
untrustworthiness" 

Page 8, line 3, after "commissioner'' insert "unless the commissioner determines the violation is 
not material" 

Page 16, line 25, replace "void" with "voidable" 

Page 24, line 26, replace "Voidable" with "Void" 

Page 24, line 28, remove "individual may void the" 

Page 24, line 28, after "contract" insert "is void" 

Page 24, line 29, after "and" insert "the individual may" 

Page 24, line 31, replace "voidable by the individual" with "void" 

Page 25, line 1, replace "If an individual voids a" with "For a void" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11.0225 03001 
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Date: 3/16/II 
Roll Call Vote # l ____;;_ __ _ 

2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. t-t~IQ;,!i' 

Senate Industry, Business and Labor 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Se.na---b, \Jod\a.l'\d Seconded By 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Jerrv Klein ✓ Senator Mac Schneider ✓ 

VC Georae L. Nodland ✓ Senator Philip Murphy v' 

Senator John Andrist ✓ 
Senator Lonnie J. Laffen ✓ 
Senator Olev Larsen ✓ 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----'--'------- No __ __,O=::_ ________ _ 

0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

-:Pa.rr-e.11 D.G rcSSl'Y\CU"\. A-rn.endm.~t 
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Date: 3/15/// 
Roll Call Vote # .;l --==----

2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. It!;> IO 3~ 

Senate Industry, Business and Labor 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number ,, 

Committee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended l2:J' Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By S'<-na::tcr Nodl<l.l\c:1 Seconded By S.11...no....\c~ lo...--s~ 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Jerrv Klein ✓ Senator Mac Schneider V 

VC Georae L. Nodland ✓ Senator Philio Murohv v' 
Senator John Andrist ✓ 
Senator Lonnie J. Laffen ✓ 

Senator Olev Larsen \I 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) _____ 'l:.__ _____ No ___ D __________ _ 

0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
March 16, 2011 8:13am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_46_012 
Carrier: Nodland 

Insert LC: 11.0225.03001 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1038, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed HB 1038 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 7, line 23, remove "have not been". 

Page 7, replace lines 24 through 26 with"; 

ill Have not been convicted of a felony: 

ill Have not been convicted of a misdemeanor involving 
dishonesty or untrustworthiness: or 

ill Have not been the subiect of an adverse finding or adiudication 
in a license disciplinary or other administrative proceeding 
concerning allegations involving dishonesty or 
untrustworthiness" 

Page 8, line 3, after "commissione~· insert "unless the commissioner determines the violation 
is not material" 

Page 16, line 25, replace "void" with "voidable" 

Page 24, line 26, replace "Voidable" with "Void" 

Page 24, line 28, remove "individual may void the" 

Page 24, line 28, after "contract" insert "is void" 

Page 24, line 29, after "and" insert "the individual may" 

Page 24, line 31, replace "voidable by the individual" with "void" 

Page 25, line 1, replace "If an individual voids a" with "For a void" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_ 46_012 
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1038 
March 24, 2011 

Job# 15943 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resol ion: 

A bill which relates to the regulation of debt-settlement providers; relating to the financial 
institutions regulatory fund and definition of consumer credit counseling service; also relating 
to the regulation of debt adjusters. 

Minutes: See attached testimony - # 1. 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee hearing to order on HB 1038. Roll call was taken. 
Sheila M. Sandness - Legislative Council; Lori Laschkewitsch - 0MB. 

Senator Grindberg (waiting for someone to testify) Sheila, are you planning to give an 
overview of this bill? Sheila M. Sandness: I wasn't prepared to. 

Senator Wanzek: Was this the bill that Senator Nodland carried? (will call down to IBL) 

Chairman Holmberg asked if the Legislative Council can explain the bill? 

Sheila M. Sandness: I can't really explain the content of bill, but I can tell you that it came 
out of legislative management - the judiciary committee. It had a fiscal note attached to it, 
however the amount that was in the original fiscal note, the agency identified it as not being 
included in their bill. That amount has now been put into the agency's appropriation bill. As far 
as background information, I'm afraid that's all that I can provide. 

Chairman Holmberg: So we were holding financial institutions (HB 1008) for HB 1038. We 
didn't add anything to financial institutions, did we? We still have the bill. We haven't done 
anything with ii. Oh, the House added the money, so the money is in 1008 for 1038. Then 
why are we having it? Because it had a fiscal note? Sheila M. Sandness: That is correct. 

Senator Krebsbach: I'm looking at the two fiscal notes that we have; one dated 12/15/11 and 
one dated 1/26/11 and I fail to see any differences between the two fiscal notes. 

Sheila M. Sandness: That is correct. !'think what happened is that they attached the fiscal 
note because the fiscal effect was the same in the bill as amended. However, we should have 
probably asked for another fiscal note because the fiscal note says that the Department of 
Financial Institutions will ask for an increase in the appropriation in HB 1008 for the operating 
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line item if the bill passes. At that point, they were still asking for the money. However, since 
then, the money has been put in their bill. The fiscal note provides a brief description of the 
bill, it says that it will require debt settlement providers to be licensed and regulated. 

Chairman Holmberg: We won't pass on the bill. No one has appeared. I hate to pass out a 
bill when we don't have the benefit of someone. Who is the carrier of the bill? Who did 
Judiciary assign as the carrier of the bill? It should say on the committee report. 

Chairman Holmberg: Call Jerry (Klein) and see who the carrier is. 

Senator Krebsbach: This is the first engrossment with Senate amendments so we must have 
adopted amendments. 

Chairman Holmberg: The floor did and then it was on the floor for final passage. 

Senator Jerry Klein entered the room. HB 1038 deals with preferred debt settlement 
providers. We've had a couple of payday lenders and then this group. The attempt here was 
to provide oversight - on those folks who say 'when you have $20,000 of credit card debt, call 
us'. These folks are non-resident licensees. With the banking commissioner and along with 
the peril at the Attorney General's office - consumer division, we are trying to get a handle on 
those folks. Only allowing them up to 30% of the recovery money, however, those are the 
caps we put on, the banking commissioner is going to be kind of the hammer here, he's going 
to be licensing these folks and that's where he needs a couple of bucks. I just saw the fiscal 
note. We sent it on down and I was hoping he'd be here to explain why he needs that money 
to get all these out of state guys licensed. There are quite a few of them. Most of those folks 
don't like what we've done because we've set the cap at 30%. The gentleman from Dallas 
wanted it unlimited. Just kind of an overview, I thought they'd be here defending why they 
needed the cash, but that's what the bill did. 

Chairman Holmberg: The HB 1008, the House added an amendment to add $173,907 of 
special funds for operating expenses associated with the estimated cost of implementing HB 
.1038. The fiscal note is already in the budget. 

Robert J. Entringer, Commissioner, Department of Financial Institutions 
Written testimony # 1 
Testified in support of HB 1038 

I apologize. I was not aware the bill was up for a hearing this morning. I don't have prepared 
testimony, but my understanding is that Senator. Klein brought over my testimony with regard 
to the fiscal note. If you have questions regarding the bill, I can certainly answer that or give 
you a general overview of the bill. 

Chairman Holmberg: Give us a general overview of the context. 
Robert J. Entringer: The genesis of this bill - we were asked by the interim judiciary 
committee to come up with a proposed draft for debt settlement service providers. We were 
asked to look at the uniform bill and we took that bill and also looked at legislation that Illinois 
had recently enacted with regard to the same type of companies as well as our existing 
statutes. We did not draft a uniform bill for interim committee. The bill as amended is what you 
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have in front of you today. It is not a uniform act. What it does is it places the licensing 
authority with the Department of Financial Institutions for debt settlement service providers. 
They are defined on page three of the bill. 

Essentially, its those ads that we've all heard on radio or seen on TV where these companies 
offer to settle consumer debts. Generally, it's unsecured consumer debts for a fee. Presently, 
the only regulation regarding these companies is in HB 1307. It's just a registration. They 
provide a bond, I think of $5,000 to the Attorney General's office. Other than that, the 
Consumer Protection Division acts on complaints with regard to these companies. There is 
very little enforcement capabilities. So this changes it from a registration to a licensing process 
and places the enforcement with the Department. Much of the bill is patterned after the 
Uniform Act as well as the State of Illinois and the legislation they passed. In a nutshell, that's 
pretty much what it does. I'd be happy to answer any other questions. 

Senator Wardner: The dollars - why do you need them? 

Robert J. Entringer: The money, primarily, is used to update our records management data 
base. That's about $115,000 of it. The rest of it is examination fees, most of which will be 
recouped through revenue generated. The bill allows us to set a fee for those examinations so 
most of that would be recouped, but there is some additional expenses; printing costs, and that 
type of thing. 

Chairman Holmberg asked if this was any relation to the companies that advertise on 
television a lot "It's my money and I want it now?" Is this debt settlement or is this something 
different? Money that is supposedly owed you that you contact them. 

Robert J. Entringer: I'm not familiar with that ad, but that probably isn't debt settlement. Debt 
settlement is essentially credit cards is what they deal with primarily. The other thing this bill 
does include is the Ronnie Deutsch's of the world, the attorneys that will settle your tax debts. 
It encompasses that as well. Rep. Klemin wanted to include that in the legislation, so the 
House amended it include that as well. It deals with unsecured consumer debt as well as tax 
obligations. That does not strictly relate to consumer debt; that would also include small 
business. 

Chairman Holmberg: Any additional questions? Thank you for coming over. You don't have 
to apologize much because at this time of the session it's hard. This is the second bill in a row 
where it was an orphan. 
Chairman Holmberg closed the hear,ing on HB 1038. He asked the committee for their 
recommendations on the bill. 

Senator Wardner moved Do Pass and re-refer it back to IBL. 
Senator Wanzek seconded. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13 Nay: 0 Absent: O 

The bill goes back to Senate Industry Finance and Labor and 
Senator Nodland will carry the bill. 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_53_001 
Carrier: Nodland 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1038, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed HB 1038 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_53_001 
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EXCERPT FROM 2009-10 JUDICIARY COMMITTEE REPORT 

REGARDING HOUSE BILL NO. 1038 

PROVIDED BY: VONETTE RICHTER. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

JANUARY 5, 2011 

UNIFORM DEBT-MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES ACT STUDY 

The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act was 
among the 2008 recommendations of the_ North D_akota 
Commission on Uniform State Laws for introduction in 
the 2009 legislative session. Before the 2009 legislative 
session, concerns were expressed by members of the 
commission, the Attorney General, and the director of 
the Department of Financial Institutions that before the 
uniform Act is introduced for adoption in North Dakota, a 
determination should be made as to which state agency 
would be the most appropriate agency f~r the 
administration and enforcement of the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. It was noted that the 
Uniform Debt-Management Services Act is a 
complicated Act that will require additional staffing and 
budget to implement. Because of these concerns, 1t was 
recommended that a study of the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act be conducted to 
address these concerns before introduction. 

• 

The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act has 
een adopted in Colorado, Delaware, Missouri, Nevada, 

Rhode Island, Tennessee, and Utah. 

Background 
The National Conference completed the Uniform 

Debt-Management Services Act in 2005. The uniform 
Act is intended to provide the states with a 
comprehensive Act governing these services that will 
allow for the national administration of debt counseling 
and management in a fair and effective way. 

Uniform Debt-Management 
Services Act Summary 

The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act may be 
divided into three basic parts--registration of services, 
service-debtor agreements, and enforcement. 

Registration 
The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act 

provides that a service may not enter an agreement with 
any debtor in a state without registering as a consumer 
debt-management service in that state. Under the 
uniform Act, registration requires submission of detailed 
information concerning the service, including its financial 
condition, the identity of principals, locations at which 

•

ervice will be offered, form for agreements with debtors, 
md business history in other juri_sdictions. To_ registe_r, a 

· service must have an effective insurance policy against 
fraud, dishonesty, theft, and the like in an amount no 
less than $250,000. The service also must provide a 
security bond of a minimum of $50,000 which has the 

1 

state administrator as a beneficiary. If a registration 
substantially duplicates one in another state, the service 
may offer proof of registration in that other state to 
satisfy the registration requirements in a state. A 
satisfactory application results in a certificate to d_o 
business from the administrator. A yearly renewal 1s 
required. 

Agreements 
In order to enter agreements with debtors, the 

uniform Act requires a disclosure requirement respecting 
fees and services to be offered and the risks and 
benefits of entering such a contract. The service must 
offer counseling services from a certified counselor, and 
a plan must be created in consultation by the counselor 
for debt-management service to commence. The 
contents of the agreements and fees that may be 
charged are set by the statute. The uniform Act provides 
for a penalty-free three-day right of rescission on the part 
of the debtor. The debtor may cancel the agreement 
also after 30 days but may be subject to fees if that 
occurs. The service may terminate the agreement if 
required payments are delinquent for at least 60 days. 

Any payments for creditors received from a debtor 
must be kept in a trust account that may not be used to 
hold any other funds of the service. The uniform Act 
contains strict accounting requirements and periodic 
reporting requirements respecting funds held. 

Enforcement 
The uniform Act prohibits specific acts on the part of 

a service, including misappropriation of funds in trust, 
settlement for more than 50 percent of a debt with a 
creditor without a debtor's consent, gifts or premiums to 
enter an agreement, and representation that settlement 
has occurred without certification from a creditor. 
Enforcement of the uniform Act occurs at two levels--the 
administrator and the individual level. The administrator 
has investigative powers, power to order an individual to 
cease and desist, power to assess a civil penalty up to 
$1 O, 000, and power to bring a civil action. An individual 
may bring a civil action for compensatory damages, 
including triple damages if a service obtains payments 
not authorized in the uniform Act, and may seek punitive 
damages and attorney's fees. A service has a good­
faith mistake defense against liability. The statute of 
limitations pertaining to an action by the administrator is 
four years and two years for a private right of action. 

Banks as regulated entities under other law are not 
subject to the uniform Act, as are other kinds of activities 
that are incidental to other functions performed. For 



example, a title insurer that provides a bill-paying service 
that is incidental·to title·insurance is not subject to it 
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North Dakota Statutory,;iProvisions 
There are several areas of North Dakota law which 

ay be impacted by the enactment of the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act North Dakota law 
regarding debt adjustment and consumer credit 
counseling services are contained in Chapters 13-06 
and 13-07. Chapter 13-06, which relates to debt 
adjusting, provides that unless exempted, any person 
who engages in the, business of debt adjusting is guilty 
of a ,Class A misdemeanor. Section 13-06-03 provides 
for exemptions from the prohibition on debt adjusting, 
•including situations involving debt adjusting. incurred 
incidentally in the lawful practice of law in this state; 
banks and fiduciaries; title insurers and abstract 
companies; judicial officers or others acting,under,c.ourt 
orders; . , nonprofit,. , or . charitable corporations · or 
assoqiations engaged ,.in debt adjusting; situations 
involving debt,. .adjusting incurred , incidentally, in 
connection. with lawful •"practice. as a certified public 
accountant and ,,licensed public accountant; bona ifide 
trade or mercantile. associations ,. in the course1 of 
arranging adjustment or debts ,with '.business 
establishments;,,.any • person who,, at the request of a 
,debtor, arranges for or, makes, a loan to the debtor, and 
who, at the ·authorization of the debtor, acts as an 
adjuster.of the debtor's debts,in the disbursement of the 

•

e .. ds o.f the lo .. a .. n, without compensation for servi.ces 
re,c:!,,,i~ ,a<:ijusting the debts; and licensed. and 

~d i::cillt,,ctior,agencie~,,, . ,, . .. . ... ,, 
: Chapter, 1370'7.;,,which. wa,s ,,enacted in 1993; provides 

for.· the.,, regul.ation·., of consumer credit counseling 
services. , Und.er Sectio~ 13707-01, a consumer. credit 
ce>unseling ,service.is,defined •as ''a nonprofit.corporation 
engaged in, the business of debt adjusting as defined in 
section 13-06-01." Section 13-07-02, which sets forth 
the contract requirements in an agreement ,betweem,the 
consumer credit counseling service and the debtor, 
provides that a consumer credit counseling service may 
not.enter an agreement with a debtor.unless a.thorough 
writteo budget analysis indicates that the debtor can 
reasonably meet .the ,requirements of the financial 
adjustment plan :and that the debtor will be benefited by 
the p_l,an. Section. 13-07-06 authorizes. the consumer 
credit,counseling service to,charge an ,origination fee of 
up ,to.$50. ,Section,.13,07,07 prohibits a consumer credit 
counseling service.from taking a confession of judgment 
or.a .power of attorney,to confess judgment agains\!the 
debtor or appear as the debtor in any judicial 
proceeding .. This section also authorizes the Attorney 
General to receive and investigate complaints against a 
consumer .credit counseling service. The remaining 
sections in this chapter set ·forth the surety bond, trust 
account, and accounting requirements for a consumer 

•

counseling servic,e, • ... . :,, 

stimony.and Committee Considerati~ns 
The committee received extensive testimony and 

assistance from the Department of Financial Institutions 

2 

and the Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division of 
the Attorney General's office. 

The committee received testimony regarding the 
feasibility and impact of enacting the Uniforr 
Debt-Management Services Act, as well as testimon, 
regarding consumer protection services that are being 
provided by the state. The testimony indicated that other 
states have reported problems with some 
debt-management companies. According to the 
testimony, there are debt-management companies that 
lead consumers to believe the company can settle the 
debtor's debt for less than one-half of the debt owed. It 
was noted, however, when the company cannot deliver 
what has been promised, the debtor suffers. The 
Uniform Debt-Management Services Act would regulate 
debt0management companies. 

Nonprofit. consumer credit counseling services 
companies that do business in the state are required to 
register with the Attorney General. The registration 
process includes the posting of a bond. Actions that 
!)ave been taken pgainst consumer credit cou~seling 
services companies' were' ·the result of· the companies' 
failure to post a bond or contact the Attorney General's 
office. According to the testimony there are about 
25 consumer credit counseling services companies 
registered in the state; however, about 15 to 
20 companies may be doing business in the state 
without following the bond and registration requirements. 
Complaints regarding consumer credit counseling 
services companies are received by the Attorney 
General's office. It was noted that there are three to fiv, 
enforcement actions per year against consumer credit 
counseling services companies. According to the 
testimony, most of the consumer credit counseling 
seryices companies, whicti are nonprofit, are legitimate. 

' The testimony 'indicated ttie Attorney General has 
recei.ved few complaints from consumers regarding 
debFriianagement services companies in the state; 
however, it was noted that the office has received 
complaints from bankruptcy trustees regarding these 
companies. According to the testimony, the deceptive 
practices among debt-management services companies 
have become a real problem over the past several 
years. The industry is ripe for abuse because the 
industry targets consumers who are desperate for help, 
and the Uniform Debt-Management Services Act may be 
a proactive way to prevent problems before they get to 
North Dakota. It was also noted that current law 
regarding consumer fraud is very broad and would allow 
the Attorney General to take action if needed; however, 
a specific law may allow the Attorney General to move 
more quickly against a company. According to the 
testimony, the Uniform Debt-Management Services Act 
would meld current consumer credit counseling services 
laws· with· the debt-management regulations. The 
testimony indicated that · the topic of regulating 
debt-management "companies is one of concern to 
consumer protection ·offices throughout the country. I, 
was noted, 'however, that many of the states do not like 
the uniform Act because it does not provide enough 
consumer protection. 



The committee also received testimony regarding the 
appropriate agency to administer the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. According to the 

Aiestimony, while both the Attorney General and the 
.Department of Financial Institutions are willing to 

administer the regulation provided for in the uniform Act, 
the Department of Financial Institutions would be the 
more appropriate agency. The testimony indicated that 
the regulation of debt-management services companies 
in other states is typically done by either a consumer 
fraud department or a banking department. 

Testimony from the Department of Financial 
Institutions indicated that there are concerns about some 
of the provisions in the Uniform Debt-Management 
Services Act. The testimony indicated that one of the 
concerns is whether to require licensure of both for-profit 
and nonprofit companies. According to the testimony, if 
the state is going to regulate the industry, both types of 
companies should be regulated. The testimony 
indicated that the department would prefer licensing over 
registering as a method of regulating debt-management 
companies because when a license is issued the license 
can be revoked for violations. It was estimated that 
there may be 100 to 200 companies that potentially 
could be licensed under the uniform Act. It was 
suggested that any legislation should address the 
collection of fees and the department's ability to issue 
enforcement actions that are consistent with other 
entities that the department licenses. It was noted that 

Mgnificant resources for licensing, bonding, and 
w;;onitoring will be needed to regulate the 

debt-management services industry. It was estimated 
that two to three FTE positions would be necessary to 
handle the regulation of the debt-management services 
companies that would be licensed in the state. The 
testimony indicated that the goal is to have a law that 
provides for accountability but that allows legitimate 
companies to do business. 

During the course of the committee's study, the 
committee considered a bill draft relating to the 
regulation of debt-settlement providers. According to 
testimony, the bill draft incorporated some of the 
provisions of the uniform Act but also included provisions 
modeled after current North Dakota consumer protection 
laws, as well as provisions contained in Illinois 
debt-settlement provider legislation. Testimony in 
explanation of the bill draft indicated the changes were 
made to the uniform Act to make the legislation more 
workable for North Dakota consumers. It was noted that , 
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the uniform Act only requires registration of the debt­
management companies; however, the bill draft would 
require licensure. Another distinction noted between the 
uniform Act and the bill draft was that the uniform Act 
allows for the regulation of either for-profit or nonprofit 
companies, or both; however, the bill draft would require 
the regulation of both types of companies. The 
testimony noted that the regulations in the bill draft do 
not apply to professions such as lawyers and 
accountants because those professions are already 
regulated and licensed by their respective licensing 
bodies. The bill draft retained private rights of action 
which would allow a person to sue a company in civil 
court. Under the bill draft, the Department of Financial 
Institutions would be responsible for the regulation of the 
debt-settlement companies, and the Attorney General 
would be given enforcement authority. 

The testimony indicated that the bill draft is consistent 
with other state laws. It was noted that many of the 
provisions of the Uniform Debt-Management Services 
Act are included in the bill draft but are located in 
different sections. The committee reviewed several 
documents that detailed the distinctions between the 
Uniform Debt-Management Services Act and the bill 
draft. 

Other testimony regarding the bill draft indicated that 
even if a federal law is enacted on debt-management 
services, a state law is helpful because a state is usually 
able to react much more quickly than the federal 
government. 

One committee member expressed concern about 
the bill draft and its deviations from the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. It was noted that the 
area of debt management is very complicated, and the 
state's laws will not be uniform if the bill draft is adopted. 
It was noted that while the intent of uniform laws is to 
attain uniformity across the country, a state does not 
have to adopt uniform Acts, and a state can change a 
uniform Act to suit the state's needs. Concern was 
expressed about the effect this bill draft would have on a 
company located in another state if the other state 
adopted the uniform Act and North Dakota did not. 

Recommendation 
The committee recommends House Bill No. 1038 to 

provide for the regulation of debt-settlement providers. 
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HOUSE JUDICIARYCOMMITTEE 
REPRESENTATIVE DUANE DEKREY, CHAIRMAN 

JANUARY 5, 2011 

TESTIMONY BY 
PARRELL D. GROSSMAN 

DIRECTOR, CONSUMER PROTECTION AND ANTITRUST DIVISION 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Mr. Chairman and members of the House Judiciary Committee. I am Parrell Grossman, 
Director of the Attorney General's Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division. I appear on 
behalf of Attorney General Wayne Stenehjem in support of House Bill 1038. 

This legislation providing for the regulation of debt settlement services is legislation that 
introduced by the Judiciary Interim Committee after a study of debt settlement practices and 
the Uniform Debt Services Management Act. The Attorney General recognizes the 
importance and benefit of uniform laws. However, the conduct and problems of fraudulent 
debt settlement service providers has rapidly outpaced the well-intentioned model legislation 
proposed by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform Laws in 2008. The 
Attorney General ultimately could not recommend to the Judiciary Committee or this 
Legislature the adoption of the model act without significant changes. In my 17 years with 
the Attorney General's Office I cannot recall any model uniform law that raised more 
discussion amongst my colleagues, the directors of Attorneys General Consumer Protection 
Divisions throughout the nation, due to concerns that the debt settlement model legislation 
simply did not meet the needs of actual fraud or industry abuse. I'm not certain of the states 
that have adopted the uniform law. I believe it is a very small number, perhaps less than 5 
states. 

Due to the rampant debt settlement fraud, this matter has been a topic of frequent discussion 
for Attorney General Stenehjem and other attorneys general throughout the country. He is 
particularly concerned about the consumer fraud in this industry. In 2010 Attorney General 
Stenehjem ramped up consumer protection enforcement in this area and has been working 
closely with the Department of Financia_l Institutions in a plan to more effectively protect North 
Dakota consumers. New legislation is the most important component in enforcement efforts. 
For this reason the Attorney General is supporting enhanced legislation which incorporates 
many of the model law provisions. 

Before detailing some of the financial concerns with debt settlement companies the Attorney 
General wants to inform you that debt reduction and debt settlement companies are some of 
the worst offenders of North Dakota's do not call laws. They often utilize pre-recorded 
messages without providing caller identification or use fictitious "telephone numbers" for 
which it is difficult to determine the source of the calls, often originating from outside the 
country. The calls are not necessaril~ made directly by the debt adjusting entities, but are 
made by entities seeking clients on thefr behalf. 
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I want to briefly inform you of the North Dakota complaints and enforcement. In 2010, the 
Attorney General's Consumer Protection Division (CPAT) received approximately 33 
complaints against companies that sold services categorized as "Debt Adjusting." These 
services included debt reduction, interest rate reduction services, debt negotiation and debt 
settlement services. The consumers reported to CPAT a total of $63,614.63 lost to these 
companies. As a result of complaint mediation, investigation and litigation, the Attorney 
General recovered a total of $45,066. 

If the Attorney General is initiating enforcement, why is HB1038 necessary? The conduct 
appears to be in violation of ch. 13-06 "Debt Adjusting" which prohibits debt adjusting by for 
profit entities. That chapter has criminal sanctions and no specific mention of any civil 
authority by the Attorney General. If the conduct is illegal we believe the Attorney General's 
authority is inherent, so we have used the statute, nonetheless, in conjunction with the 
authority in the consumer fraud law in chapter 51-15. State's attorneys prosecute crime and 
13-06 should be enforced by state's attorneys. They, however, are embattled with more 
serious crimes and likely aren't able to make debt settlement complaints a priority. Chapter 
13-06 would require a complete overhaul and HB 1038 more directly and effectively 
addresses the debt settlement issues. 

I have attached two consumer complaints that are not of particular or unique importance and 
demonstrate the nature of complaints by North Dakota consumers. One consumer paid 
almost $2,900 to the debt settlement company. Between May and June 2010 that sum was 
withdrawn from her bank account. About $2,600 was paid to the debt settlement company 
and $240 was retained for future negotiating. The consumer's first three months of payments 
went directly to the debt settlement company. That entity told her to quit paying her credit 
card bills. Shortly after, she started receiving constant daily collection calls. She alleges the 
entity did nothing to assist her. In June she was sued by the credit card company on a 
$24,000 obligation. Ultimately she retained an attorney and that particular debt was settled 
for $12,000. Another consumer maintains she paid a debt settlement company $7,100 
between May and November 2010 when she filed the complaint. The consumer complained 
the entity intended to keep about half of the $7,100 and had done nothing for the money. 

We have been advised by an individual'very involved with North Dakota bankruptcy filings 
that many bankruptcy debtors have unsuccessfully used the services of debt settlement 
companies, and after paying thousands of dollars for bad advice to stop paying their debts, 
ultimately turn to bankruptcy to try and solve financial problems that have substantially 
worsened during the debt settlement relationships. 

A coordinated, structured two-pronged licensing and enforcement statutory scheme appears 
to be the best approach to regulate the industry and ensure consumers receive the services 
they were promised for reasonable fees. Fees under chapter 13-07, the consumer credit 
counseling statutes, have been regulated for years. In our experience in enforcing chapter 
13-07 it is not the nonprofit entities that will take advantage of consumers in financial trouble. 
The victims of debt settlement fraud are well intentioned consumers who want to avoid 
bankruptcies and are vulnerable to sales pitches that falsely promise results. 
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The Attorney General encourages you to review, if time permits, the attached GAO report, 
"Debt Settlement. Fraudulent, Abusive, and Deceptive Practices Pose Risk to Consumers." 
The case studies and undercover calls are very informative of the industry abuses. I won't 
separately detail the findings but those findings are very enlightening. I have not had an 
opportunity to review the 11 page comments and attachments of The Association of 
Settlement Companies ("TASC"), a national association of settlement companies, submitted 
to this committee. In a nutshell, TASC will suggest that it is self-regulating and sets 
standards for their members. When considering TASC's comments the Attorney General 
directs you to the GAO report which notes that TASC's written standards for member 
companies, requiring strict adherence for members, explicitly state "No Members shall direct 
a potential or current client to stop making·•monthly payments to their creditors." Yet, the 
undercover investigation revealed a number of TASC members advised the undercover 
callers to stop making their monthly payments. We believe you should consider this 
information in deciding the effectiveness of TASC's written standards for its members. That 
report also details some very low success rates for debt settlement companies. 

The fees for debt settlement are heavily front end loaded. Many of the entities never deliver 
results. Consumers become very frustrated when they are sued after they are advised to 
stop paying their obligations and it is conveniently the consumer's fault for failing to follow 
through with a plan that isn't working. The debt settlement entity keeps the consumers' 
advance payments. Only the debt settlement entities are satisfied with that arrangement. 

There is an important balance in regulating relationships between consumers and 
businesses, and the Attorney General does not interfere with those relationships, absent 
compelling circumstances revealing fraud and abuse. The debt settlemenUdebt reduction 
industry, however, is unfortunately rampant with fraud and abuse and the regulatory balance 
here is grossly imbalanced to the serious detriment of North Dakota consumers. This 
legislation will allow legitimate debt settlement entities to conduct business in North Dakota 
and will protect consumers from fraudulent and abusive conduct. 

The Attorney General has some proposed amendments for the committee's consideration 
and I will attempt to explain those amendments and answer, as best I'm able, your questions. 

The Attorney General respectfully requests the House Judiciary Committee give House Bill 
1308 a "do pass" recommendation. 

Thank you. 
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CONSUMER COMPLAINT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL - CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 
SFN 7.418 (Rev.11-2009) •• 

lalned Against 

'Opllonal - (For Stallstical & 
When filling out this form, please keep In mind that Enforcement Purposes Only.) 

a copy of this complaint forin·may be fo,:warded to the party or firm complained against. 
PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM IN PENCIL 

Amount of money you have already paid: $ 7 11 0 , 59-- 1 Amount of money person or firm says you aUII owe: $ -

How would you like to have your complaint resolved? L.j I 
X lA-tv\ q,e·H1n' IJti.Cit:.,.'fl'37'64,,qg ':ll'l~ SClj T Ot.vei J43°?i; II') {YI, 

fus. T VV(,l.'5 'SLA-JqOO')•fcl --\1) 0/t i.,Lpi'.U-l,-\(:S fV\oh'+ln~ [;\.,yy) VY.l.vt'. /'16-i--

l:\D,\(n (l. 'H,, jVl'j :Tu-1z;i Ill, /\,Us \ul ~ ~ LhC\., @) c~~ (XLY)'d-. 
FIRST CONTACT BElWEEN YOU AND PERSON OR FIRM 

(CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

I contacted or went.to the firm's regular place of 
business. · 

O The firm contacted me in person at my home or 
. place of work. 

O I contacted or went to the firm's temporary place 
of business. 

0 I received a telephone call from the firm. 

0 I responded to a radionv ad, 
r- . 
,.. ·~ I responded to a written advertisement. 

lj) 1 received information in the maU from the firm. 

0 Yellow.pages of telephone book. 

0 On the Internet. 

Di~ you sign a contract or written agreement? 

Did you receive a contract or a receipt? 

Name of person(s) with whom you dealt, i,f any •. 

□ 
□ 
□ 
!RI 
121 
□ 
□ 

WHERE DID THE TRANSACTION TAKE PLACE? 
. (CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

At the firm's place of business. 

At my home. 

Away from the firm's place of business (for example, 
at your place of employment, etc.). 

Over the telephone. 

By mail. 

There was no transaction. 

On the Internet. 

··□ NO ~ YES - If ''YES" att~ch a copy 

~ NO 0 YES -- If "YES" attach a copy 

[(ltlllll"\ ':,U' fnr,.~ J~t m..!..,!, =t·n!..!...--t-!:....' -~~:....-'-j-""'-..i.:uu~!..!LL:....\;J-l,t~--~-------1 
;J- ' Have you contacted a private attorney or another agency? 

·curt action pending or completed? NO 0 YES - If ''YES", what was the result? 

CONTINUE WITH EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIDE OF FORM 



. CONSUMER CO.MPLAINT-COl>ITINUEDSFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) 

. EXPLANATION OF TRANSACTION 
Explain the facts and circumstances of the fraud, deception or misrepresentation fully and specifically. 

If you need more room, use add!Uonal sheets of paper and attach to Complaint. 

e s a emen s contame 1n s comp am are ue an accurate o e est o my now e ge. I wish to I e a comp amt 
against the part named. I understand the Conusmer Protection and Antitrust Division Is not permitted to engage In the private 
practice of law, and therefore Is not my lawyer or legal representative. I am, however, filing this complaint to notify the 
Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division of the activities· of the person/firm about which I have a complaint. 
Com lalnt forms not sl ned will be returned 
Dale Slgnalum 

ATTACHTHE FOLLOWING TO THE COMPLAINT 

1 - Copy of any contract or written agreement. · 
2 -. Copy of any receipt. ~ayGene 
3-~~:~~~tny~~n~~Ued c~ec __ ~r~o•--• i-~~cEJiD .· . 
4 - Copy of any written advertis ent. · 
5 - Copy of any corresponden NOV 1 9 2010 

Co y of an other related do ume ' ·p-- ~ ·cu·o 

Thank you for taking the time to complete 
this Consumer Complaint form. The 

f, rmatlon you have provided will help· us 
In our efforts to resolve your consumer 
p blem. 

o TO· consumE!r ro,e 1 

• Bismarck North Dako ____ _ 
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 
Ofnce of Attorney General 
·oateway Professlonal Center 
1060 E lnteretate Ave Suite 200 
Bismarck ND 68503-6674 

Wayne Stenehjem 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 



Clly Zip Code 
-s&Sol 

.__ ________ _._F~ 
Age• Sex• 
lol ~ 

'OpUonal • ( For SlallaUcal & 
Whan filling out this form, please keep In mind that Enforcement Purposes Only.) 

a copy of this complaint forin•may be forwarded to the party or firm complained agalnsL 
PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM IN PENCIL 

Date of Traneactlon Product or Service Involved 
· -4-ID 

FIRST CONTACT BElWEEN YOU ANO PERSON OR FIRM 
(CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

I contacted or went lo the firm's regular place of 
business; D The firm contacted me In person at my home or 
place of work. 

D I contacted or went to the firm's temporary place 
of business. 

D I received a telephone call from the firm. 

D I responded to a radlo/lV ad. 

D I rasp~nded to a written advertlsemenl · 

['.21:J received Information i_n Iha mall from the firm. 

□ Yellow pages of telephone book. 

D On the Internet. 

Did you sign a contract or written agreement? 
. , .. , ... " ..... . 

Did you receive a contract or a receipt? 

~ 

WHERE DID THE TRANSACTION TAKE PLACE? 
. (CHECl<i THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

D At the firm's place of business. 

D Atmyhome. 

D Away from the firm's place of business (for example, 
al your place of employment, etc.). 

1;8" Over the telephone. 

tJ Bymall. . 

D There was no transaction. 

0 On the Internal 

□ NO YES - If ''YES" attach a copy 

Nb . ~ES::.. If "YES" attach a copy . 

Have you contacted a private attorney or another agency? . 0 NO BYES-· If ''YES", ldenUfy below. 

~&Blll,\., 
urt a.ctlon pending or completed? 0 NO ~YES - If "YES", what was the result? 

CONTINUE WITH EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIDE OF FORM 
1.029'71 



CONS~Ml:R ,COMPLAINT• CONTINUED SFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) 

EXPLANATION OF TRANSACTION 
Explain Iha facts and circumstances of the fraud, decepUon or mlsrepresentaUon fully and speclflcally. 

If you need more room, use addltlonal sheets of paper and attach to Complaint. 

, 

asaeman conana n scompan ere uea accuraa o e as o my n e ge. s o eacompam 
against the part named. I understand the Coni.ismer Protection and AnUtrust Division Is not permitted to engage In Iha private 
pracUce of law, and therefore Is not my lawyer or legal representative. I am, however, filing this complaint to noUfy the 
Consumer Protection and AnUtrust Division of the acUvltles of the person/firm about which I have a complaint. 
Com faint forms not sl ned wlll be returned 
Dale Signature 

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING TO THE COMPLAINT 

1 - Copy of any contract or written agreement. 
2 - Copy of any receipt .. 
3 - Copy of any cancelled check or other proof of 

payment. 
4 - Copy of any written advertisement. 
5 - Copy of any correspondence. 
6 - Co of an other related documents. 

DTO: 
SUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 

Office of Attorney General 
Gateway Profosslonal Cantor 
1060 E Interstate Ave Suite 200 
Bismarck ND 68603-6674 

Thank you for taking the Ume to complete 
this Consumer Complaint form. The 
Information you have provided wHI help us 

-. - ,l!!. OIJr efforts to resobre your consumer 
O,'Jl~fli~mey General 

RECEIVED 

Sfr l u ZIJ10 

Consumer Protection 
Bismarck North Dakota 

· · · ·-----· ·--.+-,ayne Stenehjem · · 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 
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Highlights of GA0-10-593T, a testimony 
before the Committee on Commerce, 
Science, and Transp0rtation, U.S. Senate 

Why GAO Did This Study 
As consumer debt has risen to 
liistoriclevels,1a.growingmimber 
of for-profifdebt settlement ...•.•. 
ce>mpariies liave emerged. These 
companie11 say they will negotiate 
with consumers' creditors to 
accept a lump swri settlement for 
40 to 60 cents ·on the dollar for 
amounts owed oh credit ~ and 
other unsecured debt. . 

However, there have been 
allegations that some debt 

-

tt.1··• .•.. alli .. ~=~":_·. ve.':r_-~_ u_ JC_ e 
practices tbat\Jeave consumers In 

. worse 11Iwlcl~fC011ditiori. Fof ·. 
example; it11ias.beenallegedtl)at . 
they,\:'?mmo!ilY~ef~in . 
adylin!=/! Qf set;tl!il8,debts,or , .. . . 
withotitpro~ any services !it •. 
an,•a p#ctlce @:which the Federal 
Trade .Conuidssim1 (FTC) r,:,c~ttY 
anni>llllced a proposed ban due to 
its fuirin to consumers. .The . . 
Conimitt.ee asked .for an 
Investigation of these issues. As a 
result, GAO attetnpt:ed to (1) 
determine through.covert testing 
whether these allegations are 
accurate;.and,ifso, (2)detennine 
whether they .are widespread, .· 
citing specific closed cases. 

To achieve tllestl objectives, GAO 
c0nducted.c~ testing by t;alllng 
20 companieswhile]JOSirlg8'3 •. · · . 
fictitioiis cohstimers; made overt, 
unanriotinced site visits to several 
companies called; interviewed 
lndustey.sµ,keholders; and 
reviewed-Information onfederal 

•

. d state·legal actiOilS. GAO did .. · . 
cit use'the services of the • .·. 
omparues it called or attemptto 

verify the facts regarding all of the 
allegationsit fciund, 

Vi~-GA-~1t►.593T._~-ke~ componen~. · 
For more 1ntormat1on, contact GregDry' D. · 
Kutz at (202).512~22.or.kutzg@gao.gov. 

April 2010 · .. · 

DEBT SETTLEMENT 

Fraudulent, Abusive, and Deceptive Practices Pose 
Risk to Consumers 

What GAO Found 
GAO's investigation found that some debt settlement companies engage in 
fraudulent, deceptive, and abusive practices that pose a risk to consumers. 
Seventeen of the 20 companies GAO called while posing as fictitious 
consumers say they collect fees before settling consumer debts-a practice 
Fl'C has labeled as hannfuJ and proposed banning-while only 1 company 
said it collects most fees after it successfully settles consumer debt. (GAO 
was llllable to obtain fee information from 2 companies.) In several cases, 
companies stated that monthly payments would go entirely to fees for up to 4 
months before any money would be reserved to settle consumer debt. Nearly 
all of the companies advised GA O's fictitious consumers to stop paying their 
creditors, including accounts that were still current. GAO also found that 
some debt settlement companies provided fraudulent, deceptive, or 
questionable Information to its fictitious consumers, such as claiming 
unusually high success rates for their programs-as high as 100 percent. FI 
and state investigations have typically found that less than 10 percent of 
consumers successfully complete these programs. Other companies made 
claims linking their services to government programs and offering to pay $100 
to consumers if they could not get them out of debt in 24 hours. To hear clips 
of undercover calls illustrating fraudulent, abusive, or deceptive practices, see 
http://www.gao.gov/products/GA0-10-593T. 

Examples of Fraudulent or Deceptive Marketing Clalma by Debt Settlement Company 

New Government Programs! 
New free and easy programs are 

avallable for those whoa re In debt 
right now!Take advantage while 

they're still avalable. 

IF WE CAN'T GET YOU OUT OF DEBT IN 24 HOURS 

We'll Pay You $100 
Sourc.: Debt ltlC!lement tcnl>811'/ Web 1118. Images enhanced by GAO. 

GAO found the experiences of its fictitious consumers to be consistent with 
widespread complaints and charges made by federal and state investigators 
on behalf of real consumers against debt settlement companies engaged in 
fraudulent, abusive, or deceptive practices. Allegations identified by GAO 
involve hundreds of thousands of consumers across the country. Federal and 
state agencies have taken a growing number of legal actions against these 
companies in recent years. From these legal actions, GAO identified 
consumeµ3 who experienced tremendous financial damage from entering into 
a debt settlement program. For example, a North Carolina woman and her 
husband fell deeper into debt, filed for bankruptcy in an attempt to save their 
home fro;m foreclosure, and took second jobs as janitors after paying $11,00 
to two Florida companies for debt settlement services they never delivered. 
Another couple, from New York, was counted as a success story by an 
Arizona company even though the fees it charged plus the settled balance 
actually totaled more than 140 percent of what they originally owed. 

llnltAl"I ~AtAR r.nu-nmant A,-,.,..,,.,.1 .. hlU+u l"\M.,...,. 
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee: 

Thank you for the opportunity to discuss our investigation into fraudulent, 
abusive, and deceptive practices in the debt settlement industry. As 
historic levels of consumer debt have dramatically increased the demand 
for debt relief services, a growing number of for-profit companies have 
appeared, offering to settle consumers' credit card and other unsecured 
debt for a fee as an alternative to bankruptcy.' The companies say they 
will negotiate with creditors to accept a lump sum settlement less than the 
amount owed-purported to be as low as pennies on the dollar in many 
cases. In addition, these companies often say their programs can result in 
lower monthly payments for consumers than what they had been paying 
their creditors, and that their programs will help consumers get out of debt 
sooner than going through bankruptcy or making only minimum payments 
on their credit cards. They commonly use radio, television, and Internet 
advertising to solicit consumers. The marketing claims appeal to 
consumers who may be vulnerable, given the stress of their financial 
situations. 

Some consumers who have hired these companies have complained that 
they did not obtain relief from their debts and ended up in worse financial 
circumstances. For example, according to a sworn statement given to state 
attorneys, a 75-year-old New York woman ended up paying more than 
$5,100 to a company to settle only $3,900 of debt on one account. The 
company failed to settle a second one, which she ultimately paid off for 
about $1,000 more than what she originally owed. At the time she signed 
up for the debt settlement program, she had been a widow for several 
years and was working as a pharmacy clerk to help pay her bills and 
mortgage. She stated that she often neglected her own needs and accrued 
more debt trying to help her adult daughter care for two children and a 
sick spouse. She also stated that she was desperate for help and was easily 
sold on entering a debt settlement program through an unsolicited 
telephone ca.II and an offer to reduce her debts by 24 to 40 percent. Even 
though the debt settlement company cost her more than she originally 
owed, it still counted her as a success story. 

Federal and state agencies have made allegations that some debt 
settlement companies engage in fraudulent, abusive, and deceptive 

1Unsecured debts are those debts for which there is no collateral, such as most consumer 
credit card debl 
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practices. You asked us to conduct an investigation of these issues. As a 
result, we attempted to (1) determine through covert testing whether these 
allegations are accurate; and, if so, (2) determine whether these 
allegations are widespread, citing specific closed cases. To achieve these 
objectives, we conducted covert testing by calling 20 companies while 
posing as fictitious consumers with large amounts of debt; made overt, 
unannounced site visits to several companies called; conducted interviews 
with industry stakeholders, such as industry trade associations and the 
Better Business Bureau (BBB); and reviewed information on federal and 
state legal actions against debt settlement companies and consumer 
complaints. We did not actually use the services of any of the companies 
we called. 

For our first objective, we identified debt settlement companies by 
searching online using search terms likely to be used by actual consumers, 
and by observing television, radio, and newspaper advertisements. We 
selected companies from across the nation to call as part of our covert 
testing by using several criteria, such as (1) types of marketing claims or 
pitches, such as refund offers, service guarantees, or targeting of specific 
groups of consumers; (2) presence, if any, of consumer complaints 
through BBB and other resources; (3) represented size of businesses, to 
include both small and large companies; ( 4) availability of consumer­
friendly information on companies' Web sites, such as financial education 
resources, comparisons to other types of debt relief, or advice on handling 
credit card debt; (6) membership in various industry trade organizations, 
which requires adherence to specified standards of conduct; and (6) 
claims of advertising presence on television or radio. 1n one case, we 
identified a company through a spam e-mail message received by one of 
our staff members, which provided a link to the company's Web site.' The 
20 cases that we selected incorporated a range of debt settlement 
companies, including some that appeared to make egregious claims and 
others that appeared more reputable. We found that some of the 20 
companies we called are marketing companies that refer potential clients 
to other--sometimes multiple--affiliated companies. 1n most cases, we 
were unable to determine the exact business relationship between these 
entities. For the purposes of this testimony, our 20 cases represent the 
original company we called, plus any related marketers and any other 
affiliated companies with which we spoke. 1n addition, we called some 
companies more than once, depending on the circumstances. The findings 

2Spam is unsolicited "junk" e-mail that usually includes advertising for some product. 
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for these 20 cases cannot be projected to all debt settlement companies. 
For our second objective, we identified allegations against debt settlement 
companies from review of closed and open civil and crtminal 
investigations pursued ·by federal and state enforcement agencies over the 
last decade. We did not attempt to verify the facts regarding all of the 
allegations and complaints we reviewed. We also identified five closed 
civil and criminal cases where courts found the debt settlement companies 
liable for their actions and interviewed affected consumers. 

We briefed Federal Trade Commission (Fl'C) officials on the results of our 
investigation. In addition, we referred cases of fraudulent, deceptive, 
abusive or questionable information provided by the 20 debt settlement 
companies we called to Fl'C as appropriate. We conducted our 
investigation from November 2009 through April 2010 in accordance with 
standards prescribed by the Council of the Inspectors General on Integrity 
and Efficiency. 

For-profit debt settlement emerged as a business model as other, decades­
old forms of consumer debt relief came under increased regulation. 
Traditionally, consumers with large amounts of debt turned to nonprofit 
credit counseling agencies (CCA) for debt relief. CCAs work with 
consumers and creditors to negotiate debt management plans (DMP), 
which enable consumers to pay back unsecured debts to their creditors in 
full, but under terms that make it easier for them to pay off the debts­
such as reduced interest rates or elimination of late payment fees. In 
addition, CCAs often provide consumers with financial education and 
assist them in developing budgets. In order to qualify for a DMP, 
consumers must prove they have sufficient income to pay back the full 
balances owed to creditors under the terms of the potential DMP. As part 
of a DMP, CCAs contact each of a consumer's creditors to obtain 
information about what repayment options the creditors may be willing to 
offer to the consumer. The CCA then creates the final DMP and a 
repayment schedule, with payments typically spread over 3 to 5 years. 
Throughout the length of the DMP, the CCA distributes funds to each of a 
consumer's creditors after the consumer makes each monthly payment to 
the CCA NonprofitCCAs typically receive funding from consumers and 
from creditors . 

Many for-profit CCAs emerged as the level of consumer debt rose over the 
last decade, leading to new consumer protection concerns. Fl'C and state 
attorneys general took legal action against unscrupulous CCAs that 
engaged in deceptive, abusive, and unfair practices. For example, some • 
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CCAs charged excessive fees, abused their nonprofit status, 
misrepresented the benefits and likelihood of success of their programs, 
and committed other deceptive and unfair acts. The Internal Revenue 
Service ORS) also undertook a broad examination effort of CCAs for 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and revoked or terminated the 
federal tax-exempt status of some agencies. As federal and state actions 
cracked down on these consumer protection abuses, a growing number of 
consumers became unable to afford traditional DMPs. As a result, many 
companies began offering for-profit debt settlement services for 
consumers. 

Debt settlement companies offer to negotiate with consumers' creditors to 
accept lump sum settlements for less than the full balance on the 
consumers' accounts. The process typically requires consumers to make 
monthly payments to a bank account from which a debt settlement 
company will withdraw funds to cover its fees. Some companies require 
consumers to set up accounts at specific banks, while others allow 
consumers to use their existing bank accounts. These monthly payments 
must accumulate until the consumer has saved enough money for the debt 
settlement company to attempt to negotiate with the consumer's creditors 
for a reduced balance settlement.' 

Debt settlement companies typically charge a fee for their services and 
require payments either at the beginning of the program as an advance fee 
or after settlement as a contingent fee. Some companies structure the 
payment of advance fees so that they collect a large portion of them-as 
high·as 40 percent-'-within the first few months regardless of whether any 
settlements have been obtained or any contact has been made with the 
consumer's creditors. Others collect fees throughout the first half of the 
enrollment period in advance of a settlement. Companies that charge a 
contingent, or "back-end," fee generally base it on a certain percentage of 
any settle!"ent they obtain for consumers. They sometimes charge a small, 
additional fee every month while consumers are attempting to save funds 
for settlements. In addition, some debt settlement companies handle only 
one part of the overall settlement process, such as the front-end marketing 

3some creditors may sell a consumer's debt to a collection agency aft.er the consumer 
· misses payriients for a given period of time-typically 6 to 12 months. The collection 
agency will then attempt to collect payments from the consumer. In such cases, debt 
settlement companies will generally negotiate with the collection agency seeking the 
consumer's money. 
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or the negotiation with creditors, while other debt settlement companies 
conduct every part of the process themselves. 

Currently, there has been only limited federal action taken against debt 
settlement companies. Since 2001, ITC has brought at least seven lawsuits 
against debt settlement companies for engaging in unfair or deceptive 
marketing.• In August 2009, ITC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking 
to amend the Telemarketing Sales Rule (TSR) to enhance consumer 
protections related to the sale of debt relief services,• including debt 
settlement services.• In its notice, FTC offers multiple criticisms of the 
debt settlement industry and states that its "concerns begin with the 
marketing and advertising of the services, but also extend to whether such 
plans are fundamentally sound for consumers.• The proposed rule would 
amend the TSR to do the following, among other things: 

• prohibit companies from charging fees until they have provided debt 
relief services to consumers;' 

• require companies to disclose certain information about the debt relief 
services they offer, including how long it will take for consumers to 
obtain debt relief and how much the services will cost; and, 

• prohibit specific misrepresentations about material aspects of debt 
relief services, including success rates and whether a debt relief 
company is a nonprofit. 

In its notice, FTC demonstrates that the requesting or receiving payment 
of advance fees before debts are settled meets its criteria for unfairness, 
and therefore designates advance fees for debt settlement services as an 
abusive practice. FrC considers advance fees an abusive practice due to 
the following: 

'ITC's regulatory autltority related to false advemsing is contained in section 6{a) of Ute 
Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U.S.C. § 46(a)), which makes unlawful botlt "unfair" and 
"deceptive" acts or practices that affect interstate commerce. 

6The notice primarily discusses three categories of debt relief services-credit counseling, 
debt settlement, and debt negotiation. While some consider debt negotiation to be another 
term for debt settlement, FI'C refers to debt negotiation as a separate type of debt relief 
service. In this context, debt negotiation companies are those that offer to obtain interest 
rate reductions .and other concessions from creditors on behalf of consumers, but do not 
claim to obtain full balance payment plans or lump sum settlements for less than the full 
balance. See 74 Fed. Reg. 41988, 41997 (Aug. 19, 2009). 

'74 Fed. Reg. 41988 (Aug. 19, 2009). 

1Under· the TSR, advance fees are currently banned for several other industries, including 
credit repair services 31'_ld advance fee loans. 
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the substantial iajury to consumers caused by advance fees, based on 
the low likelihood of success for debt settlement programs and the 
significant burden on consumers paying advance fees--especially fees 
charged at the front end of a debt settlement program, which FTC 
states ultimately impede the goal of relieving consumers' debts; 
the iajury to consumers caused by advance fees outweighing any 
countervailing benefits; and, 
the business practices prevalent among debt settlement companies 
makirig the iajury to consumers reasonably unavoidable, such as 
representations in advertisements obscuring the generally low success 
rates of debt settlement FrC also states in its notice that many 
consumers entering debt settlement programs are counseled to stop 
making payments to their creditors in order to facilitate settlements, 
which has a harmful effect on these consumers' credit scores . 

Given the absence of specific federal law, some states have taken the 
initiative and enacted their own legislation regulating the debt settlement 
industry. The regulations vary widely from state to state, however. For 
example, Virginia's detailed legal framework requires debt settlement 
companies to apply and pay for an operating license, to enter into written 
agreements with potential customers that describe all services to be 
performed and provide the customer a right to cancel _at any time, and to 
charge only a maximum $75 set-up fee and $60 monthly fee, among other 
restrictions.' Other states, such as Arkansas' and Wyoming, 10 have chosen 
to simply ban most types of for-profit debt settlement companies from 
operating,in their states at all. Individuals who violate those states' bans 
are guilty of a misdemeanor and could face up to l year imprisonment in 
Arkansas and up to 6 months imprisonment in Wyoming. On the other 
hand, New York and Oklahoma, among others, have not yet enacted any 
laws specifically targeting this industry, thus leaving the public to rely on 
generally applicable consumer protection laws . 

'va. Code Ann.§§ 6.1-363.2- .26. 

'Ark. Code Ann. §§ l>-63--301 to -306. 

''wyo. Stat. Ann. § 33-14-101 to -103. 
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Covert Testing Shows 
That Some Debt 
Settlement 
Companies Engage in 
Fraudulent, Abusive, 
and Deceptive 
Practices 

Advance Fees 

Our investigation found that some debt settlement companies engage in 
fraudulent, deceptive, and abusive practices that pose a risk to consumers 
already in difficult financial situations. The debt settlement companies and 
affiliates we called while posing as fictitious consumers with large 
amounts of debt generally follow a business model that calls for advance 
fees and stopping payments to creditors-practices that have been 
identified as abusive and harmful. While we determined that some 
companies gave consumers sound advice, most of those we contacted 
provided information that was deceptive, abusive, or, in some cases, 
fraudulent. Representatives of several companies claimed that their 
programs had unusually high success rates, made guarantees about the 
extent to which they could reduce our debts, or offered other information 
that we found to be fraudulent, deceptive, or otherwise questionable. We 
did not actually use the services of any of the companies we called. A link 
to selected audio clips from these calls is available at: 
http://www.gao.gov/products/GA0-l0-593T. 

The debt settlement companies we called generally represented that they 
would collect fees before settling our debts-a practice FI'C has proposed 
banning due to the harm caused to consumers. We were able to obtain 
information about fee structures from 18 of the 20 companies we called 
while posing as fictitious consumers with large amounts of debt," and 
found that their fee structures generally recall the concerns expressed by 
FTC. Specifically, we found that 17 of the 20 companies represented that 
they collected advance fees before debts were settled. Company 
representatives told us that the advance fees are calculated based on a 
percentage of the consumer's debts to be settled, citing figures that ranged 
from 10 to 18 percent. Moreover, representatives from several companies 
told us that our monthly payments would go entirely to fees for up to 4 
months before any money would be reserved for settlements with our 
creditors. Only 1 of the 20 companies we called represented that it 
followed a contingent fee model based on a percentage of the reduction of 
debt it says it obtains for consumers. Representatives from this company 
said a fee equal to 35 percent of each client's reduced debt was charged. 
Some companies also represented that they assessed monthly 
maintenance.and other additional fees. One of the 17 advance-fee 

110f the two companies for which we were unable to obtain fee information, one company 
presented an audio recording of general information about its program, and one company's 
represent.ative told us we did not have enough debt to qualify for its program. 
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companies also revealed that it charged a contingent fee after each debt is 
settled based on a percentage of the debt reduction. 

FTC has banned advance fees in several industries, such as credit repair, 
based on analyses that determined these practices to be unfair because 
sellers often do not provide the services for which they charge. The agency 
has proposed a similar ban for debt settlement, stating that the advance 
fees cause substantial injury to consumers. FTC justified this stance 
toward debt settlement, in part, based on the following findings: advance 
fees induce financially strapped consumers to stop making payments to 
their creditors; and consumers are unlikely to succeed in debt settlement 
programs, given evidence from federal and state agencies that generally 
shows single-digit success rates." Moreover, FTC stated concerns in its 
notice that advance fees for debt settlement may actually impede the 
process of saving money to settle debts, especially substantial fees 
collected at the beginning of a program. Titis business model may be 
especially risky for consumers who are already in financially stressed 
conditions, given that interest, late fees, and penalties often continue to 
accrue on the consumers' accounts as they work to save money toward 
settlements. In addition, consumers with already limited financial 
resources may be unable to direct adequate funds toward saving for 
settlements if their resources are being devoted to paying fees. 

We asked representatives of some companies what services we would 
receive as we paid advance fees while saving money for settlements. These 
representatives generally stated that our advance fees would pay for 
financial education, updates from attorneys, and communications with our 
creditors-such as cease and desist letters, to attempt to prevent 
harassing telephone calls. One representative, however, was unable to 
provide an explanation of what services we would receive for our advance 
fees beyond the fact that her company's attorneys would "look at" our 
accounts every month. Several companies we called had basic financial 
education resources on their Web sites or provided links to such resources 
by e-mail. Industry representatives have stated that advance fees are 
needed to cover essential operating costs, such as overhead and providing 
the types of services mentioned above for their existing clients. However, 
FTC found that marketing and acquiring new customers make up a large 
portion of the operating costs for debt settlement companies. We were 

12Federal and state agencies have defined success as consumers being able to obtain the 
results that the debt settlement companies promised them. 
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Directing Consumers to 
Stop Paying Creditors 

• 

unable to verify whether any companies we called provide ongoing 
services for clients they enroll in their programs, given that we did not 
enter into business relationships with them. 

We also found that the companies we called generally follow a business 
model that poses a risk to consumers by encouraging them to stop making 
payments to their creditors, a practice that harms consumers because of 
the damage it typically causes to their credit scores. Representatives of 
nearly all the companies we called-17 out of 20-advised us to stop 
paying our creditors, by either telling us that we would have to stop 
making payments upon entering their programs or by informing us that 
stopping payments was necessary for their programs to work, even for 
accounts on which we said we were still current. The following quotes 
demonstrate some of the statements made by representatives of the 
companies we called regarding our payments to creditors: 

"You stop paying, uh, those payments out to those creditors. The only 
thing you're going to have to worry about is this payment here [ to 
company]." 

• "One-hundred percent of our clients stop making their monthly 
payments as soon as they enroll into the program." 

• "I won't tell anybody not to pay their bills; I said one-hundred percent 
of the clients who have been successful have stopped paying their 
bills." 

• "Say you enrolled in the program. At that point you would no longer 
make any of your credit card payments. All of them would go late." 

Among the 17 companies encouraging us to stop paying our creditors or 
representing that stopping payments is a condition of their program," 5 
were members of an industry trade group called The Association of 
Settlement Companies (TASC) at the time we made our calls. TASC's 
written standards, adherence to which is required of all member 
companies, explicitly state "No Member shall direct a potential or current 
client to stop mal<ing monthly payments to their creditors." A 
representative of 1 of these 5 TASC member companies told us that she 
could not direct us to stop paying our creditors, but later stated that if we 
could afford to make our payments then her program was not "the best 
solution" for us. In addition, a representative of 1 of these 6 TASC member 

ia As stated above, some companies we called referred us to one or more affiliates. We were 
unable to detennine the relationship between these companies and their affiliates. 
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Success Rates 

companies appropriately screened us out by telling us that we had too low 
ofincometo afford that company's program under the scenario we 
presented; he later described his company's program as requiring clients 
to stop making their payments. In addition to these 5 T ASC member 
companies, we spoke to a representative from another T ASC member 
company who told us that we did not have enough debt to qualify for that 
company's program. In addition, 4 of the companies that told us to stop 
paying our creditors or represented that stopping payments was a 
condition of their program were members of a different industry trade 
group called the United States Organizations for Bankruptcy Alternatives 
(USOBA) at the time of our calls. According to USOBA representatives 
whom we interviewed, its member companies do not tell potential clients 
to stop paying their creditors. We received particularly good advice from a 
representative of l additional USOBA member company-not among the 4 
listed above--whose representative told us that we should worry about 
taking care of our late mortgage payments before we worried about 
settling our credit card debts. 

Stopping payments to creditors results in damage to consumers' credit 
scores. According to F1CO (formerly the Fair Isaac Corporation), the 
developer of the statistically based scoring system used to generate most 
consumer credit scores, payment history makes up about 35 percent of a 
consumer's credit score. Moreover, the damage to credit scores resulting 
from stopping payments is generally worse for consumers who have better 
credit histories-such as consumers who maintained good payment 
histories prior to entering a debt settlement program that required them to 
stop making payments. In its notice, FTC also discussed the harmful effect 
that stopping payments has on consumers' credit scores. 

In several cases, representatives of companies we called claimed success 
rates for their programs that we found to be suspiciously high-85 
percent, 93 percent, even 100 percent. In its notice, FTC cites claims of 
high likelihood of success as a frequent representation in the debt 
settlement industry. The success rates we heard are significantly higher 
than is suggested by evidence obtained by federal and state agencies. 
When these agencies have obtained documentation on debt settlement 
success rates, the figures have often been in the single digits. For example, 
as part of an annual registration process in Colorado, the state's Attorney 
General compiled data on success rates for all debt settlement companies 
statewide. The data show that, from 2006 to 2008, less than 10 percent of 
Colorado consumers successfully completed their debt settlement 
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programs. Our case studies discussed below provide additional evidence 
of similarly low success rates. 

Industry-reported data have claimed a higher success rate for debt 
settlement programs. According to T ASC, data gathered from a survey of 
some of its largest member companies in 2009 shows that 34.4 percent of 
consumers participating in a debt settlement program offered by a TASC 
member company completed their debt settlement programs by settling at 
least 76 percent of their enrolled debts." A previous study released by 
T ASC in 2008 claimed overall completion rates between 35 and 60 percent. 
However, federal and state agencies have raised concerns with the 
methodology behind TASC's data. For example, these agencies have 
argued that (1) TASC's data were self-reported by its member companies, 
and may not reflect all member companies; (2) not every T ASC member 
company that submitted data defined completion in the same way; and (3) 
the fact that consumers complete a debt settlement program does not 
necessarily imply that these consumers successfully obtained the debt 
relief services for which they paid. We did not attempt to validate success 
or completion data from TASC or federal or state agencies. 

TASC and USOBA have cited several factors that might contribute to 
consumers' success rates in debt settlement programs, such as that most 
consumers entering debt settlement programs are in extreme financial 
hardship and may choose to quit their program after settling some debts 
and improving their financial situations. However, FTC stated in its notice 
that the prevalent fee structure in the debt settlement industry­
substantial up-front fees-may be a major factor in the generally low 
consumer success rates as well. TASC and USOBA have both offered 
suggestions for ways to boost consumer success rates, such as improved 
processes for determining consumers' suitability for debt settlement 
programs. 

Debt settlement success rates als.o play a key role in the BBB rating 
system for companies in the industry. Due to the volume and nature of 

14WhiJe T ASC requires its member companies to make a series of disclosures in its 
discussions with potential clients, the individual completion rate for each company's 
program or the 34.4 percent overall completion rate mentioned in TASC's study are not 
among the required disclosures. 

Page 11 GA0-10-598T 



•---------

• 

consumer complaints," among other factors, BBB recently designated 
debt settlement as an "inherently problematic" type of business and, in 
September 2009, implemented new rating criteria for debt settlement 
companies to reflect this designation. Under this designation, no debt 
settlement company may earn a BBB rating higher than a C -. 16 While BBB 
has designated either types of businesses as inherently problematic-such 
as pay-day loan centers, businesses that charge fees for publicly available 
information on government jobs, scientifically unproven medical devices 
and products, advance fee modeling agencies, and wealth-building or real 
estate seminars-debt settlement companies are the only type of business 
currently allowed by BBB to escape the inherently problematic 
designation if they provide evidence to BBB that they meet a series of 
criteria. These criteria require a debt settlement company to prove, among . 
other things, that: 

• It has substantiated all advertising claims, including claims relating to 
the benefits or efficacy of debt settlement; 

• It makes certain disclosures to consumers, including clear and 
conspicuous disclosure of program fees and the risks of debt 
settlement; 

• It has adequate procedures for screening out consumers who are not 
appropriate candidates for debt settlement; and 

• A majority (at least 50 percent) of its clients successfully complete its 
program and obtain a reduction in debt that is significant and exceeds 
the fees charged by the company. 

15Accorcling to data it provided to us, BBB has received thousands of complaints about debt 
settlement companies in recent years, with the number of complaints rising from 8 in 2004 
to nearly 1,800 in 2009. This figure may underestimate the total number of complaints 
related to debt settlement, as not all companies providing debt settlement services are 
classified as debt settlement companies by BBB. According to BBB, these complaints are 
related primarily to debt seWement companies: (I) charging advance fees without 
providing services as promised to consumers and sometimes without providing any 
services at all;· (2) failing to disclose important information to consumers, such as 
unannounced fees; and (3) failing or refusing to provide refunds to consumers. 

16 According to BBB, its rating system uses grades based on a proprietary formula that 
incorporates information known to BBB and its experience with the business under 
assessment. The ratings are intended to represent BBB's degree of confidence the business 
is operating in a trustworthy manner and will make a good faith effort to resolve any 
customer concerns. The rating system uses grades from A to F, with plusses and minuses, 
so that A ~ is the highest grade and F is the lowest. Some debt seWement companies may 
currently have a BBB rating higher than a C - because they were misclassified (e.g., 
characterized by BBB as something other than a debt settlement company) or because debt 
settlement does not represent a substantial portion of its services. 
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Guaranteed Reductions in 
Debt 

• 
Fraudulent or Other 
Deceptive Representations 

According to a BBB official, he was unaware of any debt settlement 
company that had yet successfully demonstrated that it met these criteria, 
as of March 2010. Officials from TASC and USOBA told us they strongly 
disagree with BBB's new rating system for debt settlement companies. 
According to these officials, the new rating system minimizes the 
importance of resolved consumer complaints, requires an unrealistic 
measure of programs' success rate--50 percent-and inhibits consumers' 
ability to differentiate between reputable and disreputable debt settlement 
companies. 

Representatives from some companies also guaranteed or promised that 
they could obtain minimum reductions in our debts if we signed up for 
their services. For example, some representatives stated that they would 
save us 40 to 60 cents on the dollar once they negotiated settlements with 
our creditors. In its notice, FTC cites claims of specific reductions in debt 
as an example of a consumer protection abuse in the debt settlement 
industry. 

We found examples of companies offering fraudulent or other deceptive 
information, such as using names and imagery for their services that 
indicates that their program is linked to the government. Table I below 
shows examples of fraudulent or deceptive information from companies 
we called. 
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Table 1: Examples of Fraudulent or Deceptive Information Provided by Debt Settlement Companies We Called 

No. 

1 

2 

3 

• 

Representation 

Debt settlement companies are "licensed and regulated" 
by TASC, which Is "like the SEC [United States Securities 
and Exchange Commission] lor stock traders." 

Stopping payments will "knock [credit score] down a 
couple of points ... However, unlike bankruptcy or any other 
credit counseling program, this only affects your credit 
while you're In the program." 

Debt settlements will be noted on consumers' credit 
reports as "paid in lull" or "paid as agreed." 

Company advertises a "National Debt Relief Stimulus 
Plan," 

Company promised that calls from creditors seeking 
money will "slow down and eventually stop" ii we just told 
our creditors we had hired the company. 

Source: GAO. 

Comments 

T ASC is a nonprofit trade association that lobbies lawmakers on 
behall of lhe debt settlement industry. It is not a licensing or 
regulalory authority. 

According to FICO, stopping payments to creditors as part of a 
debt settlement can drop credit scores anywhere between 65 to 
125 points. In addition, missed payments leading up to a debt 
settlement can remain on a consumer's credit report for 7 years 
even after a debt is settled. 

According to FICO, settlements are typically listed on consumers' 
credit reports as "settlement accepted on the account" or "settled 
for less than lull balance." 

The company's services are not affilialed with a government 
program or part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (the "stimulus"). 

Debt settlement companies cannot prevent creditors from 
contacting consumers. Companies often advise consumers to 
terminate all communication with their creditors, ask consumers to 
assign power of attorney lo them, and send cease and desist 
letters to creditors in an attempt to cut off further communications. 

Five of our cases are highlighted below. The companies in these cases · 
made multiple fraudulent or deceptive representations either to our 
fictitious consumers by telephone, on their Web sites and through 
company documents or to our staff during unannounced, overt site visits. 
Table 2 below shows basic information represented by these companies, 
including the location, fees, and industry trade association membership of 
each of these companies and their affiliates, if any. Cfable 4 in appendix I 
provides summary information on all 20 companies we called.) 
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Table 2: Representations Made by Select Debt Settlement Companies We Called 

No. Location of company and affiliates 

1 Florida; affiliates in Florida, 
Massachusetts, California, and New 
Jersey' 

2 Unknown; affiliates in Arizona, Texas, 
and California' 

3 Calfornia 

Calttornia 

5 California 

Fees• 
Advance fees based on 15% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments required throughout 
program 

Advance fees based on 12% of enrolled debt 
First three monthly payments go to fees 

$25 monthly maintenance fee 
Additional contingent fee based on 4 o/o of 
reduction in debt company obtains for clients 

Association membershipb 

TASC;' affiliates in TASC and 
USOBA 

Affiliate in USOBA 

Advance fees based on 16% of enrolled debt, TASC (at the time of our call) 
with monthly payments required throughout 
program 
First three monthly payments go to fees 
$100 fee for out-of-state clients 

Advance fees based on 17% of enrolled debt, TASC 
with monthly payments required throughout 
program 
First three monthly payments go to fees 
$840 maintenance fee (total throughout 
program) 

$623,50 trust account fee (total throughout 
program) 

Advance fees based on 15% of enrolled debt 

Sourm: GAO anatysla of Information obtained from debl 1att1eman1 companies. 

TASC (at the lime of our call) 

"Fee informaUon reflects tees disclosed to us; some companies may charge additional fees that were 
not disclosed. Debt settlement companies typically charge fees requiring payments either at the 
beginning of the program as an advance fee or aher each settlement as a contingent tee. Some 
companies structure the payment of advance fees so that they collect a large portion of them-as 
high as 40 percent-within the first few months regardless of whether any settlements have been 
obtained or any contact has been made with the consumer's creditors. Others collect fees throughout 
the first haH of the enrollment period in advance of a settlement. Companies that charge a contingent 
tee generalty base it on a certain percentage of any settlement they actually obtain for consumers. 
They sometimes charge a small, additional fee every month while consumers are attempting to save 
funds tor settlements. 

~some companies we called referred us to one or more affiliates. It was not atways clear to us exactly 
with which company or affiliate we were speaking, where the companies or affiliates were located, or 
what the relationships were between the companies and affiliates. In some cases, separate affiliates 
of the same company claimed to be members of different Industry trade associations. 

While Company 1 claimed to be a member of TASC, it appears this was a false representation. 

Company 1 made several fraudulent and deceptive representations. We 
identified Company 1 when one of our investigators received an 
unsolicited spam message through his private e-mail account advertising 
debt settlement services, with a mailing address in the country of Lebanon 
listed at the bottom. A link in the message brought us to a Web site 
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advertising "New Government Programs! New free and easy programs are 
available for those who are in debt right now! Take advantage while 
they're still avaiable [sic]." (See figure 1 below.) The Web site also featured 
logos for TASC and BBB, along with other insignias declaring "Satisfaction 
Guaranteed" and "Privacy 100% Guaranteed." When we called the number 
listed on the-Web site, a representative answered using the name of an 
affiliate different than the company name listed on the Web site. He 
explained that the Web site was a "generic advertisement" to spread 
information about his company. Throughout our conversation, he made 
multiple statements that we found to be deceptive or questionable. 
According to the representative, the "worst case scenario" for settlement 
of our debts would be "40 cents on the dollar." He stated that his company 
has helped 100 percent of its clients get out of debt in 3 years or less, and 
that "every. single creditor settles. There's not one creditor we haven't been 
able to reach a settlement with." When asked about the government 
programs advertised on the Web site, he replied "What we're offering is 
not part of any government program whatsoever .... It's just that the 
government is allowing this to take place at this time .... The government is 
putting pressure on banks to allow things like this so that, you know, 
there's no more bankruptcies or things along those lines." Even though the 
Web site displayed a TASC logo, we were unable to find either Company 1 
or this affiliate on TASC's member directory. The executive director of 
TASC confirmed to us later that neither Company 1-as it listed itself on 
its Web site-nor this affiliate is a member of the organization. The 
affiliate's Web site displays a logo for USOBA, and we confirmed its 
membership with that organization. 

Figura 1: Fraudulent or Deceptive Advertising Claims Featured on Company 1 's 
Web Site 

New Government Programs! 
New free and easy programs are 

available for those who are in debt 
right now! Take advantage while 

;,. 
they're still avaiable. 

,,..P,, , .. 
IF WE CANT GET YOU OUT OF DEBT IN 24 HOURS 

J We'll Pay You $100 
.••. 

Source: Debt aetUement company Web aJle. lmagaa enhanced by GAO. 
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Shortly after we called Company 1 the first time, we noticed that the Web 
site contained some changes-when we attempted to leave the Web site 
on later visits, a pop-up message appeared declaring "If we can't get you 
out of debt in 24 hours we'll pay you $100!" (See figure 1 above.) We called 
Company 1, again and a representative said that he was with Company 1. 
He later stated that he was actually with an affiliate of Company 1-a 
different affiliate than the first representative with whom we spoke. He 
described the Web site for Company 1 as a "landing page" used to attract 
business to his company. This second representative also offered 
deceptive or questionable information, such as a 93 percent success rate 
for his program. When asked about the government programs advertised 
on Company l's Web site, he replied that the government program was 
related to creditors' ability to obtain tax credits from the IRS for the debts 
they sell to collection agencies. Regarding the offer to get consumers out 
of debt within 24 hours, he said that this was for clients who have the 
financial resources to make a large lump sum payment at the very 
beginning of the program. However, he added that "ninety-nine point nine 
percent of the people that come to us do not have the ability to do that." 
When we asked about the risk of being sued by our creditors, he told us 
that "a judgment is nothing more than a fancy 1.0.U." We were able to find 
this second affiliate on TASC's member directory, and the executive 
director of TASC later confirmed that this affiliate is a member of TASC. 17 

We made a site visit to Company 1 in Florida The owner of Company 1 
admitted that the company does not really exist and is really just a 
marketing Web site, and told us he actually owns a different company that 
offers both debt settlement and mortgage modification services. He 
claimed that he did not know that Company l's Web site contained 
information about an alleged government program, and logos for TASC 
and BBB. However, he acknowledged that neither Company 1 nor his real 
company is a member ofTASC despite the logo featured on the Web site." 
When asked about the offer to get consumers out of debt within 24 hours, 
he replied that this was a "typo" and that the offer should say 24 months 
rather than 24 hours." Our investigators observed employees at the 

17We also identified an additional Web site at a different address that was nearly identical to 
the one that referred us to the two representatives discussed above, with the same phone 
number and logos for TASC and BBB, but listing what appeared to be a different company 
name entirely. 
1~ASC's executive director confinned that Company l is not a member. 

19Prior to our site visit, we found a testimonial from an alleged client on Company l's Web 
site claiming that Company I helped her to cut her monthly bills in half in 24 hours. 
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location listed for Company 1 representing on the telephone that they 
were employees of the second affiliate mentioned above. Moreover, when 
the owner. of Company 1 gave our investigators a copy of the script his 
employees use when speaking with potential clients, the text of the script 
implied that they were representatives of the second affiliate. We were 
unable to determine the actual relationship, if any, between Company 1, its 
affiliates, or the other company the owner claimed he runs. 

Company 2's online and radio advertisements feature multiple fraudulent 
or deceptive claims. The company's Web site advertises that its services 
will "Reduce balances to 40%- 60%, • "Eliminate excessive Credit Card 
Debt interest immediately," and "End late payment fee's [sic]." When we 
called Company 2, it referred us to at least 3 different affiliates. It was not 
always clear exactly with which company's representatives we were 
speaking." Representatives from these affiliates described Company 2 as a 
marketing group that referred potential clients to them. We also identified 
radio advertisements placed in several major cities purporting to be from 
Company 2, in which it claimed to offer a "goverrunent authorized" and 
"goverrunent approved" debt settlement program. When we called the 
telephone number listed in one of the radio advertisements, a 
representative answered from one of the affiliates of Company 2 that we 
had spoken to earlier. When asked about the goverrunent-approved debt 
settlement program, the representative acknowledged the radio 
advertisement and replied "it is goverrunent approved .... They allow for us 
to do this. You know, the banks received, you know, bailout money last 
year. I'm sure you saw it on the news. There has to be some type of 
assistance for people on a consumer level also.• According to this 
representative, Company 2 runs similar advertisements on television and 
radio stations nationwide. 

We were unable to visit Company 2 because we could not determine its 
physical location. However, we visited the affiliate whose representative 
discussed the radio advertisement with us, which is located in California 
Officials from this affiliate told us that their company is "the most 
legitimate 'debt settlement company,• and that their employees receive 

20 A recent report by the Maryland Consumer Rights Coalition stated that debt settlement 
companies "often seem a many-headed Hydra" with parent companies split from other 
divisions that handle the marketing and solicitation. The report further states that this 
division of services causes confusion for consumers trying to track the progress of their 
debt settlement, and for agencies attempting to enforce compliance. 
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commission based on the number of clients they enroll in the company's 
program. They also claimed that their company was not associated with 
Company 2, and refused to disclose to us the number of clients in their 
program or the total amount of consumer debt their company is currently 
handling. On two separate covert telephone calls we made to Company 2, 
representatives of this affiliate stated they were with Company 2 at the 
beginning of each call but later informed us that they actually were with 
the affiliate and that Company 2 handled their marketing. When asked 
during our site visit if we could see their call center, officials refused. 

Company 3 targets Christians for its debt settlement services by employing 
a Biblical marketing theme, both on its Web site and over the phone. 
Representatives of Company 3 told our fictitious consumers that they run 
a nonprofit ministry affiliated with their for-profit debt settlement 
company, with funds from debt settlement feeding into the ministry and 
missionary trips overseas. In addition, representatives told us that their 
program has an 85 percent success rate and that they would negotiate our 
debt down to 40 or 60 percent of what we currently owed. About the risk 
of being sued by our creditors, a representative remarked to us that "It's 
just a computer thing. I mean, sometimes there's a handful of them that 
they'll have reserved to go after and it's just random. But even if they were 
to do that in your case, it's just a small percentage; we'd be able to advise 
you at that time, too. You don't need an attorney in the matter or anything 
like that. It's just a civil thing." 

We visited Company 3 in California, where we found it located in a strip 
mall near a grocery store. The owner of Company 3 told us that he owned 
a mortgage company and sold cars prior to entering the debt settlement 
industry. Company 3 handles the front end of the debt settlement process 
by signing up clients, and uses a third-party company and law firm for the 
rest of the process. Most of the employees of Company 3 are contractors 
who earn $200 commission for each client enrolled, with bonuses for 
employees who enroll a high number of clients. According to Company 3 
officials, they enrolled approximately 1,200 to 1,300 new clients in the first 
2 ½months of 2010. When asked ifwe could see a copy of their IRS Form 
990 for the nonprofit side of their operation, the owner replied, "The Bible 
says you shquld never let the left hand know what the right hand is 

Page 19 GAO-10-693T 



----------

Company4 

Company5 

doing."" Company officials provided us with a sample of its contract, 
which states that "In the event Client comes into a lump sum of money and 
wishes to settle an account before original designated completion date, 
Client must first pay [Company 3] Fee. The remainder of the lump sum will 
be utilized in settling Client's unresolved program debt• The contract also 
states that Company 3 does not provide legal representation or any legal 
advice to its clients. 

We became interested in calling Company 4 when we noticed on its Web 
site that it advertised a "U.S. National Debt Relief Plan," with a logo 
depicting a shield filled with a U.S. flag. When asked about this plan, a 
representative stated that it was "a consumer advocacy program entitled 
[sic] to help consumers get out of debt" but that "it's not a government 
agency. We just take advantage of the fact that the government are [sic] 
giving money to the banks to get out of debt and we just show you and go 
through the route of settling out your accounts.• The representative also 
told us that our first three monthly payments would go entirely to paying 
fees with no money set aside for savings. He said that Company 4 uses this 
advance fee structure because, during the first few months of the program, 
the company would be setting up our account and mailing cease and desist 
letters to our creditors, and "to show that you have the commitment to be 
in the program.• 

When we visited Company 4 in California, officials told us that the 
company only handles the front-end marketing of the debt settlement 
process, and that it had enrolled approximately 1,000 clients in the first 2 
½ months of 2010. In early March 2010, TASC issued a statement on its 
Web site noting a recent increase in companies practicing deceptive 
marketing, including companies sending letters to potential clients 
resembling government documents and using terms like "U.S. National 
Debt Relief Plan.• Company 4 marketed the "U.S. National Debt Relief 
Plan," and is a member ofTASC. 

A representative of Company 5 advised us that we could not afford its debt 
settlement program because our fictitious consumer's income was too low 

21IRS Form 990 is a federal information return fiJed annually by tax-exempt public charities. 
Information reported on this return includes assets held, contributions received, and grants 
paid. 
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Allegations of Fraud, 
Abuse, and Deception 
in the Debt Settlement 
Industry Are 
Widespread 

and his expenses were too high. He suggested that we consider credit 
counseling or bankruptcy as options if we were unable to make substantial 
improvements in our budget. However, when we indicated that we may 
obtain a new job soon that would boost our income, he provided details on 
how Company 6's debt settlement program works. He told us that it 
generally takes about 7 to 8 months to save up enough money to begin 
negotiating settlements. When we asked what services we would be paying 
for during those first 7 to 8 months, he replied that our fees would pay for 
the ability to get out of debt within 36 months, and monthly education and 
updates from the company's attorneys. Company 6's Web site advertised 
that it can help consumers who are experiencing stress, anxiety, and 
depression associated with being in debt. When we asked about these 
services, the representative laughed and said these services are arranged 
through debt negotiators who will hold monthly strategy calls with us. 

We attempted to visit Company 6 in California, but found that it was no 
longer at the location listed on its Web site. Employees of several other 
companies in neighboring office suites told us that Company 6 had moved 
to another office down the hall, which was listed under a different 
company name. An official from this company denied knowing anything 
about Company 6, and claimed that his company did not provide debt 
settlement services. However, records we obtained indicate that the name 
of Company 6's owner is the same as the name on this official's driver's 
license. In addition, the Web site for this other company indicates that it 
does, in fact, provide debt settlement services. After we returned from our 
site visit, the Web site for Company 6 was down for maintenance. 

We found the experience of our fictitious consumers to be consistent with 
the widespread complaints and charges made by federal and state 
investigators on behalf of real consumers against debt settlement 
companies. We identified allegations of fraud, deception and other 
questionable activities that involve hundreds of thousands of consumers. 22 

We drew this figure from closed and open civil and criminal cases 
governments have pursued against these companies over the last decade. 
Our calculation likely underestimates the total number of consumers 
affected, since we obtained information from only 12 federal and state 
agencies about the ·clients within their jurisdiction that they identified in 

"We did not attempt to verify the facts regarding all of the allegations pursued by federal 
and state agencies that we ide~tified. 

Page 21 . GAO-10-593T 



., ________ _ 

some of the cases they pursued." Federal and state agencies have reported 
taking a growing number of legal actions against companies that offer 
these services in recent years. As mentioned above, since 2001, ITC has 
brought atleast seven lawsuits against debt settlement companies for 
engaging in unfair or deceptive marketing. The National Association of 
Attorneys General (NMG) said in an October 2009 Ietter to ITC that 21 
states brought at least 128 enforcement actions against 84 debt relief 
companies, including debt settlement companies, over the previous 5 
years." The group stated that the number of complaints received by the 
states about debt relief companies-especially debt settlement 
companies-had more than doubled since 2007. Lastly, the group noted 
that any business model requiring "cash-strapped consumers to pay 
substantial up--front fees" raised significant consumer protection concerns 
and agreed with a consumer group that called it "inherently hannful." 

Attorneys general from 40 states and 1 territory submitted the letter, 
saying they supported ITC's proposed rule changes to combat unfair and 
deceptive practices in the industry. They cited similar debt settlement 
activities that prompted their own enforcement actions, including the 
following: 

• collecting advance fees in many instances without providing services; 
• misleading consumers about the likelihood of a settlement; 
• misleading consumers about the settlement process and its adverse 

effect on their credit ratings; 
• making unsubstantiated claims of consumer savings; 
• deceptively representing the length of time necessary to complete the 

program; 
• misleading or failing to adequately inform consumers that they will be 

subject to continued collection efforts, including lawsuits; 

23We obtained information from the following agencies: Federal Trade Commission, U.S. 
Department of Justice, and state law enforcement agencies in Alabama, Colorado, 
Delaware, FlOrida, Illinois; North Carolina, New York, Texas, Vermont, and West Virginia 
They identified. clients through company records, individual complaints, and restitution 
paid. We rocUSed On select states with enforcement actions listed in a National Association 
of Attorneys General letter. We did not attempt to query all 60 states. 

. tl 
24 According fu the letter, the 128 enforcement actions listed in its attaclunent do not 
represent a cOmprehensive list of all cases filed or regulatory actions taken against debt 
relief companies. We did not attempt to verify the facts regarding all of the actions listed in 
the letter. Details regarding 3 of these enforcement actions are provided below, as case 
studies 1, 3, and 4. 
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• misleading or failing to adequately inform consumers that their 

account balances will increase due to extended nonpayment under the 
program; and 

• deceptive disparagement of bankruptcy as an alternative for debtors. 

The state attorneys general expressed concern the industry would grow 
exponentially given the current economic climate and a regulatory 
environment that allows substantial advance fees to be collected. They 
criticized the advance fees as providing minimal incentive for companies 
to perform services because they get paid whether or not they take any 
action on behalf of the consumer. They also noted that low set-up costs 
help in the promotion of debt settlement as a cheap business opportunity. 
They stated that they would continue to take enforcement actions against 
unscrupulous operators in the industry, but that they also believed the 
proposed FI'C rule changes would substantially aid law enforcement 
agencies in addressing harms caused to consumers. 

We developed case studies from five closed civil or criminal actions in 
which state or federal courts found debt settlement companies liable for 
fraudulent, unfair or deceptive actions that left clients in worse financial 
condition-bankrupt, owing more debt, and with lower credit scores and 
more judgments against them. We also examined the experiences of a 
consumer from each of these cases. Table 3 below shows key information 
from each of these five cases. Further details are discussed below. 
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Table 3: Select Cases of Debt Settlement Companies Engaged In Fraudulent, Abusive, or Deceptive Practices 

Company 
No. location 

1 Arizona: 
affiliates in 
Arizona and 
Florida 

2 New York and 
Vermont 

3 Florida 

FederaVstate 
agency 

New York Attorney 
General 

U.S. Attorney 
General 

North Carolina 
Attorney General 

Case details 

More than 500 New Yorkers withdrew from the debt settlement program after 
paying over $1 million in fees only to receive more debt, tarnished credit ratings, 
and increased collection calls and creditor lawsuits. 

Nearty half of the New York clients that completed the program during the Attorney 
General's Investigation, or 27 out of 64, ultimately paid more than they originally 
owed. 

Only 0.3 % of the New York clients realized the promised savings. 

A New York court found the company and its affiliates liable for statutory fraud and 
ordered restitution for clients who paid more than they owed. 

An attorney and his law firm associates mlsapproprtated and embezzled millions of 
dollars from 15,000 clients seeking debt reduction help over a 6-year period, forcing 
some customers Into bankruptcy. 

The group lured consumers through television and radio advertisements by falsely 
claiming a 50 lo 70 % savings off unsecured debt, an improvement in credit scores 
and bankruptcy avoidance. 

Only 8 % of the group's clients completed the program. 

Clients paid advance fees for these services and funded escrow accounts from 
which their creditors were supposed to be paid. The fees were not considered 
"earned" until consumer debts were settled. 

The fees collected were used in part to fund huge payments to the attorney and two 
of his associates before they provided any services to clients. 

The client escrow accounts were drawn upon, in part, to cover overdrafts from the 
law firm's operating account and to make payments to the attorney's wife, among 
other things. 

The law firm filed for bankruptcy in 2003. 

A federal jury found the attorney guilty in 2005 on multiple felony counts, including 
fraud. His six associates pied guilty to federal charges. 

Two companies and their owners ran an illegal debt settlement business using 
unfair and deceptive practices, collecting over $500,000 from about 220 North 
Carolinians who rarely obtained the services they purchased. 

North Carolina law prohibits anyone from acting as a for-profit intermediary between 
residents and their creditors for the purpose of reducing, settling, or altering debt 
payments, except in limited circumstances. It specifically bans advance fees for 
these services. 
The companies and their owners, one of whom was an attorney, marketed their 
services in part using third-party "referral agents" who received compensation for 
directing consumers to the group. 

Many clients dropped out of the program dissatisfied. Few received refunds or 
obtained settlements with their creditors. Many filed for bankruptcy. 

A North Carolina court found that the group's actions violated state law and banned 
the parties from doing any debt-related business with state residents. In a separate 
action In January 2009, the attorney was disbarred for a period of 5 years. 
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Company 
No. location 

4 Maryland 

California 

Case Study 1 

• 

Federal/stats 
agency 

Maryland Attorney 
General 

Federal Trade 
Commission 

Case details 

A Maryland attorney, his law firm and their marketers used unlair and deceptive 
trade practices to collect $3.4 million from about 6,200 clients over a 2 year period 
to settle debt but provided little or no services in return, causing harm to consumer 
credit histories and credit scores. 
The group told clients that its employees were qualilied credit counselors capable of 
recommending the most appropriate action, but instead it provided virtually the 
same advice to everyone-enter debt settlement plans profitable lor the group. 

The group reached an agreement In 2007 with the Attorney General, agreeing to 
immediately cease and desist selling unlicensed debt settlement services, pay 
restitution to customers, and pay investigatory costs and a line to the state 
consumer protection office. 

The Attorney General liled a lawsuit In 2008 against the group lor violating the 
terms of their agreement and the state's consumer protection act. The court ordered 
the group to fulfill the terms of its previous agreement, pay a fine and costs of 
$180,000, and pay restitution of almost $2.6 million. 

Four related California companies lured more than 1,000 consumers into a debt 
settlement program through false promises of reducing debt, halting collection calls, 
removing negative credit report information, and hofding payments In trust to settle 
accounts--from which, the FTC alleged, more than $2 million later went "missing." 
FTC !ilea a complaint against the companies in August 2002, alleging that 
numerous consumers who enrolled in the program saw their indebtedness increase 
after incurring late fees, finance charges, and overdraft charges. Many ultimately 
liled for bankruptcy. · 

The federal court entered default judgments against all tour companies, banning 
them from engaging in any debt settlement services and ordering them to 
collectively pay $1. 7 million in restllutlon to consumers, among other actions. 

Source: GAO analy5II °' case Studies dlSQJSS8d below. 

An Arizona company and its affiliates used false advertising and deceptive 
marketing to fraudulently induce more than 500 New Yorkers into paying 
over $1 million in fees for a debt settlement program that left them with 
more debt, tarnished credit ratings, and increased collection calls and 
creditor lawsuits. The group told clients that consumers typically saved 
between 26 percent and 40 percent, including all fees and charges. It also 
promised to substantially reduce credit card debt in as little as 24 months. 
However, according to the New York Attorney General, only 0.3 percent of 
the company's clients realized these savings and few ever completed the 
program. Only 64 of the group's New York clients finished the program 
during the time period of the Attorney General's investigation (between 
January 2006 and September 2008); another 637 withdrew from the 
program after paying fees. Those who finished the program complained of 
being deceived and harmed by the group. Nearly half of them actually paid 
more than they owed. For example, one said, "I actually paid 87 percent 
more than what was originally due." Another said that the company "did 

Page 26 GAO-10-593T 



•---------

• 

not settle any of my accounts until I was actually sued by my creditors." A 
state court found the group liable for statutory fraud, ordered it to pay 
restitution to clients who completed the program but paid more than they 
owed, and prohibited it from doing business with consumers in New York 
unless it posted a $500,000 performance bond. 

The group required clients to authorize electronic debits from their 
personal bank accounts in an amount that typically ranged between $300 
and $1,000 each month, depending on the consumers' cash flow and 
expected settlements. The group told clients that once the funds accrued 
to a sufficient amount, it would negotiate with creditors for a settlement. 
Clients were instructed to stop making credit card payments during this 
time and to cease all communication with their creditors. The group did 
not include most of the program fees it charged in its calculation of the 
"savings" clients would achieve. The fees included the following: $399 for 
"set up"; an amount equal to three times the clients monthly payment for 
"enrollment"; $49 per month for administrative and bank fees; and an 
amount equal to 29 percent of the difference between the amount 
originally due and the settlement amount for a "final fee." The set-up and 
enrollment fees had to be paid in full before the group would allow money 
to accrue for a settlement. 

The experience of one New York family exemplifies the harm suffered by 
the group's clients. According to a sworn statement the wife gave to state 
attorneys, the couple owed about $21,700 in credit card debt accumulated 
after the husband was laid off. In 2006, the wife received a call from a 
telemarketer saying that the Arizona company had looked into her family's 
credit history and found that it could cut their credit card debt in half. She 
and her husband joined the program and began making $325 in monthly 
payments to settle five accounts, even though they were current on their 
bills. "Who wouldn't want to save 50 percent on her credit cards?" the wife 
told state attorneys. The couple was advised to stop paying their creditors, 
which they did after being told by the company that no penalties and 
interest would accrue as a result. The couple was soon being harassed by 
their creditors, who called at all times of day, including evenings and 
weekends. Four of the couple's small accounts were settled during this 
time. However, the creditor with the largest balance, which totaled about 
$19,000, took the couple to court. The pair withdrew from the program and 
settled thiflawsuit for $28,000, including $9,000 in penalties and interest. 
They subsequently had to pay this creditor $300 per month. The wife 
called thi~1 outcome "disastrous for us." Nevertheless, the couple received 
a "congratulations" letter from the company, saying the pair had paid only 
79.3 percent of what was originally owed on the four settled accounts. 
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Case Study2 

Documents that the couple gave state attorneys, however, show otherwise: 
after adding the $2,506 in fees they were charged, the pair actually paid 
more than 140 percent of what was originally owed on the four accounts. 
The wife told state attorneys that the Arizona company "failed our family 
in every respect, and we are counted as one of its success stories!" 

An attorney and his law firm associates defrauded about 15,000 clients 
seeking debt reduction help, causing them to Jose millions of dollars and 
forcing legions of them to file for banlcruptcy. The group lured consumers 
through television and radio advertisements, falsely claiming a 50 to 70 
percent savings off unsecured debt, an improvement in credit scores and 

·•banlauptcy avoidance. The group, with offices initially in New York and 
later in Vermont, further promised that if clients did not receive a 
settlement, they would be entitled to a full refund. Clients paid fees for 
these services and funded escrow accounts from which their creditors 
were supposed to be paid. Under the terms of the contract that clients 
signed, the fees were not considered "earned" until consumer debts were 
settled. The group, however, did not reduce debt for most of its clients 
( only 8 percent completed the program, according to a witness cited by 
the U.S. Department of Justice) and failed to pay refunds to many of those 
who withdrew from the program or were forced into banlauptcy. Instead,. 
the fees collected were used in part to fund huge payments to the attorney 
and two of his associates before they provided any services to clients. The 
client escrow accounts, meanwhile, were drawn upon to cover overdrafts 
from the law firm's operating account and make payments to the 
attorney's wife, among other things. The law firm filed for bankruptcy in 
2003. A federal jury found the attorney guilty in 2006 on multiple felony 
counts, including fraud. His six associates pied guilty to federal charges. 

To enter the law firm's debt settlement program, clients signed an 
agreement that authorized monthly automatic deductions from their bank 
accounts. The first four payments often went into a retainer account to 
collect advance fees owed to the firm, despite the fact that the clients had 
pressing debt problems. The advance fees equaled about 26 to 28 percent 
of the total projected savings from the client's debt settlement plan. 
Thereafter, al>out half of payments also were deposited into an escrow 
account to settle client debts held by creditors until the retainer account 
was fully funded. Subsequent monthly deductions went into escrow 
account until enough money accrued to make a settlement offer on behalf 
of the client. Although not formalized in written contract, many clients 
were instructed to stop making their minimum monthly payments to 
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creditors. They were told that continuing to pay creditors would inhibit 
the firm's ability to reach a settlement. 

One of the flan's New York clients who federal authorities interviewed 
enrolled in the debt settlement program after hearing an advertisement on 
the radio. The woman, who owed $60,000, was experiencing marital 
problems and feared becoming a single mother with small children and a 
large amount of debt. She called the toll-free number and arranged for a 
meeting at a New York office. One of the flan's associates, who later 
pleaded guilty to interstate transmittal of stolen money and preparing a 
false tax return, told her that the advance fees she paid would be held in 
trust until all of her debt was settled. She paid about $7,000 to $8,000 to the 
finn to settle her debts until one of her creditors obtained a judgment 
against her, causing her bank account to be frozen. When she contacted 
the finn to withdraw and ask for a refund, her calls were not returned. She 
ultimately filed for bankruptcy. The flan never secured a settlement on he1 
behalf. She filed a civil lawsuit and won a default judgment against the 
finn for $10,000 including attorney fees, but told us she never recovered 
any money from the court decision. In relating her experiences with the 
debt settlement company, she described the attorney as "a ghoul and a 
vulture ... preying on vulnerable consumers." 

Two F1orida companies and their owners ran an illegal debt settlement 
business using unfair and deceptive practices, collecting over $500,000 
from about 220 North Carolinians who rarely obtained the services they 
purchased and found themselves in far worse financial positions. North 
Carolina law prohibits anyone from acting as a for-profit intermediary 
between residents and their creditors for the purpose of reducing, settling 
or altering debt payments, except in limited circumstances. The state ban 
specifically includes situations where an individual is receiving advance 
fees to provide these services. To enforce these laws, the North Carolina 
Attorney General filed a complaint in February 2008 accusing the group of 
operating a "classic advance-fee scam, designed to extract up-front fees 
from financially strapped consumers whether or not any useful services 
are performed." The companies and their owners, one of whom was an 
attorney, marketed their services in part using numerous third-party 
"referral agents" who received compensation for directing consumers to 
the group. One such referral agent listed a local telephone number which, 
when dialed, actually rang a telemarketing "boiler room" in Massachusetts 
or F1orida. The group and its agents told consumers that their unsecured 
debts could be reduced by up to 60 percent in as little as l to 3 years and 
thus avoid bankruptcy. The group typically charged clients an advance fee 
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of 15 to 25 percent of their total debt, paid through monthly debits from 
their bankaccounts. It also advised them to cease all communication and 
payments to creditors, stating that it could stop any harassment and 
provide "legal protection." When consumers were sued, however, the 
group gave them no legal assistance. They also experienced difficulty in 
contacting the group and were often put on hold, disconnected, or "given 
the runaround," state prosecutors said. Many clients dropped out of the 
program dissatisfied. Few received refunds or obtained settlements with 
their creditors. Many filed for bankruptcy. A North Carolina court found 
that the group's actions violated state law and banned the parties from 
doing any debt-related business with state residents. State prosecutors 
ultimately secured refunds for some of the group's clients. In a separate 
action in January 2009, the attorney also was disbarred for a period of 5 
years . 

An example of the service the group's clients received can found in the 
experience 9f a rural North Carolina couple. According to the wife's sworn 
statement, the pair found it increasingly difficult to meet their monthly 
financial obligations after the husband became ill and temporarily lost his 
income. They searched for ways to reduce their unsecured debt on the 
Internet and found what turned out to be one of the group's referral 
agents. They were told that the initial monthly payment of about $1,700 
would be deducted from their bank account for the first 3 months of the 
program to cover attorney fees. Subsequent monthly payments of about 
$1,200 were to go towards settlements with creditors. The couple joined 
the program in hopes of avoiding bankruptcy and made their first 
installment in February 2007. Seven months later, the wife called the group 
for a status on her account and was told the couple had only accrued 
about $3,000 in savings, despite paying the group over $11,000 to date. She 
also learned that none of their credit accounts had been settled and they 
had been charged additional attorney fees of $499 each month·. They 
withdrew from the program and demanded a full refund, since the group 
had done nothing "other than take our money with no accountability." The 
couple started receiving collection notices and threats of lawsuits. Their 
debts had now increased since they were no longer making payments to 
creditors. In an attempt to save their home from foreclosure, the couple 
filed for Chapter 13 bankruptcy. They also took second jobs as janitors to 
help pay off their debts. The wife told us that during the day she works as 
a bank teller and her husband is employed as an electrical engineer. One 
of their creditprs ~uggested they call their state Attorney General. "My 
husband and I are· worse off than before we entered into an agreement 
with (the group) for debt settlement services," the wife said in her sworn 
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statement. The state Attorney General ultimately secured a full refund for 
the couple. 

A Maryland attorney, his law firm, and their marketers used unfair and 
deceptive trade practices to collect $3.4 million from about 6,200 clients 
over a 2-year period to settle debt but provided little or no services in 
return, causing harm to consumer credit histories and credit scores. The 
group told its clients that they could settle debts with creditors for half of 
the total amount owed, but either did not do so or negotiated agreements 
that saved significantly less than promised. Only $811,136---less than a 
quarter of the money the group collected- was either paid to creditors or 
refunded to clients. Moreover, about $240,000 was taken from client trust 
accounts to pay for the law firm's debt and expenses. The group told 
clients that its employees were qualified credit counselors capable of 

· recommending the most appropriate action, but instead it provided 
virtually the same advice to everyone - enter debt settlement plans 
profitable for the group. The Maryland Office of the Attorney General 
began an investigation of the group because it was not licensed to provide 
debt settlement services in the state. The group reached an agreement in 
2007 with the Attorney General, agreeing to immediately cease and desist 
selling unlicensed debt settlement services, pay restitution to customers, 
and pay investigatory costs and a fine to the state consumer protection 
office. However, the Attorney General filed a lawsuit in 2008 against the 
attorney, his law firm, and their marketers accusing them of continuing to 

-provide debt settlement services, thus violating the terms of their 
agreement and the state's consumer protection act. The court ruled in 
favor of the Attorney General and ordered the group to fulfill the terms of 
its previous agreement, pay a fine and costs of $180,000; and pay 
restitution•of almost $2.6 million. As of March 2010, the attorney had only 
paid $20,000,. 

Clients made numerous complaints to the Maryland Office of the Attorney 
General, detailing the financial harm they suffered from the group. A New 
Hampshire couple struggling to pay their bills joined the debt settlement 
program in August 2007 and authorized the firm to automatically deduct 
about $650 from their checking account each month, according to a letter 
they sent to the Attorney General. Although the couple had approximately 
$41,000 inicreditcarct·debt when they joined the program, the wife told us 
that they h'ad a good credit history and had never missed a payment. 
However, she said that they were told they had W-stop making payments 
to their creditors when they entered the program. The collection letters 
and phone calls from creditorsstarted "arriving constantly" by-the end of 
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September, the couple told the Attorney General. Threats of lawsuits 
followed 2 months later. The couple withdrew from the program in 
February 2008, after paying the firm $3,895 and receiving no relief from 
their debts. They told the Attorney General they were so far in default on 
their credit cards, with interest and fees added on top, that they 
considered bankruptcy to be the best option available to them. According 
to the wife, their credit score dropped from 720 down to 605 as a result of 
their experience with this debt settlement program. She added that they 
ultimately entered into a consumer credit counseling program after they 
learned that state law requires such counseling prior to bankruptcy. When 
asked to compare the two different debt relief programs, she said that 
credit counseling is "legit" and helps consumers to get out of debt, but that 
"debt settlement is a crock." 

Four related California companies lured more than 1,000 consumers into a 
debt settlement program through false promises of reducing debt, halting 
collection calls, removing negative credit-report information, and holding 
payments in trust to settle accounts-from which, ITC alleged, more than 
$2 million later went "missing." The companies' telemarketers told 
consumers that the group could cut their debt by as much as 60 percent in 
exchange for a nonrefundable fee, thus improving their financial status. 
The companies did not disclose that the fees typically amounted to 
hundreds or thousands of dollars. They said that the monthly payments 
withdrawn from consumers' bank accounts would be held in trust to settle 
their debt at a reduced amount. Consumers were instructed to 
immediately stop paying their unsecured creditors so that they would be 
considered a "hardship," putting them in a better position to negotiate 
settlement terms. The companies stated that they would contact the 
creditors and tell them to cease all contact with their customers, thus 
preventing collection calls. They also told consumers that any negative 
information that appeared on their credit report would be removed at the 
conclusion of the program. 

ITC filed a complaint against the companies in August 2002, alleging that 
numerous consumers who enrolled in the program saw their debt increase 
after incurring late fees, finance charges and overdraft charges. Negative 
information often appeared on the consumers' credit reports-such as 
charge-offs, collections and wage garnishments-and will stay on their 
record. for a period of up to 7 years. ITC determined that in numerous 
instances, the companies did not contact consumers' creditors or 
collectors, nor did they return calls. ITC later determined that more than 
$2 million the companies collected to be held in trust for making 
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settlements was missing. Given their worsened financial condition, many 
consumers ultimately filed for bankruptcy. The federal court entered 
default judgments against all four companies, banning them from engaging 
in any debt settlement services and ordering them to collectively pay $1. 7 
million in restitution to consumers, among other actions. FTC brought suit 
against four executives of the companies, but these cases ended in 
settlement agreements without any liability or fault established. As part of 
the settlements, however, the executives agreed to be permanently banned 
from participating in debt settlement services and to pay between 
approximately $220,000 and $2.6 million, depending on the amount of 
consumer injury that stemmed from their activities. The monetary 
judgments were largely suspended, except in two instances where the 
executives surrendered property and other assets to help satisfy what they 
owed, because of their inability to repay consumers. 

The experience of a secretary from Riverside, Calif., illustrates the harm 
that FTC determined the companies to have caused consumers. She joined 
the program after receiving an e-mail in August 2000 and being told by a 
representative from one of the companies that she could be completely 
out of debt in 16 months, according to a written statement she gave to FTC 
under penalty of perjury. At the time, she made about $27,000 a year, owed 
a total of $7,000 in credit card debt and was making little progress towards 
reducing her balances given that her salary barely covered rent, food, car 
payments,-and insurance. The company also offered a debt management 
class, which she stated had appealed to her because she wanted to learn 
how to better manage her money. She never received the promised 
training, though, despite asking for it several times. Three months after she 
joined the program, letters from creditors started arriving threatening legal 
action if she did not pay. Counselors with her debt settlement company 
told her to ignore them, calling the move a "scare" tactic. She started to 
panic after she received a court summons in late 2000 stating that a 
lawsuit had been filed against her. A counselor again told her not to worry, 
that everything would be okay. After a court summons arrived from a 
second creclit card company, a counselor told her to fax the documents to 
the company and that staff would deal with it. The state courl:!i, however, 
entered two judgments against her in March 2001. She later received 
notice that her wages would be garnished by 25 percent. "I was frantic," 
she stated. "I was barely making ends meet on my salary." By July 2001-
less than a year after the secretary entered the debt settlement program­
her creclit card debt had more than doubled to about $15,000, because of 
late charges, interest, ancf other fees. She filed for bankruptcy that same 
month. She later sued the company that enrolled her in the program and 
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settled for what she had paid in program fees, about $1,700, plus court 
costs. 

Mr. Chairman, this concludes our statement. We would be pleased to 
answer any questions that you or other members of the committee may 
have at this time . 
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Table 4 below swnmarizes examples of fraudulent, deceptive, abusive or 
questionable information provided by the 20 debt settlement companies 
we called. We have referred these cases, as appropriate, to the Federal 
Trade Commission (FTC). 

Table 4: Representations Made by Debt Settlement Companies We Called 

No. 

1 

Location of company 
and affiliates 

Florida; affiliates in 
Florida, Massachusetts, 
California, and New 
Jersey' 

Advance fees based on 
15% ol enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required throughout 
program 
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Association 
membership" 

The Association of 
Settlement 
Companies (TASC);' 
affiliates in T ASC and 
United States 
Organizations for 
Bankruptcy 
Alternatives (USOBA) 

Case details 
Marketing Web site that referred us to two 
affiliates 
Representative from one affiliate (a 
member of USOBA) stated "everyone who 
enters the program makes the 
independent decision to stop paying their 
creditors" 
Identified through spam e-mail message 
received by one of our investigators 
Web site advertised "New Government 
Programs!" and "If we can't get you out of 
debt in 24 hours we'll pay you $100" 

Representatives claimed high success 
rates-93% .and 100% 

Representative from USOBA-member 
affiliate claimed that ''worst case scenario" 
for our settlements would be "40 cents on 
the dollar," and that "every single creditor 
settles." He also promised that hiring his 
company would ensure that calls from 
creditors would "slow down and eventually 
stop" 

Representative from T ASC-member 
affiliate claimed that T ASC was "like the 
SEC for stock traders" and serves as the 
regulating body for the industry 

Owner of company acknowledged T ASC 
logo leatured on Web site despite 
company not being a member of TASC 

For further details, see section on 
"Company 1" in this testimony 
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Location of company 
No. and affiliates 

2 

• 
3 

Unknown; affiliates in 
Arizona, Texas.and 
Califomiab 

California 

Advance fees based on 
12% of enrolled debt 

First three monthly 
payments go to fees 

$25 monthly 
maintenance fee 

Additional contingent fee 
based on 4% of 
reduction in debt 
company obtains for 
clients 

Advance fees based on 
16% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required throughout 
program 
First three monthly 
payments go to fees 

$100 fee for out-of-state 
clients 
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Association 
membershipD 

Affiliate in USOBA 

TASC (at the lime of 
our call) 

Case details 

Marketing Web site that referred us to at 
least three affiliates 
Representatives from two affiliates told us 
we would not make our monthly payments 
to creditors while In the program 
Representative from one affiliate told us 
we could not afford debt settlement and 
suggested that we consider bankruptcy as 
an alternative 
Web site advertised "Reduce balances to 
40% - 60%," "Eliminate excessive Credit 
Card Debt interest immediately," and "End 
late payment fee's [sicr 
Company's radio advertisements claimed 
"government approved" and "government 
authorized" debt settlement 
Representative from one affiliate stated 
creditors would send letters to us 
indicating that our settled accounts are 
considered "paid in full" 
For further details, see section on 
"Company 2" in this testimony 

Web site targeted at Christian consumers 

Multiple representatives told us we would 
not make payments to our creditors once 
we entered company's program 

Representative told us that stopping 
payments to our creditors would "knock 
[our credit score] down a couple of 
points," and that our credit would only be 
affected while we were in the program 
Representatives claimed that program has 
85% success rate, that lawsuits from 
creditors were "just random" and did not 
require an attorney, and that they would 
negotiate our debt down to 40 to 60% of 
what we owed 

Representative told us that creditors 
would report our accounts settled for less 
than the full balance as "paid in full" or 
"paid as agreed" 
Owner told us during our site visit that the 
company recently dropped its T ASC 
membership due to rising costs 
For further details, see section on 
"Company 3" in this testimony 
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Location of company 
No. and affiliates 

4 California 

• California 

6 Texas 

Association 
Fees• membershipb 

Advance fees based on TASC 
17% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly paymen1s 
required throughout 
program·· 

First three monthly 
payments go to fees . 

$840 maintenance fee 
(total throughout 
program) 

$623.50 trust account 
fee (total throughout.• 
program) 

Advance fees based on TASC (al the time of 
15% of enrolled debt our call) 

Advance fees based on Unknown 
15% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required during first 24 
months (program length 
unknown) 
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Case details 

Company advertised "U.S. National Debt 
Relief Plan," with a logo depicting a shield 
filled with a U.S. flag 

Representative stated that, upon entering 
the program, we would "no longer be 
making payments to your creditors on a 
monthly basis" 

Representative justified first three monthly 
payments going only to fees as necessary 
because it covered initial set-up costs and 
"to show that you have the commitment to 
be in the program" 

For further details, see section on 
"Company 4" in this testimony 

Representative told us we were too poor 
for debt settlement and advised us to 
consider bankiuptcy as an alternative; 
later described company's debt settlement 
program 

Representative stated that we could not 
continue paying our creditors while in 
company's program 
After our undercover call but prior to 
release of this tes1imony, company 
appears to have gone out of business 

For further details, see section on 
"Company 5" in this testimony 

Representative stated that "One-hundred 
% of our clients stop making those [credit 
card] payments" in order for program to 
work; later directed us to divert money 
from paying creditors to account from 
which company withdraws fees 

Representative advised us to give 
company's telephone number to creditors 
as our telephone number, to avoid calls 
from creditors 
Representative stated "basically what we 
do is ... we negotiate with your creditors to 
basically cut your bills in half. So when we 
go to negotiate, we go to negotiate at 50 
cents on the dollar. That's what we 
guarantee. Now, we can also get less," 
and added as an example one major bank 
that he claimed "normally settles" for only 
30 cents on the dollar. 

Represented their program could prevent 
creditors from suing us or garnishing our 
wages 
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Location of company 

No. and affiliates 

7 California 

Texas 

9 Texas 

10 Texas 

Association 
Fees• membershipb 

Advance fees based on Unknown 
10% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required during first 12 
months (of estimated 
38-month program) 

Advance fees based on T ASC 
12% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required during first 15 
months (of estimated 
48-month program) 

First four monthly 
payments go to fees 

Advance fees based on Unknown 
15% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required during first 12 
months (of estimated 
24-month program) 

Advance fees based on USOBA 
17% of debt, with 
monthly payments 

. required during first 19 
months (of estimated 
48pmonth maximum 
program) 
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Case details 

Advertises "National Debt Relief Stimulus 
Plan" 

Representative told us we would stop 
paying our creditors, and that "the only 
thing you're going to have to worry about 
is this payment here [company's fees]" 

Representative stated that lawsuits were a 
"scare tactic" 
Web site states it can "Prevent Creditor 
Harassmenr 
Representative claimed company could 
reduce our balances so that we would pay 
"anywhere from 30 to 60 % on what you 
owe" 
Regarding payments to our creditors, 
representative stated "you're gonna have 
to cut them off so that they haven't 
received anything" 
Representative claimed "every account 
that we work on will be at least 40 cents 
on the dollar" 

Reprasentative stated that "one-hundred 
% of our clients stop making their monthly 
payments as soon as they enroll into the 
program" 

Representative encouraged us to explore 
other debt relief options as well as debt 
settlement 

Name of company changed during our 
investigation 
Representative stated that upon enrolling 
in company's program "you would no 
longer make any of your credit card 
payments. All of them would go late" 

Representative claimed to "negotiate your 
debt down to 50 % or less of what you 
owe" 
Representative said advance fees paid for 
attorneys who would "look ar our account 
monthly 

Representative was unable to explain 
refund policy by telephone 

Representative suggested we change our 
address on billing statements to address 
for company's attorneys 
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Location of company Association 
No. and affiliates Fees• membership' Case details 

11 Florida Unknow~nly Unknown Telephone number listed on Web site 
received recorded went to a 7-minute recording 
information Recording stated that we would stop 

paying our creditors upon entering 
program 
Recording claimed to send letters to credit 
bureaus that would "remove any late 
marks that you may have received on the 
accounr 

12 California Advance fees based on Unknown Front-end marketing company, with 28 
15% of enrolled debt different Web sites used to solicit 

customers for referral to one debt 
settlement company 
Representative stated that affiliate 

• 
handling actual settlement process would 
call us back; we did not receive a return 
call 

13 Texas Advance fees based on USOBA Representative stated that program does 
10% of enrolled debt, not work for everyone, but does work for 
with monthly payments everyone who has a hardship 
required throughout Representative stated company's services 
program are helpful to consumers "because we 

allow [consumers'] accounts to go 
delinquent and past due and Into 
collections" 

An e-mail sent atter our call stated that 
upon enrolling in the program, "we will 
inform your creditors that you will no 
longer be making payments on the 
accounts" 

14 Arizona Advance fees based on Unknown Representative stated that "9 out of 1 o of 
12.9% of enrolled debt, our clients are current," but stop making 
with monthly payments payments when entering program 
required during first 10 When asked whether to stop paying 
to 12 months ( of accounts that are current, representative 
estimated 30-month replied "Absolutely'' 
program) 

15 California Advance fees based on TASC Representative stated that she could not 
15% of enrolled debt interfere with our obligation to pay our 

First three monthly creditors, and encouraged us to continue 
payments go to fees making payments if we could afford to do 

$30 monthly 
so at the same time as saving for settling 

maintenance fee 
debts 

$14.50 monthly trust 
Representative later stated that if we 

account fee ' 
could continue making our minimum 
payments "maybe this [debt settlement] 
isn't the best solution for you" 
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Location of company 

No. and affiliates 

16 Flolida 

17 California 

• 
18 Unknown 

19 Mar)'land 

20 California 

Contingent fees based 
on 35% of reduction in 
debt company obtains 
for clients 
First monthly payment 
goes to enrollment fee 

$53 monthly 
maintenance fee 

Association 
membership' 

USOBA 

Advance fees based on USOBA 
18% of enrolled debt, . 
with monthly payments 
required during first 18 
to 24 months (of 
estimated 36-month 
program) 

Advance fees based on Unknown 
15% of enrolled debt, 
with monthly payments 
required throughout 
program 
First three monthly 
payments go to fees 

Advance fees based on Unknown 
15% of enrolled debt 
$9.85 monthly bank fee 

Unknown- TASC 
representative said we 
did not have enough 
debt to qualify for 
program 

Case details 

Web site targeted at Christian consumers 
Representative stated that "you stop 
paying everybody. That's what makes You 
qualify. You fall behind." 

Company·s contract slates there is a 
$1,000 termination fee for dropping out of 
the program 
Representative suggested that we could 
pay our initial fee with a credit card 
Representative offered to also provide us 
information on debt consolidation loans, to 
determine which option would be best 

Representative encouraged us to take 
care of our late mortgage payments 
before worrying about paying off or 
settling our credit card debts 

Web site targeted at Christian consumers 
Web stte describes one of the "blessings" 
of its program as "Immediate increase of 
spendable cash-flow [sic]" 

Representative told us the program is 
based on our stopping payments to 
creditors 
Representative stated that it "wouldn't 
make sense" to continue making 
payments while in a debt settlement 
program 
Representative said that program "works 
for some" but is "not great for others," and 
that company discourages consumers 
from debt settlement if they plan to buy a 
house soon, due to credit score damage 

Representative stated that we did not 
have enough debt to qualify for the 
company's debt settlement program 

Source: GAO analysis of Information obtained from debt settlement companies. 
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•Fee information reflects fees disclosed to us; some companies may charge additional fees that were 
not disclosed.· Debt settlement companies typically charge tees requiring payments either at the 
beginning of the program as an advance fee or after each settlement as a contingent fee. Some 
companies structure the payment of advance fees so that they collect a large portion of them-as 
high as 40 percent-within the first few months regardless of whether any settlements have been 
obtained or any contact has been made with the consumer's creditors. Others collect fees throughout 
the first hatt of the enrollment period in advance of a settlement. Companies that charge a contingent 
lee generally base·lt on a certain percentage of any settlement they actually obtain for consumers. 
They sometimes charge a small, additional fee every month while consumers are busy attempting to 
save funds for settlements. FTC has criticized advance fees, stating that consumers ohen suffer 
irreparable injury as a result of paying them in advance of receiving services. The agency maintains 
that the practice of taking fees before a settlement is obtained results in a number of adverse 
consequences for consumers: late fees or other penalty charges, interest charges, delinquencies 
reported to credit bureaus that decrease the consumer's credit score, and sometimes legal action to 
collect the debt. 

•some companies we called referred us to one or more affiliates. It was not always clear to us exactly 
with which company or affiliate we were speaking, where the companies or affiliates were located, or 
what the relationships were between the companies and affiliates. In some cases, separate affiliates 
of the same company claimed to be members of different industry trade associations. 

'While Company 1 claimed to be a member of TASC, it appears this was a false representation . 
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MEMORANDUM 

January 5, 2011 

House Judiciary Committee 

SUBJECT: 

Robert J. Entringer, Commissioner 

Testimony Regarding House Bill No. 1038 

CSBS ACCREDITED 1993 
NASCUS ACCREDITED 2000 

Chairman DeKrey and members of the House Judiciary Committee, 

thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony regarding House Bill No. 

1038. 

As you are aware House Bill No. 1038 proposes to create and enact 

a new Chapter to the North Dakota Century Code, Chapter 13-11, relating 

to regulation of debt-settlement providers, as well as amending and 

reenacting Section 6-01-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

It is my understanding that Vonette Richter from Legislative Council 

provided some introductory remarks regarding the background of the Bill 

and a copy of the Interim Committee's findings. I would like to emphasize 

2000 Schafer Street, Suite G B Bismarck, ND 58501-1204 

701-328-9933 l!l!B dfi@nd.gov 

fax 701-328-0290 D www.nd.gov/dfi 



• that this is not the Department's Bill and it Is being introduced at the 

request of the Interim Judiciary Committee. 

The Department and the Attorney General's Consumer Protection 

and Anti-trust Division were asked to collaborate in drafting proposed 

legislation based on the Uniform Debt Management Services Act for 

consideration by the Interim Judiciary Committee. In doing so, our 

agencies started with the Uniform Act to draft the Bill; however, drew 

heavily from existing statutes under the authority of the Department of 

Financial Institutions as well as drawing some content from the Illinois Debt 

Management Service Act. I would be happy to walk through the Bill and 

highlight some specific areas which may be of interest to the Committee. 

Section 1 of the Bill simply amends a Section of North Dakota law 

which provides that any funds received by the Department of Financial 

Institutions under specific Chapters must be deposited into the 

Department's regulatory fund. 

Under Section 2, beginning on line 15, the Bill starts with definitions. 

In particular I would draw your attention to page 3, line 5, which is the 

definition of a debt-settlement provider. Also beginning on line 9 of page 3 

the debt-settlement provider excludes a number of entities and individuals 

• delineated from line 11, page 3 (6(a)) through line 3, page 4 (6(h)). 

2 



• Additionally, beginning on line 4, page 4 the definition of debt-settlement 

service is set forth and was expanded beyond the Uniform Law, including 

language obtained from the Illinois Act. The differences between 7(a)(1) 

and 7(a)(2) are subtle; however, the definition under 7(a)(1) includes 

providing advice or acting as an intermediary while in 7(a)(2) the definition 

is offering to provide services in advising, encouraging, assisting, or 

counseling a consumer to accumulate funds for purposes of settling a 

consumer's unsecured debt in an amount less than the full principal or less 

than the current outstanding balance. Mr. Grossman and I met with Vice 

• 

• 

Chairman Klemin and discussed an amendment adding a third paragraph 

to the definition of debt-settlement service which would include settling a 

North Dakota consumer's tax obligation with a state or federal government 

agency in an amount less than the current outstanding balance. We hope 

to have the amendments discussed with Vice Chairman Klemin drafted 

shortly. 

Beginning on line 19 of page 4 the bill sets forth what debt-settlement 

service does not include; essentially the exclusions are limited to legal, 

accounting, and financial planning services . 

3 
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The definitions of enrollment or setup fee, maintenance fee and 

settlement fees found on page 5, lines 1, 5, and 23 become important later 

on in the Chapter. 

Beginning on page 6 the bill sets forth a license requirement; an 

application process for a license with the Department; a requirement for a 

fee and a bond associated with the application; and the qualifications for 

licensure. These Sections were primarily derived from existing statutes 

under the Department's authority. 

Page 7 discusses when the licenses expire; the renewal process for 

the license, both of which are drawn from existing statutory authority for the 

Department. 

Page 8, line 4 is a Section which requires the applicant or licensee to 

update information previously provided to the Department within 1 O days 

after a change of the information which was provided in an application. 

The bill sets a requirement the licensee maintain its records according to 

generally-accepted accounting principles and would require an annual 

report by August 1 of each year, with the form being prescribed by the 

Commissioner. 

Beginning on line 16, page 8, the Department is required to act on an 

• application for licensure within 60 days of filing a completed application. 
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Beginning on line 19 of page 8, the standards for revoking, 

suspending, or surrender of a license are set forth. Again, these Sections 

are drawn from existing statutory authority under the Department. 

On page 9, line 12, this Section would give the Commissioner the 

authority to suspend or remove officers and employees based on the 

criteria enumerated in this Section. The Section does allow for due 

process in that an individual or company may request a hearing. The 

Section does give the Commissioner the authority to immediately suspend 

a person if they have been charged with a felony in state or federal count 

involving a dishonesty or breach of trust. That order is effective 

immediately and is in effect until the criminal charge is finally disposed of or 

until the order is modified by the Commissioner. Again, this Section 1s 

drawn from existing authority under the Department's purview. 

Beginning on page 10, line 15, we include restrictions on advertising 

and marketing practices. Essentially a debt-settlement provider is 

prohibited from representing results or outcomes in advertising, marketing, 

or other communication unless they can provide substantiation for that 

representation at the time it is made. Also a provider may not make, 

expressly or by implication, any unfair or deceptive representations. The 

• provider may not omit material facts, and all marketing and advertising 

5 



• must include a disclosure indicating that debt-settlement services are not 

appropriate for everyone, that failure to pay monthly bills timely will result in 

increased balances and will harm credit ratings. In addition, a caution must 

provided that not all creditors will agree to reduce principal balance and 

may pursue collection, including lawsuits. 

Beginning on line 29, page 10, the debt-settlement provider is 

required to furnish copies of the contract to the Commissioner upon request 

and also is required to furnish the debtor with a copy of the written contract 

at the time of execution setting forth any charges agreed upon. 

In addition, there is a recordkeeping requirement beginning on line 4, 

• page 11 which includes fees paid by the debtor; amount of money held in 

trust; offers made and received on the debtor's accounts; enforceable 

settlements reached with the creditors; a requirement to provide 

information to the debtor upon request; a requirement to issue a receipt if a 

payment is made at the provider's office; and the provider must prepare 

and retain in the file for each debtor, a written analysis of the debtor's 

income and expenses to substantiate the plan of payment is feasible and 

practical. 

Beginning on line 17, page 11, the requirement that the provider keep 

• all funds received from a debtor for the purpose of paying bills, invoices, or 

6 



• accounts of the debtor separate from the funds of the provider and place 

these funds in either a trust account or an account which clearly indicates 

that the funds are not those of the debt-settlement provider or its 

employees, agents, or officers. 

• 

Beginning on page 12, line 1, the funds that are held in trust are not 

subject to attachment, lien, levy of execution, or sequestration by order of 

court except by a debtor for whom a debt-settlement provider is acting as 

an agent in paying bills, invoices, or accounts. 

Beginning on line 4, page 12, the provider 1s required to give a 

monthly accounting to the debtor itemizing: the amount received from the 

debtor; the amount paid to each creditor; the amount of charges deducted; 

and, any amount held in reserve, as well as the status of each debtor's 

enrolled accounts. This Section also requires the provider to give an 

accounting to a debtor within seven days after a written demand; the debtor 

cannot request this accounting more than three times every six-month 

period. The bill does not require establishment of trust accounts if there 

are no consumer funds held or controlled by the provider. 

Beginning on line 13, page 12, the statute would require the provider 

act in good faith and the provider must maintain a toll free communication 

• system staffed at a reasonable level during ordinary business hours. 
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Beginning on line 20, page 12, is a requirement for the provider to 

give the consumer oral and written notice disclosing certain items 

delineated beginning on line 24 of page 12 through line 22 of page 13. In 

addition, this Section requires the consumer to sign and date an 

acknowledgement form acknowledging that they have received the 

"Consumer Notice and Rights Form" and the provider or its representative 

shall also sign and date the form. This form must be in duplicate and the 

provider must retain the original; if the acknowledgement is in electronic 

form the acknowledgement must contain the consumer disclosures 

required by Section 101(c) of the Federal ESign Act. Beginning on page 

14, line 4, is an additional option for the provider to comply with this 

Section. 

Beginning on line 8, page 15, the bill requires the provider to conduct 

an individualized financial analysis and retain a copy of that analysis; the 

Section specifies what the analysis must include and prohibits the provider 

from entering into a contract unless they can make written determinations 

supported by the financial analysis that the consumer can reasonably meet 

the requirements of the program and that it is suitable for the consumer at 

the time the contract is to be signed . 
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Beginning on line 27, page 15, the bill sets forth items the debt­

settlement contract must include and specifies that any contract entered 

into in violation of this Section is void. 

Beginning on line 3, page 16, the disclosures required for the contract 

are set forth and continue through line 21 of page 17. This Section further 

requires if the provider communicates with a consumer in a language other 

than English, they furnish the consumer the disclosures and documents 

required in that other language. 

Beginning on line 26, page 17 is a section which allows for 

cancellation of a contract by the consumer at any time before the provider 

has performed fully each service they have contracted to perform or 

represented they would perform. If the consumer cancels the contract 

under this section or there is a material violation of the Chapter on the part 

of the debt-settlement provider, the provider shall return all fees and 

compensation with the exception of an application fee and any earned 

settlement fee; all funds paid by the consumer to the provider that have 

accumulated for the consumer's settlement account and have not been 

disbursed must be returned to the consumer also. The cancellation of the 

contract by the consumer also revokes any powers of attorney or direct 

• debit authorizations granted to the provider by the consumer. Refunds 
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required under this Statute are to be done in seven days after notice of 

cancellation and must include a full accounting. The provider must give 

timely notice of the cancellation of the contract to each of the creditors with 

whom the provider has had prior communication on behalf of the consumer 

in connection with the provision of any services. 

Beginning on line 18, page 18, the Statute sets forth the fees that a 

provider may charge. Specifically, the debt-settlement provider is only 

allowed to charge a one-time enrollment fee of no more than $100 and may 

not charge any other enrollment fee, setup fee, or upfront fee. The provider 

is also allowed to charge a settlement fee that may not exceed an amount 

greater than 15% of the savings. I would note that the term "savings" is 

defined beginning on line 18, page 5, and means the difference between 

the principal amount of the debt and the amount paid by the provider to the 

creditor or negotiated by the provider and paid by the consumer to the 

creditor pursuant to a settlement negotiated by the debt-settlement provider 

on behalf of the consumer as full and complete satisfaction of the creditor's 

claim with regard to that debt. This Section also specifies that a provider is 

not entitled to a settlement fee if the debt-settlement is in an amount 

greater than the principal amount of the debt. Finally, a provider may not 

collect the settlement fee until a legally enforceable agreement to accept 

10 
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funds in a specific dollar amount as full and complete satisfaction of the 

creditor's claim with regard to that debt and those funds are either provided 

by the provider on behalf of the consumer or provided directly by the 

consumer to the creditor pursuant to that settlement negotiated by the 

provider. 

Line 7, page 19, prohibits a provider from soliciting voluntary 

contributions from an individual or affiliate of the individual for any service 

provided to the individual. A provider may accept a voluntary contribution 

from an individual provided that until 30 days have elapsed after completion 

or termination of the plan, the aggregate amount of money received from or 

on behalf of an individual may not exceed the total amount the provider 

may charge under the previous Section 13-11-21. 

Beginning on line 13, page 19, this Section enumerates prohibited 

acts and practices which continue through line 16 of page 22. 

Beginning on line 17, page 22, if the provider has been served with 

notice of a civil action or violations of the Chapter, the provider must within 

30 days notify the Commissioner that it is being sued. 

Beginning on line 22, page 22, this Section of the bill establishes 

liability of the provider for the conduct of other persons . 

11 
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Beginning on line 26, page 22, the bill sets forth the powers of the 

Commissioner, including: determining qualifications of applicants; 

conducting investigations and examinations; issuing cease and desist 

orders; denying, suspending, revoking or conditioning the license; or, 

declining to renew a license for: a violation of the Chapter, if the applicant 

has withheld information, or, if the applicant makes a material misstatement 

in an application for a license or renewal. 

Beginning on line 25, page 23 is the enforcement authority which 

specifies violations and penalties. This particular Section makes violations 

of this Chapter a Class C felony; authorizes the Commissioner to impose 

civil money penalties not to exceed $5,000 per violation upon someone that 

willfully violates a law, rule, written agreement or order under the Chapter; 

and, provide for due process of a civil money penalty under Chapter 28-32. 

This Section also provides that the Attorney General may also enforce this 

Chapter, has powers provided in the Chapter or Chapter 51-15 and may 

seek remedies provided in this Chapter as well as Chapter 51-15. 

Beginning on line 11, page 24, this Section allows the contract to be 

voided if the provider imposes a fee or other charge not authorized within 

this Chapter; also, an individual may void the contract if a provider is not 

• licensed as required by this Chapter when an individual assents to a 

12 



• 

• 

• 

contract. If the contract is voided under Subsection 2 of this Section the 

provider does not have a claim against that individual for breach of contract 

or for restitution. 

Finally, beginning on line 19 of page 24, the bill allows any person 

that is aggrieved by a violation to bring an action to enjoin the violation or 

for restitution or both. The Section allows the plaintiff to obtain restitution 

up to the actual amount of restitution or a sum of $2,000, whichever is 

greater. Additionally, the court may award costs, expenses and reasonable 

attorney fees and does not limit any other claims the person may have 

against the provider or any third party subject to this Chapter . 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, we were asked to 

provide a Fiscal Note regarding this Bill, which you should have been 

provided. As you will note in the Fiscal Note, the Bill requires debt­

settlement providers to be licensed and regulated by the Department of 

Financial Institutions and has no fiscal impact to the General Fund; 

however, it will have a negative impact to the Department's Special 

Regulatory Fund. The Department of Financial Institutions is a self-funded 

regulatory agency and the revenue we obtain from licensing is deposited 

into the regulatory fund for the operation of the Department. The 

expenditure includes salary for _one full-time equivalent position, operating 

13 
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expenses, and programming costs for implementation of online licensing . 

The Department is projecting approximately 35 licenses at a licensing fee 

of $400 for the biennium or a total of $28,000 for the biennium. In addition 

there is an investigation fee of $400 for licensing which is a one-time fee, 

for total revenue of $14,000. The Department is projecting examination 

fees, assuming six examinations are conducted; those fees are projected to 

be approximately $43,950, which include recouping expenses for lodging, 

transportation, meals, and salary. The total revenue projected for the 

biennium is estimated to be $85,950. The expenditures detailed on the 

Fiscal Note include the salary and benefits, equipment, furniture, and office 

supplies, as well as other expenses including IT Data Processing. In 

addition the Department is estimating programming costs for our internal 

Records Management program developed by ITD of $85,650, as well 

programming for our online application system of $30,000. As you can 

see, total expenditures of $316,376 are estimated, as opposed to revenue 

of $85,950, resulting in net expenditures of $230,426. 

The bill does not include any appropriation in the Executive Budget 

and if this Bill is passed, the Department of Financial Institutions will seek 

to increase its Appropriation Bill, House Bill No. 1008, for the expenditures . 

14 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I would be happy to 

answer any questions you may have . 
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H.B. 1038 
TESTIMONY OF MARILYN FOSS 

NORTH DAKOTA BANKERS ASSOCIATION 

Chairman De Krey, members of the House Judiciary Committee, I am Marilyn Foss, general 

counsel for the North Dakota Bankers Association. NDBA does not oppose appropriate 

regulation of debt settlement management companies and supports appropriate supervision 

over their activities. However, we believe one section of the bill goes beyond that. As it 

establishes a system for regulating and supervising debt settlement management companies, it 

also creates a new an unlimited exemption from execution. This broad, new exemption 

implicates and negatively impacts lenders' ability to collect the loans they have made and 

therefore must affect the terms and conditions upon which they will be willing to make loans . 

The trouble spot is in proposed section 13-11-14 (page 12, lines 1-3) which addresses the 

fund that will be accumulated by a debt settlement management company on behalf of a 

debtor, stating, " Such funds are not subject to attachment, lien, levy of execution, or 

sequestration by order of court except by a debtor for whom a debt-settlement provider is 

acting as an agent in paying bill, invoices, or accounts." Among other things, this language 

allows debtors to set aside and protect funds from creditors' claims, to designate only one or a 

few creditors to be paid from the fund and leaves creditors who are not preferred without a 

state law remedy to collect their debts - all because of the unlimited exemption from ordinary 

state law collection and exemption processes. Because the language creates a new exemption 

from process, it will apply in bankruptcy court as well as state court proceedings. 

No provision of this nature is included in the Uniform Debt Management Services Act and, 

so far as I am aware, the provisio~,has not previously been discussed in a committee hearing. 

NDBA has begun discussion with the attorney general's office about how to best resolve the 
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various issues, but at this point we oppose passage of the bill with the cited language in it. For 

that reason I am submitting amendments s to remove the troublesome language from the bill. 



• 

Page 12 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO H.B. 1038 
(Sponsored by the North Dakota Bankers Association) 

Remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 12, line 4, replace "1," with "'b" 

Page 12, line 10, replace "4." with "1," 

Renumber accordingly 
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Proposed Amendments to HB1038 House Judiciary January 5, 2011 

Page 3, line 11, replace "the" with "this" 

Page 3, line 17, after "credit union" insert "farm credit system institutions" 

Page 4, line 1, after "person" insert "currently" 

Page 4, line 1 replace "chapter 13" with "any chapter administered by the department of 
financial institutions or registered with the attorney general's office." 

Page 4, line 18, delete "or" 

Page 4, line 18, replace the period with"; or" and immediately thereafter insert 

"/3) Offering to provide advice or service, or acting as an intermediary between or on behalf 
of a person and a state or federal government agency where the primary purpose of the 
advice, service. or action is to obtain a settlement. adjustment. or satisfaction of the person's 
tax obligation to the government agency in an amount less than the full amount of the 
obligation. including interest and penalties. or in an amount less than the current outstanding 
balance of the tax obligation." 

Page 4, line 31, after the period insert "{4) A nonprofit corporation engaged in consumer 
credit counseling services under chapter 13-07. 

Page 8, line 5, replace "registered" with "licensed" 

Page 22, line 3, after "law" insert "in this·state" 

Page 24, after line 25, insert "SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 13-07-01 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

13-07-01. Consumer credit counseling service - Definition. As used in this chapter 
"consumer credit counseling service" means a nonprofit corporation engaged in the business 
of debt aajusting as defines in sestion 1 a 06 01 whose agreements contemplate that 
creditors will reduce finance charges or fees for late payments, default. or delinquency. For 
purposes of this chapter a nonprofit corporation means an entity that is: 

a. organized and properly operating as a not-for-profit entity under the laws of the state in 
which it was formed; 

b. exempt from taxation under the Internal Revenue Code. 26 U.S. C. Section 501: and 
c. not owned, operated. managed by, or affiliated with a for-profit entity. 

SECTION 4. Chapter 13-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed. 

Renumber accordingly . 
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Testimony of Dana Bohn 
North Dakota Farm Credit Council Executive Director 

HB 1038 
January 5, 2011 

Chairman DeKrey and members of the House Judiciary Committee, my name is Dana Bohn. 

am here today on behalf of the North Dakota Farm Credit Council (NDFCC) in support of the 

amendment proposed by Parrell Grossman, Director of the Consumer Protection & Antitrust Division 

of the Office of Attorney General, to insert "farm credit system institutions" after "credit union" on 

Page 3, line 17 of HB 1038. 

The proposed amendment in which "farm credit system institutions" are explicitly named in the 

exceptions under Section 13-11-01 (6)(c) makes it clear that farm credit system institutions are 

exempt. 

. Although Mr. Grossman has assured us that "farm credit system institutions" would already be 

included in "other persons authorized to make loans" and be considered an exception, the proposed 

amendment in which farm credit system institutions are explicitly named removes any possible 

misunderstanding or misinterpretation. 

We would also support the North Dakota Banker's Association opposition to the provision on 

Page 12, lines 1-3 of HB 1038. The language provides a means for a debtor to, in essence, "shield" 

money from a creditor or group of creditors by giving it to the debt-settlement provider for payment of 

other specified creditors. This would create preferential treatment of one creditor over another with 

no ability to get at those funds even with a court order. 

NDFCC is comprised of three farmer/rancher-owned independent Farm Credit associations 

that provide credit and financial services to farmers, ranchers and agribusinesses of all sizes and 

income ranges in every county in North Dakota. As one of the state's largest ag lenders, North 

Dakota Farm Credit associations provide about $5.5 billion in credit and financial services to nearly 

19,700 customers. 

NDFCC asks you to support the proposed amendment to include "farm credit system 

institutions" explicitly in the exceptions and opposes the provision on Page 12, lines 1-3 of HB 1083. 

Independently owned and operated associations serving North Dakota and northwest and west central Minnesota. 

AgCountry FCS 
1900 44th Street South 
Fargo, ND 58108 
701-282-9494 • 800-450-8933 
www.agcountry.com 

FCS of Mandan 
1600 Old Red Trail 
Mandan, ND 58554 
701-663-6487 • 800-660-6487 
www.farmcreditmandan.com 

FCS of North Dakota 
3100 1d' Street SW 
Minot, ND 58702 
701-852-1265 • 800-264-1265 
www.farmcreditnd.com 
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TESTIMONY FOR HOUSE BILL NO. I 038 

House Appropriations Committee-Government Operations Division 

Testimony of Robert J. Entringer, Commissioner, Department of Financial 
Institutions relating to the revised fiscal note for House Bill No. 1038 

Chairman Thoreson and members of the Committee, I am Bob 

Entringer, Commissioner for the Department of Financial Institutions. I am 

here today to testify in regard to the revised Fiscal Note provided by the 

Department of Financial Institutions for HB I 038 related to the regulation of 

debt-settlement providers. 

FISCAL NOTE 

Mr. Chairman, as you are aware the Fiscal Note submitted by 

the Department of Financial Institutions projects Revenue of $85,950 in the 

2011-2013 biennium. The projected revenue is based on an estimate of 35 

applications for licensure at an annual licensing fee of $400 and a one-time 

investigation fee of $400 per licensee. In addition we are anticipating 

conducting an examination of at least 6 licensees in the first biennium; 

included in the revenue are examination fees which recoup the cost of 

examiner's salary and benefits as well as expenses associated with the 

examination such as transportation, lodging, meals. 



The expenditures for the biennium are estimated to be 

$173,907. Primarily, the expenditures are $85,650 to update our Financial 

Institutions Records Management system which is our database upon which 

we record pertinent information regarding all of our regulated entities. This 

estimate is based upon: I) the current costs from ITD for the upcoming 

biennium, and 2) we estimated the number of programming hours based on a 

similar update from a prior legislative session when our Department added a 

new license type. In addition we are projecting On-Line Application 

programming costs of $30,000; this is to upgrade our website to allow this 

new license type to apply for and renew license applications electronically. 

We based our estimate on the current ITD programming charges using an 

estimate of 300 hours to develop the programming. Mr. Chairman, we did 

not have time to request a formal estimate from ITD for the programming so 

we based our estimate on previous experience. 

Additional operating costs include travel of $24,750, which will 

be recouped through examination fees; printing of $2,200, which includes 

forms for paper applications; IT Data Processing of $17,160, which is the 

ongoing IT cost for our database; professional development of $3,200, 

which is for training to examine and regulate these entities and includes 

some travel costs; professional services of $7,700, which is an estimate of 

2 



legal expenses to the Attorney General's office and agam 1s based on 

previous experience with adding a new license type; and operating fees and 

services which is primarily 0MB costs. 

The revenue for the 20 I 3-20 I 5 biennium is based on a 

projected increase in licenses of 20 and an estimate of 14 examinations 

conducted in the biennium. The major increase in expenditures is in travel 

which is related to the increase in the number of examinations conducted 

and, again these costs are recouped in examination fees. 

As I indicated at the beginning of my testimony this is a revised fiscal 

note and all expenses related to an additional FTE in the original fiscal not 

have been removed. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee thank you for your time 

and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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• Road Investments to Support Agricultural Logistics 

Background 

• In 2009, the total market value of agricultural goods produced in ND exceeded $5.5 
billion 

• USDNUSDOT: An effective transportation system supports rural economies, reducing 
the prices farmers pay for inputs, such as seed and fertilizer, raising the value of their 
crops, and greatly increasing their market access. Providing effective transportation for 
a rural region stimulates the farms and businesses served, improving the standard of 
living ... because it (agriculture) is so capital-intensive, it generates much more 
economic activity in the community than just the jobs it creates. 

• Purpose: analyze changes in agricultural production and logistics and the importance of 
roadway investments to the distributi'on of crops produced in North Dakota; identify 
investments to provide for 20-year paved road design lives under heavy truck traffic. 

Key Trends 

• Yields have been increasing over time resulting in more crop volume and movements 
from a given land area. · 

• Crop mix has been changing over time resulting in greater densities of production. 

• The number of elevators has decreased over time resulting in fewer delivery options. 

• Shipments have become more concentrated at a fewer number of elevators; longer farm­
to-elevator hauls are required. 

• More grains are being transshipped from smaller to larger elevators resulting in longer 
combined truck trips. 

• The location of in-state processing and biofuels production has resulted in more intrastate 
truck (as opposed to interstate rail) movements. 

• Road construction prices have increased dramatically over time for asphalt and gravel 
roads. 

Analysis Process 

• Based on a detailed crop production and distribution model in which the crops produced 
in each county subdivision are transported to elevators and in-state processing plants to 
minimize distance/trucking cost. 

• The model minimizes the total or route trip distance including transshipments from one 
elevator to another or from an elevator to an in-state processing plant. 

Handout Summary Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 
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• The demands at elevators are derived from reports to the Public Service Commission, 
while the demands at ethanol plants are derived from confidential surveys. 

• Once the trips are predicted, they are assigned to the highway network and traffic 
statistics are compiled for thousands of individual road segments included in agricultural 
distribution routes. 

• The investment needs of each road segment are analyzed and the results accumulated. 

• For paved roads, the future overlay thicknesses needed for 20-year lives are estimated. 

• Investment needs for both agricultural and other roads are estimated. 

Statewide Results 

• The average predicted trip distance to elevators and in-state processors (including 
transshipment distances) is 26 miles, compared to 12 miles in 1980. 

• Agricultural goods require roughly 600 million ton-miles of transportation annually. 

• Roughly 44% of ton-miles are on local and county roads. 

• 57% of agricultural truck travel on local and county roads is on gravel surfaces. 

• More than 10,000 miles of gravel road_have some agricultural traffic. 

• Another 3,958 miles of paved roads have some agricultural traffic. 

• Not all of these miles are heavily impacted. 

• Estimated statewide need ( exclusive of state highways and projected impacts from future 
oil development) is $211.5 million per year, including $100.5 million of paved road 
investment needs and $110 million of unpaved road investment needs. 

• Approximately $59 million of paved road needs relate to agricultural haul roads. 

• Approximately, $43.6 million of unpaved road needs relate to agricultural haul roads. 

Results for Non-Oil Counties 

• The total estimated road investment need in the 36 non-oil producing counties is 
approximately $149 million per year. 

• The estimated annual paved road investment need in the 36 non-oil producing counties is 
$72.4 million. Approximately $47 million relates to agricultural haul roads. 

'· 
• The estimated annual unpaved road investment needs in the 36 non-oil impacted counties 

is $76.6 million. Approximately $31.9 million relates to agricultural haul roads. 

Handout Summary Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 2 
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Summary 

According to the Agricultural Statistics Service, North Dakota leads the United States in 
the production of spring wheat, durum wheat, sunflower, barley, dry edible beans, canola, 
and flaxseed. In 2009, the total market value of agricultural goods produced in the state 
exceeded $5.5 billion. Because of the importance of agriculture to the state's economy, this 
report focuses specifically on the investment needs of roads used to haul agricultural goods 
to market. The purpose of the study is to analyze changes in agricultural production and 
logistics and the importance of roadway investments to the distribution of crops produced 
in North Dakota. 

Important changes have occurred during the last two decades that have implications for 
agricultural logistics and roadway investment needs: 

(1) Yields have been increasing over time resulting m more crop volume and 
movements from a given land area. 

(2) Crop mix has been changing over time resulting in greater densities of production. 

(3) The number of elevators has decreased over time resulting in fewer delivery 
options. 

( 4) Shipments have become more concentrated at a fewer number of elevators. 
Consequently, longer farm-to-elevator hauls are required. 

(5) More grains are being transshipped from smaller to larger elevators resulting in 
longer combined truck trips. 

(6) The location of in-state processing and biofuels production has resulted in more 
intrastate truck (as opposed to interstate rail) movements. 

(7) Funding for county and local roads exclusive of oil extraction funds has grown 
only modestly over time (when measured in real dollars). 

(8) In contrast, construction prices have increased dramatically over time for asphalt 
and gravel roads. Collectively, these factors are stressing the county and local 
road systems used to market and distribute North Dakota products. 

This study is based on a detailed crop production and distribution model in which the crops 
produced in each county subdivision are moved to elevators and in-state processing plants 
to minimize distance. Because trucking cost is typically measured on a per-mile basis, 
minimizing the distance of agricultural goods movements is parallel to minimizing 
trucking cost on a system-wide basis. 
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The model minimizes the total or route trip distance including transshipments from one 
elevator to another or from an elevator to an in-state processing plant. The demands at 
elevators are derived from reports to the Public Service Commission, while the demands at 
ethanol plants are derived from confidential surveys. Since crop supplies and demands are 
known, the objective of the distribution model is to predict truck movements to minimize 
the ton-miles of transportation needed to satisfy elevator and plant demands. In effect, the 
model identifies a logistically-efficient set of truck movements that minimizes use-related 
vehicle depreciation and maintenance and fuel consumption. However, the model does not 
predict that each grower will deliver his or her crops to the closest elevator. Instead, crops 
are moved to meet the demands of shuttle-train elevators, plants, and other facilities. The 
key predictions from the model are: (I) agricultural goods require roughly 600 million ton­
miles of transportation annually, and (2) the average predicted trip distance to elevators 
and in-state processors (including transshipment distances) is 26 miles. 

Once the trips are predicted, they are assigned to the highway network and traffic statistics 
are compiled for thousands of individual road segments included in agricultural 
distribution routes. Once the traffic forecasts have been accumulated, the investment needs 
of each road segment are analyzed and the results accumulated. In addition to specifically 
analyzing agricultural logistics routes, the investment needs for other local roads not 
significantly affected by agricultural goods movements are estimated so that the total 
statewide need can be quantified . 

The estimated investment needed for county and local paved roads totals $100.5 million 
annually on a statewide basis. Approximately $59 million of these needs relate to 
agricultural haul roads. The remainder corresponds to other county and local roads. In 
addition, $110 million are needed annually for local unpaved roads. Approximately, $43.6 
million of these needs relate to agricultural haul roads. The remainder corresponds to other 

· local roads, especially township roads. Altogether, the total estimated statewide need is 
$211.5 million per year, including $100.5 million of paved road investment needs and 
$110.0 million of unpaved road investment needs. 

The estimates developed in this study do not include the specific roadway investment 
needs attributable to the future growth of oil and gas industries in western North Dakota. 
Rather, the estimates presented in this report reflect the baseline investment needs 
throughout the state. The projected oil-related infrastructure needs presented in a separate 
report (Additional Road Investments Needed to Support Oil and Gas Production and 
Distribution in North Dakota) are in addition to the estimates presented in this study . 
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Response to Questions 

The original report was issued on January 10, 2011. Since then, requests for detailed 
information have been posed by legislators. The answers to those questions are 
summarized in the following paragraphs. 

Question 1: How much of the 26.2-mile average trip distance occurs on paved versus 
unpaved roads, and collector versus local roads? 

The 26.2-mile average trip includes farm-to-elevator movements, transshipments from 
smaller elevators to shuttle-train elevators, and transshipments from elevators to in-state 
processing plants. As shown below, approximately 56 percent (or 14.8 miles) of the total 
average trip distance occurs on state highways. This portion of the trip reflects 
transshipments from smaller elevators to shuttle-train elevators and transshipments from 
elevators to in-state processing plants, as well as the final portions of many farm-to­
elevator hauls. Twenty-five percent of the trip (or 6.5 miles) occurs on gravel roads (local 
roads or county major collectors). Another 17.5 percent of the trip (or 4.6 miles) occurs on 
paved county or local roads. About 1 percent of the trip occurs on graded and drained or 
unimproved roads or trails 

Distribution of Average Trip Distance Among Roadway Classes and Surface Types 

Functional Class Surface Type Percent of Ton-Miles 

State Highway Paved 56.4% 

Local Gravel 16.7% 

Major Collector Paved 15.1% 

Major Collector Gravel 8.3% 

Local Paved 1.7% 

Minor Arterial Paved 0.7% 

Local Graded & Drained 0.5% 

Local Trail 0.4% 

Local Unimproved 0.1% 

Other 0.1% 

In interpreting these percentages, it is important to note that local and county roads 
comprise a significantly greater percentage of farm-to-elevator and direct farm-to­
processor movements when the transshipments that occur primarily on state highways are 
excluded. As shown below, 57% of agricultural truck travel off the state highway system 
occurs on county or local gravel roads. Approximately, 42% of agricultural truck travel off 
the state highway system occurs on paved county or local roads . 
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Distribution of Trip Distance Off the State Highway System Among County and Local 
Roadway Classes and Surface Types 

Functional Class Surface Type Percent of Ton-Miles 

Local Gravel 38.3% 
Major Collector Paved 34.8% 
Major Collector Gravel 19.1% 
Local Paved 3.9% 
Minor Arterial Paved 1.5% 
Local Graded & Drained 1.1% 
Local Trail < 1% 
Local Unimeroved < 1% 

Question 2: How much of the estimated road funding need relates to the 36 counties that 
do not produce oil or gas? 

As noted in the summary, the estimated annual paved road investment needs for the entire 
state ( exclusive of state highways and projected impacts of future oil development) is 
$100.5 million. Approximately $59 million of these needs relate to agricultural haul roads. 
The remainder corresponds to other county and local roads. The estimated annual unpaved 
road investment needs for the entire. state ( exclusive of state highways and projected 
impacts from future oil development) is $110 million. Approximately, $43.6 million of 
these needs relate to agricultural haul roads. The remainder corresponds to other local 
roads. Thus, the total estimated statewide need is $211.5 million per year, including $100.5 
million of paved road investment needs and $110 million of unpaved road investment 
needs. 

The estimated annual paved road investment needs in the 36 non-oil producing counties is 
$72.4 million. Approximately $47 million of these needs relate to agricultural haul roads. 
The remainder corresponds to other county and local roads. The estimated annual unpaved 
road investment needs in the 36 non-oil impacted counties is $76.6 million. Approximately 
$31.9 million of these needs relate to agricultural haul roads. The remainder corresponds to 
other county and local roads. Thus, the total estimated statewide need the 36 non-oil 
producing counties is approximately $ I 49 million per year. This information is 
summarized numerically in the following tables 
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Total Unpaved County and Local Road Funding Needs in North Dakota Exclusive of 
Funding Needs Attributable to Future Growth in Oil Production 
-Category Miles 
Ag Impact I 0,286 
Other 48,782 
Total 59,068 

Annual Cost (millions) 
$43.63 
$67.32 

$109.95 

Unpaved County and Local Road Funding Needs in Non-Oil Producing Counties 
Category Miles Annual Cost (Million) 
Ag Impact 7,163 $31.93 
Other 32,367 $44.70 
Total 39,530 $76.63 

Total Paved County and Local Road Funding Needs in North Dakota Exclusive of 
Funding Needs Attributable to Future Growth in Oil Production 
Category Miles Annualized Cost 

Ag Impact 3,958 $58.88 
Other 2,417 $41.58 
Total 6,375 $ I 00.46 

Paved County and Local Road Funding Needs in Non-Oil Producing Counties 
Category Miles Annualized Cost 

Ag Impact 
Other 
Total 

2,999 
1,386 
4,385 

$47.32 
$25.09 
$72.41 

Question 3: What is the distribution of funding needs within the 36 non-oil impacted 
counties? 

Distribution of Estimated Local and County Road Funding Needs for Agricultural 
Logistics Routes Among Counties and Road Types in Non-Oil Impacted Counties 

Percent of Road Funding N ceds 
County Gravel Roads Paved Roads 
Adams 
Barnes 
Benson 
Burleigh 
Cass 
Cavalier 
Dickey 

Agricultural Roads Study 

1.0% 
5.8% 
3.9% 
4.2% 

10.4% 
4.0% 
2.5% 

0.0% 
4.9% 
3.7% 
0.8% 
7.7% 
1.5% 
4.9% 
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Distribution of Estimated Local and County Road Funding Needs for Agricultural 
Logistics Routes Among Counties and·Road Types in Non-Oil Impacted Counties 

Percent of Road Funding Needs 
County Gravel Roads Paved Roads 
Eddy 2.1% 2.7% 
Emmons 1.3% 0.3% 
Foster 1.7% 2.5% 
Grand Forks 2.6% 6.8% 
Grant 0.6% 0.0% 
Griggs 4.8% 1.7% 
Hettinger 2.2% 2.3% 
Kidder 3.6% 1.3% 
Lamoure 2.5% 3.5% 
Logan 1.6% 0.2% 
McIntosh 0.5% 0.6% 
Morton 0.8% 1.2% 
Nelson 2.9% 3.7% 
Oliver 0.2% 0.6% 
Pembina 1.1% 5.2% 
Pierce 3.0% 0.4% 
Ramsey 3.1% 3.2% 
Ransom 2.1% 1.5% 
Richland 1.6% 6.0% 
Rolette 0.8% 1.2% 
Sargent 1.7% 2.0% 
Sheridan 2.1% 0.5% 
Sioux 0.0% 0.0% 
Steele 4.3% 3.7% 
Stutsman 7.2% 7.1% 
Towner 3.3% 0.1% 
Traiil 3.8% 7.7% 
Walsh 2.4% 6.4% 
Wells 4.1% 4.1% 

Question 4: What will happen if all of the funding needs identified in the study cannot 
be provided? Will crops cease to be produced in these areas because of poorer roads? 
Will agricultural logistics flows be stopped or slowed? 

The effects of limited road funding: will not be seen immediately in most areas. The 
changes will occur gradually. Paved roads that cannot be resurfaced in a timely manner 
because of limited funds may deteriorate beyond the point of resurfacing and have to be 
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reconstructed at much higher costs, if they are to be salvaged at all. Instead of being 
reconstructed, some of these paved roads may be converted to gravel roads because the 
cost to rehabilitate them is too great. Moreover, all roads will not be improved on a 
cyclical basis and normal maintenance will be more sporadic. The effects will be 
manifested in higher vehicle operating costs for all travelers because of rougher roads or 
longer trip distances to detour around the most deteriorated roads. 

The long-run effects are unknown and speculative. However, a poorer road system may 
affect the desirability of North Dakota as a future location for agricultural-related 
investments such as processing plants and biofuel facilities. Crops such as corn and 
soybeans can be grown in many states and regions, not just in North Dakota. A poorer road 
system creates uncertainties for industries that wish to minimize inventory costs at their 
plants. The cost of moving crops from farms to elevator and in-state processors affects the 
total supply-chain cost of goods produced in North Dakota. 

Clearly, poorer roads will not stop agricultural flows in the short run. However, roads and 
other infrastructure are important factors in the long-term economic competiveness of 
states and regions. Another concern is that transportation cost increases are typically borne 
by farm producers. As transportation costs increase, the prices received by farmers for their 
crops are effectively reduced for two reasons: I) it is more expensive to deliver to 
elevators, and 2) the proportion of elevator to market movements that go by truck are more 
expensive. Crops will continue to be produced regardless of road conditions. However, the 
amount of revenue earned by farm producers may be impacted, as well as the location of 
processing facilities. 

Agricultural Roads Study Page vii 



• 

• 

1. Overview of Study 

The purpose of this study is to analyze changes in agricultural production and logistics and 
the importance of roadway investments to the distribution of crops produced in North 
Dakota. According to the Agricultural Statistics Service, North Dakota leads the United 
States in the production of spring wheat, durum wheat, sunflower, barley, dry edible beans, 
canola, and flaxseed. In 2009, the total market value of agricultural goods produced in the 
state exceeded $5.5 billion. The top three commodities by value are: wheat ($1,822 
million), soybeans ($1,074 million), and corn ($708 million). According to the United 
States Department of Commerce, the agriculture sector of North Dakota is responsible for 
approximately 11 percent of the state's total economic output. 

Because of the importance of agriculture to the state's economy, this report focuses 
specifically on the investment needs of roads used to haul agricultural goods to market. 
The vital importance of transportation to agriculture is eloquently expressed in a 20 IO joint 
study by the United States Departments of Agriculture and Transportation, which notes: 

An effective transportation system supports rural economies, reducing the 
prices farmers pay for inputs, such as seed and fertilizer, raising the value 
of their crops, and greatly increasing their market access. The economies of 
rural areas are intertwined. As- agriculture thrives, so does its supporting 
community, Providing effective transportation for a rural region stimulates 
the farms and businesses served, improving the standard of living . ,. 
because it (agriculture) is so capital-intensive, it generates much more 
economic activity in the community than just the jobs it creates.' 

Although this study focuses on roads used for agricultural distribution, generalized 
estimates of investments for other roads are presented to provide a context for interpreting 
the results. However, the estimates presented in this report do not include the specific 
roadway investment needs attributable to the future growth of oil and gas industries in 
western North Dakota. A separate report (Additional Road Investments Needed to Support 
Oil and Gas Production and Distribution in North Dakota) includes forecasts of future 
infrastructure needs in western North Dakota, based on specific production scenarios. The 
estimates presented in this report reflect the baseline investment needs throughout the state, 
Note that the projected oil-related infrastructure needs cited in the separate report are in 
addition to the estimates presented in this study. Only county and local roads are 
considered in this analysis. Investment needs for state highways have already been 
estimated by the North Dakota Department of Transportation. 

1The United States Departments of Agriculture and Transportation, Study of Rural Transportation Issues, April 
2010 . 
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The report begins with an overview of important trends in agricultural production and 
logistics that create a context for analyzing investment needs in agricultural haul roads. 
After this overview, the primary data and methods used in the study are described, 
followed by a presentation ofresults and implications. 

2. Background Trends 

Many important changes have occurred during the last two decades that have implications 
for agricultural logistics and roadway investment needs. The key factors driving this study 
are summarized below: 

1. 

2. 
3. 

4. 
5. 
6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Yields have been increasing over time resulting in more crop volume and 
movements from a given land area. 
Crop mix has been changing over time resulting in greater densities of production. 
The number of elevators has decreased over time resulting in fewer delivery 
options. 
Shipments have become more concentrated at a fewer number of elevators. 
From trends 3 and 4, it follows that longer farm-to-elevator hauls are required. 
More grains are being transshipped from smaller to larger elevators resulting in 
longer combined truck trips. 
The location of in-state processing and biofuels production has resulted in more 
intrastate truck (as opposed to interstate rail) movements . 
Funding for county and local roads exclusive of oil extraction funds has grown only 
modestly over time (when measured in real dollars). 
In contrast, construction prices have increased dramatically over time for asphalt 
and gravel roads. 

The last two factors relate specifically to roadway funding limitations and their effects on 
roadway infrastructure. Each of the key factors is highlighted in the following sections. 

2.1. Yield Increases 

Due to increases in crop and production technology and improvements in management 
practices, crop yields in North Dakota have increased during the past 20 years. The degree 
of increase varies from year to year due to weather conditions, but the underlying trend is 
upward. 

Figure 1 depicts the statewide yield trends for corn, soybeans, and spring wheat. In 1990, 
corn averaged 80 bushels per acre throughout the state. However, corn yields rose to 115 
bushels per acre in 2009, down from a high of 124 bushels per acre in 2008. Soybean 
yields have remained relatively consistent throughout the period. Statewide average wheat 
yields have increased slightly during the past 20 years, with the average yield in the 1990s 
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being 31.85 bushels/acre versus 36.45 bushels/acre in 2000. Discussions with industry and 
research contacts indicate that yields are expected to continue to increase in the future 
primarily due to seed technology and genetics. 
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Figure I Statewide Yield Trends for Com, Soybeans and Spring Wheat (1990-2009) 

2.2. Changes in Crop Mix 

A second production factor that has increased the volume of grain shipped in North Dakota 
is the changing crop mix. In 1990, roµghly 60 percent of the crop land in North Dakota 
was planted to wheat (Figure 2). In 2009, this number was 45 percent. Over the same 
period, com acres have increased from 5 to IO percent of cropland and soybean acres have 
risen from 2 to 20 percent of crop land in North Dakota. The shift from wheat to soybeans 
does not contribute to increased truck volume because the yields are similar. However, the 
shift from wheat to com production results in increased truck volumes because the relative 
yield of com is more than double that of wheat on a statewide basis . 
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Figure 2 Statewide Percentages of Planted Acres for Com, Soybeans and Spring Wheat 

While Figure 2 illustrates changes in crop mix statewide, there are significant variations at 
the regional level, although the trends are similar. The figures presented in Appendix A 
depict specific changes in the proportions of acres devoted to the production of wheat, 
com, soybeans and other crops at the Crop Reporting District (regional) level. 

2.3. Changes in Elevator Numbers and Locations 

To illustrate key trends, statistics were compiled on the numbers and locations of grain 
elevators in North Dakota from 1990 to 2009. Specifically, the North Dakota Public 
Service Commission's grain movement database was used to compile statistics on the 
number of licensed elevators in the state. The grain movement database assigns a unique 
identifier to each elevator served by each railroad. A small number of elevators are 
represented twice because they are served by more than one railroad. 

During the 1990-2009 period when increasing yields and changes in crop mix were 
resulting in more output per acre and greater volumes were being shipped from farms to 
elevators, the number and size of elevator facilities were changing. As shown in Figure 3, 
the number of elevators shipping grains or oilseeds has decreased over the past 20 years. In 
1990, 458 elevators shipped grains or oilseeds. By 2009, this number had decreased to 311 
elevators. The elimination of elevators has resulted in fewer delivery options for farmers 
marketing grain. 
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Figure 3 Number of Elevators Shipping Grain in North Dakota by Year (1990-2009) 

2.4. Trends in Elevator Throughput 

While the total number of elevators has decreased, the amount of grain handled by these 
facilities has increased. Figure 4 shows that the average tonnage shipped from elevators in 
North Dakota was relatively constant throughout the mid-1990s. From 1998 to present, 
there has been an increase in the average tonnage shipped from elevators in the state. In 
comparison, the median elevator throughput has remained constant over the past 20 years. 

2.5. Shuttle Elevators 

In the late 1990s, shuttle-train programs were introduced wherein an elevator may receive 
a reduced rail rate if it is able lo meet certain conditions and satisfy minimum grain 
shipment volumes designated by the railroads. "Shuttle loading facilities influence 
commodity movement by rail, both in and out of state. They also impact the highway 
system, since trucks must move commodities to the shuttle facility for rail loading."2 

Figure 5 shows the average tons shipped from shuttle and non-shuttle elevators in North 
Dakota. Prior to the shuttle-train program, elevator throughput statewide averaged 31,930 
tons in the 1990s. This volume has remained relatively unchanged for non-shuttle elevators 
through this decade. However, for shuttle elevators, throughput volume has increased from 
74,600 tons in 1997 to 240,640 tons in 2009. 

2 North Dakota Department of Transportation, Rail Plan Update, 2007. 

----------------------------·------·--··-·-
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2.6. Transshipments 

In addition to higher volumes of grain being handled at shuttle elevators, there has been a 
recent increase in the amount of bushels transshipped within the state. These types of 
movements represent an elevator-to-elevator shipment, such as a satellite elevator shipping 
to a shuttle elevator. Figure 6 depicts !he amount of grain transshipped via truck and rail 
over the past 20 years. 
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Figure 6 Bushels Transshipped in North Dakota by Mode ( I 990-2009) 

2.7. Funding For Roads 

Trends in roadway capital investment in current and constant 1994 dollars are illustrated in 
Figure 7. These represent only the funds invested or spent by local govemments-e.g., 
county, township, and municipal governments. The period from 1994 to 1996 saw 
relatively little increase in local road funding as measured in constant 1994 dollars. 
However, an increase in capital investment occurred in I 996 to 1997, with the following 
five years from 1997 to 200 I exhibiting stable funding in constant dollars. However, 
capital outlays increased dramatically during 2002. The dramatic increase in 2002 was a 
singular event. Since 2003, capital funding (as measured in 1994 dollars) has generally 
decreased. 

As shown in Figure 8, expenditures for road maintenance and traffic services have 
increased over time, especially in current dollars. However, the increase has been modest 
in real terms, approximately 1.5 percent per year from 1994 through 2007. 
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Figure 8 Outlays for Road Maintenance and Traffic Services in North Dakota 

3Sources: United States Department of Transportation - Federal Highway Administration, 1994-2009 and the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics, 1994-2009. 
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2.8. Road Construction Prices 

Although general inflationary trends are reflected in Figures 7 and 8, cost increases have 
strongly affected roadway construction and maintenance. In particular, construction prices 
have increased dramatically over time for asphalt and gravel roads. Throughout the last 
decade, increases in petroleum prices have been the primary contributor to increased 
construction costs at the state level. According to the Federal Highway Administration, in 
addition to higher fuel prices, consolidation of the construction industry, localized 
shortages of materials, shortages of skilled labor, regulatory restrictions, increased 
technical requirements in contracts, and other factors have . contributed to higher 
construction bid prices. 

Figure 9 shows the Producer Price Index for material and supply inputs to highway 
construction at the national level for the past 20 years. The price index does not include the 
cost of labor or administration, and focuses primarily on the components and materials 
used in road construction. As the figure shows, construction costs have increased 
throughout the entire period. However, the rate of increase has been much more 
pronounced from 2003 to 2008. During this period, the construction cost index increased 
from 136.6 to 222.4. Increases in construction costs result in fewer roadways being 
improved at a constant revenue level. 
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Figure 9 Producer Price Index for Material and Supply Inputs to Highway and Street 
Construction4 

4 Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, 1990-2009 . 
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The purpose of this section of the report has been to describe key trends in agricultural 
production and logistics, as well as trends in road funding and construction costs. The 
analysis depicts a set of factors that are collectively stressing the county and local road 
systems used to market and distribute North Dakota products. With this background, the 
report transitions to a description of the primary data and methods used to predict 
agricultural traffic flows and roadway investment needs. 

3. Analysis Models and Data 

The estimates presented in this report have strong analytical foundations. The study 
features the integration of four main models: (I) a crop production and location model; (2) 
a crop distribution model, in which movements or flows are predicted from crop-producing 
zones to elevators and processing plants; (3) a traffic model in which predicted flows are 
assigned to individual road segments; and (4) a road investment model, in which truck 
traffic and road characteristics are used to estimate investment needs. Models 1 and 3 are 
based on Geographic Information System (GIS) data and procedures, while the crop 
distribution model (Model 2) is grounded in mathematical programming logic. The road 
analysis model is based on highway planning and economic-engineering methods. 

The first three types of models are summarized in the following sections. Roadway 
analysis methods for paved and gravel roads are described later in the report. 

3.1. Crop Production and Location Model 

In the analysis, it is vital to know not only the quantities of crops produced but their 
locations. More precise location information enables refinements in trip forecasting and the 
analysis of individual roadway segments. To provide greater accuracy, crop production 
estimates are generated for 1,340 county subdivisions in North Dakota.5 USDA's 2009 
crop satellite image is used for this purpose. 

Using satellite imagery, the square miles of land devoted to the production of each crop in 
each county subdivision is estimated using GIS technology. However, the satellite image is 
only a snapshot of cultivation at a particular time. It is not an inventory of harvested crops. 
Moreover, it is an approximation subject to analytical limitations. 

For these reasons, the predicted square miles devoted to crop production in each 
subdivision are adjusted based on the 2009 county production values published by the 
North Dakota Office of the National Agricultural Statistics Service (NASS). In this 
process, the predicted production of each crop in each subdivision is apportioned based on 
its share of cultivated land area within the county. For example, if five percent of the total 

5 For the most part, subdivisions are synonymous with organized townships. 
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cultivated acres in a county devoted to barley production lies within a certain township, 
this subdivision is assumed to produce five percent of the barley harvested in the county. 
This method implicitly assumes that barley yields are the same everywhere in the county. 

While the estimates are subject to limitations, there is a high degree of accuracy in the 
predicted crop locations. In effect, the estimates are the most accurate possible without 
detailed field surveys, which are beyond the scope of this study. As discussed later, the 
predicted crop production levels in each county subdivision represent the zonal supplies of 
the distribution model. 

3.2. Market Demands 

The markets for the agricultural cornmodities produced in North Dakota are defined as 
processing plants within the state or elevators that ship crops out of state to various 
domestic and export locations. The demands at elevators are compiled from monthly 
reports submitted to the North Dakota Public Service Commission. The demands at ethanol 
plants are derived from several sources including: (I) reported shipments from North 
Dakota elevators to in-state processors, (2) the stated productive capacities of the plants, 
and (3) confidential survey information that describes the percentages of com acquired 
from the local drawing areas around the plants and expected production volumes. 

In effect, the demands at elevators and ethanol plants are known with high levels of 
confidence. The same cannot be said for all other demand sources. The lower boundary of 
demand at the Ladish Malt Plant in Spiritwood is known from the inbound shipments of 
barley from elevators in North Dakota. In the network model, this target is allowed to 
increase in relation to local supply in the nearby area. Consequently, the estimated demand 
at the facility should be close to actual levels. Less data are available regarding the final 
demands of specialty crops such as dry edible beans, peas, and lentils. Nonetheless, the 
demands for crops at specific locations are known with high levels of confidence overall. 

3.3. Network Representation of Crop Distribution System 

Terminology is important when describing the objectives and results of the crop 
distribution model. Such a model is comprised of a set of nodes and paths that connect the 
nodes. Shipments flow from node-to-node via the paths. 

A path (such as one leading from a crop-producing subdivision to an elevator) is typically 
comprised of many individual road segments. Each segment (or link) is demarcated by two 
intersections or junctions in the road network. In many instances, two or more paths may 
be chained to form a trip chain or route. For example, a trip route may include a path from 
a crop-producing subdivision to an elevator, and a path from that elevator to a processing 
plant. 
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3.3.1. Nodes 

The nodes consist of three types: ongm, intermediate, and destination. The county 
subdivisions where the crops are produced are origin nodes. The elevators and in-state 
processing plants are destination nodes. However, elevators may also serve as intermediate 
nodes. As an intermediate or transshipment node, an elevator may receive shipments 
directly from subdivisions or from other elevators. Subdivisions may ship directly to in­
state markets (e.g., ethanol plants). 

Terminal elevators are defined as those that export crops out of state. A shuttle-train 
facility is a terminal elevator. Other elevators may function as terminal elevators when they 
export grains and oilseeds from the state. However, in other cases, these elevators function 
as intermediate or transshipment facilities. 

A simplified grain distribution system is depicted in Figure 10. As the figure shows, farm 
producers from various subdivisions or townships may ship directly to a shuttle-train 
elevator, or to a smaller elevator located closer to the subdivision. The smaller elevator, in 
tum, may transship some of the grain it procures to the shuttle-train facility; which, in tum, 
ships large quantities by rail to markets located out of state. A similar network can be 
drawn by substituting a processing plant for the shuttle elevator. In this case, the primary 
outbound product will be ethanol, vegetable oil, malt, or flour . 

Tl 

T2 

Trucking 

T3 

T4 

Figure 10 Crop Flows in Elevator Network 
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• There are several types of truck shipments in a grain distribution network. A producer may 
haul crops to a smaller elevator in trucks owned and operated by the farm. At a later date, 
the grain may be trucked to a shuttle-train elevator or plant in commercial trucks. 
Alternatively, the farm producer may truck directly to a shuttle facility or plant. All types 
of flows are simulated in the model. 

3.3.2. Paths and Segments 

At a microscopic level, a path may consist of many individual road segments. For example, 
a subdivision-to-elevator path may include local gravel roads, paved county major 
collectors, and state arterial highway~, In the GIS model, the fastest path through the 
network is identified from each subdivision to the nearest 10 to 20 elevators.6 Because 
there are more than 150,000 unique road segments in the North Dakota GIS file, the input 
files are enormous and require extensive computable time. However, in the final analysis, 
flows are accumulated by.individual road segments-which allow for greater detail in the 
roadway investment analysis. 

3.4. Criteria and Objectives of Crop Distribution Model 

The objective of the distribution model is to predict crop flows that minimize time or 
distance, while meeting the demands of in-state processing plants and terminal elevators. 
The fastest-path algorithm is used to generate paths from subdivisions to elevators and 
plants, and from elevator-to-elevator. Because some of the paths extend to distant 
elevators, the fastest-path criterion seems most reasonable. Over a short distance, a truck 
operator may follow a shorter zigzag path. However, for longer trips, truckers will quickly 
move toward the major collector/arterial network where the speeds are faster and more 
consistent. 7 

In identifying the fastest paths, maximum speeds are specified for each road segment based 
on the functional classification and surface type ( e.g., paved or gravel). The maximum 
speeds range from 75 mph on Interstate highways to 10 mph on unimproved roads. While 
the fastest path criterion is the best for identifying paths over long distances, the predicted 
travel times are not accurate. The only information available is the speed limit, or the 
assumed speed for local roads or trails. 

In reality, maximum speeds may not be consistently attainable or may vary greatly due to 
weather, traffic, and operating conditions. Thus, the selection of one path over another 
( e.g., a direct movement from a subdivision to one elevator versus another one) is based on 

6 In a few areas, the density of the elevator system is not sufficient to allow the connection of each crop-
producing zone to 20 facilities. ·' 
7 The shortest-path algorithm yields slightly shorter trip distances than the fastest-path algorithm-i.e., less than 
2 percent on average. Thus, the selection of one method over the other does not significantly affect the results. 
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distance-i.e., the shortest of the two fastest alternative paths. Shorter distances minimize 
fuel consumption and use-related vehicle depreciation. Moreover, in contrast to the 
predicted trip times, the distances are relatively accurate and do not vary during the year. 

3.4.1. Minimum Distance Criterion 

The objective of the mathematical programming model is to minimize the distance of 
moving all agricultural commodities to plants or final elevators, from where they are 
shipped out of state. In effect, the model identifies an optimal or logistically efficient set of 
truck movements. These movements minimize use-related vehicle depreciation and 
maintenance, as well as fuel consumption. In many cases, the predicted movements may 
also minimize travel time. Because trucking cost is typically measured on a per-mile basis, 
minimizing the distance of agricultural goods movements is parallel to minimizing 
trucking cost on a system-wide basis.8 

3.4.2. Total Trip Distance 

The model minimizes the total or route trip distance including transshipments from one 
elevator to another or from an elevator to an in-state processing plant. Transshipments may 
occur when production in the primary draw area is not sufficient to meet the elevator's 
demands. In these cases, grains or oilseeds may be delivered by farmers from remote 
townships to elevators located on the periphery of the larger facility's draw area. These 
deliveries are processed at the smaller facilities and then resold to the shuttle- or unit-train 
elevator and shipped by commercial truck to that facility. In this case, the trip chain 
extends from the township to the shuttle- or unit-train elevator via the smaller elevator en­
route. In many cases, a shuttle elevator or ethanol plant may contract with elevators to 
collect, process, and reship grain. In interpreting the results, it is important to recall that the 
route distance represents the total trip distance from farm to plant or terminal elevator, 
where the terminal elevator is one that ships the commodity out of state. 

3.4.3. Contextual Factors 

The realism of the crop distribution model depends on several factors. It assumes that price 
competition exists among elevators. As a result, a primary market or draw area surrounds 
each facility. Within this zone, crops are most likely to be delivered to the elevator or 
plant. Of course, the primary draw areas of shuttle-train and unit-train elevators may be 
larger than the draw areas of smaller elevators. Nevertheless, price relationships reflect the 
capability of smaller elevators to resell grains and oilseeds to larger elevators. For 

8 The prime interest of this study is estimating the ton-miles of agricultural goods movements via particular 
routes, as opposed to the trucking cost involved in delivering grains and oilseeds to markets. However, the 
predicted flow pattern is the same as that which would result from minimizing the average trucking cost per 
mile. 
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example, the price at a so-called satellite elevator that routinely resells grain to a shuttle 
elevator may reflect the price at the larger elevator plus the trucking cost from the smaller 
elevator to the larger one, plus the handling and processing cost at the smaller facility. 
These competitive relationships, along with truck cost factors, create tendencies for 
producers to deliver to closer elevators. These tendencies are intensified by higher fuel 
prices. Although diesel fuel prices have dropped since 2008, they have been on an upward 
trend since March of 2009. Although higher crop prices at shuttle elevators are attractive, 
higher fuel prices create greater impedances to long-distance travel. 

3.4.4. System versus Local Criteria 

Clearly, every farm producer will not deliver to the closest elevator, and the model does 
not predict this will occur. Rather, movements are restricted by elevator demands, which 
represent the known outbound shipments from each facility in crop year 2009-20 I 0. 
Elevator volumes are reflections of the competitive landscape and market draw areas 
discussed previously. When an elevator's demand is fulfilled, no additional inbound 
movements are simulated. Even if the ·elevator is the most attractive facility for a producer 
on the fringe of its draw area, the producer's grains or oilseeds are shipped to another 
elevator whose demand must be filled.· 

In this model, the demands are known (and assumed to be fixed). The objective is to find 
the pattern of flows that moves the known supplies of crops from subdivisions to elevators 
and plants with the fewest ton-miles, while meeting the known demands of the facilities. 
This is far different from saying each farm producer delivers his or her crops to the closest 
elevator. 

4. Predicted Flows 

The predicted tons of each major crop are shown in Table 1, as well as the weighted­
average lengths of haul. Note that the average distance includes the movement from farm 
to first elevator or plant, as well as any subsequent movements from the first elevator to 
other facilities-i.e., transshipments. In effect, it is the total trip distance discussed in 
Section 3.4. It reflects trips from farms to in-state processors, as well as to elevators. The 
oilseed category in Table I includes sunflowers and canola, while. the other crop category 
includes dry edible beans, oats, and other specialty crops. 

Approximately 21.89 million tons of ~rops are analyzed in this study. The total predicted 
distance of these movements (including transshipment distances) is 26.2 miles.9 However, 
there are significant variations among crops. The average trip distance for barley reflects a 

9 When the shortest path algorithm is used (instead of the fastest path algorithm) in the initial selection of routes, 
the weighted-average distance drops to 25.6 miles: 
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spatial disconnect between supply and demand. Much of the barley grown in 2009 was 
cultivated in the north-central region including Bottineau County. However, most of the 
major demand sources are plants and elevators in eastern North Dakota, necessitating 
longer hauls than for other commodities. The weighted-average route distance for 
commodities other than barley is 21 miles, suggesting that the longer barley hauls 
significantly inflate the average. 

Table 1. Predicted Tons of Agricultural Freight and Average Trip Lengths 
Crop Annual Tons Average Trip Distance (mi.) 
Barley 1,681,418 87.8 
Com 5,102,252 21.1 
Oilseeds 578,929 26.6 
Other 547,028 39.7 
Soybeans 4,144,969 23.1 
Beans 562,124 30.8 
Wheat 9,268,699 I 8.1 
All Crops 21,885,419 26.2 

The predicted ton-miles of agricultural goods are shown in Tables 2 and 3, respectively. In 
Table 2, the predicted ton-miles are listed by type of pavement. In some cases, the owner 
(state or local government) is indicated. As the table shows, agricultural goods required 
roughly 600 million ton-miles of transportation during crop year 2009-2010. More than 
half of these ton-miles occurred on principal arterial highways, most of which are owned 
and maintained by the North Dakota Department of Transportation. The next greatest 
concentration of flows is on county major collectors: approximately 132 million ton-miles. 
Sixty-five percent of these ton-miles travel paved county major collector (CMC) roads 
(Table 4). The remaining 35 percent move on gravel CMC roads. 

Table 2. Predicted Ton-Miles of Agricultural Freight by Road Type 

Surface Type 

Paved: High-Type (State) 
Paved (County and Local) 
Graded & Drained 

Gravel 
Trail 
Unimproved 

All Roads 

Agricultural Roads Study 

Ton Miles 

3 I 9,449,945 
99,563,913 
2,807,777 

141,222,015 
2,233,471 

720,330 

565,997,453 

Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 

Percent 

56.4% 
17.6% 

0.5% 
25.0% 
0.4% 
0.1% 

100.0% 
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Table 3. Predicted Ton-Miles of Agricultural Freight by Roadway Class 

Functional Class Ton-Miles Percent 

Principal Arterial 319,871,952 57% 
Minor Arterial 3,804,845 1% 
Major Collector 132,333,047 23% 

Minor Collector 621,758 0% 
Local 109,365,851 19% 

All Roads 565,997,453 100% 

Table 4 Distribution of Agricultural Ton-Miles Among Paved and Graveled County 
Major Collector Roads 

Surface Type Ton-Miles Percent of Ton-Miles 

Gravel 46,866,136 35.4% 

Paved 85,459,102 64.6% 
Trail 7,808 0.0% 

With this overview of agricultural goods movements, the report now turns to the 
estimation of road impacts; starting with unpaved roads. Only county and local roads are 
considered in this analysis. Investment needs for state highways have already been 
estimated by the North Dakota Department of Transportation . 

5. Unpaved Road Analysis 

5.1. Cost and Practices Data 

Survey responses from a 2009 study were used to compile gravel cost, gravel overlay 
thickness, application frequency, and blading frequency and cost. When survey responses 
were unavailable, the district average was used to represent the costs and practices. 

The gravel overlay thickness represents the quality of the gravel surface as well as 
roadway condition. Responses ii:tdicate that the statewide average gravel thickness is 932 
cubic yards/mile. However, there is substantial variation from one part of the state to 
another. Gravel loss factors such as, weather conditions, traffic volume, traffic speed in 
addition to gravel cost and availability factors are likely reasons for the variations. 

,. 

The gravel interval represents the quality of the gravel surface as well as the roadway 
condition and maintenance practices. Responses indicate that the statewide average gravel 
interval is 6 years, with 5 years being the most frequent response. However, there is 
substantial variation from one part of the state to another. Gravel loss factors such as 
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weather conditions, traffic volume, traffic speed in addition to gravel cost and availability 
factors are likely reasons for these variations. 

As mentioned above, cost and availability of quality gravel likely impact the decisions of 
counties with respect to overlay thickness and timing. As was observed with the gravel 
overlay thickness and interval, wide variations in gravel cost were reported, both statewide 
as well as within regions. The statewide average was $6.54 per cubic yard, ranging from 
$3.00 to $14.00 per cubic yard. 

The final activity used in estimating county level costs is the blading interval. The blading 
interval is representative of the counties' maintenance activities. Factors such as traffic 
volume, speed, and weather conditions influence the frequency and necessity of road 
maintenance. 

5.2. Cost Estimation 

The survey responses were the primary tool used to estimate district level costs. A 
spreadsheet model was constructed to calculate annualized gravel road improvement and 
maintenance costs for varying levels of gravel thickness, intervals, overlays, and blading 
intervals. ' 

5.3. Classification 

The network flow model generated agricultural related truck trips by impacted segment. 
This number was added to the baseline average daily traffic (ADT) to obtain the total ADT 
for impacted sections. Using the predicted ADT volumes, unpaved segments were 
classified by traffic volumes: 0-50, 50-100, I 00-150 and 150-200. No gravel roads in this 
analysis exceeded 200 ADT. It is assumed that as traffic levels increase, the amount and/or 
frequency of gravel application and blading will increase to preserve surface condition. 

Table 5 Miles of Gravel Road Included in the Analysis by ADT Class 
ADT Class ADT Range 
I 0-50 
2 5~100 
3 l00-150 
4 150-200 

5.4. Maintenance and Improvement 

Miles 
5,466 
4,804 

15 

As mentioned above, as traffic increase on gravel roads, the frequency of maintenance 
activities must increase to preserve surface condition. Using the cost model, annualized 
costs were calculated for 5, 4, and 3 year gravel application intervals. Based upon these 
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annualized estimates, improvement costs for the three gravel ADT classes are estimated 
and presented in Table 6. While the first phase of the analysis considers only the roads 
impacted by agricultural traffic, the remaining roads must also be maintained. The annual 
cost estimates for these roads and the total estimates are also presented in the table below. 

Table 6 Annual Cost Estimates for Gravel Roads in North Dakota ($2010) 
Category Miles 
Ag Impact 
Other 
Total 

6. Paved Road Analysis 

10,286 
48,782 
59,068 

Cost 
$43,627,275 
$67,319,298 

$109,946,573 

The factors that drive the paved road analysis are: (I) the number of trucks that travel the 
road segment, (2) the types of trucks and axle configurations used to haul agricultural 
commodities, (3) the structural characteristics of the roads in agricultural logistics routes, 
( 4) the widths of the roads, and (5) their current surface conditions. Each of these factors 
is discussed in the following sections of the report. 

6.1. Truck Types 

A previous survey of elevators revealed the types of trucks used to haul grains and oilseeds 
and the frequencies of use. As shown in Table 7, approximately 56 percent of the inbound 
volume is transported to elevators in five-axle tractor-semitrailer trucks. Another four 
percent arrives in double trailer trucks-e.g., Rocky Mountain Doubles. Another twelve to 
thirteen percent arrives in four-axle trucks equipped with triple or tridem rear axles. 

After considering entries in the other category, the following assumptions were made. 
Sixty-two percent of the grains and oilseeds arriving at elevators in North Dakota will 
arrive in combination trucks, as typified by the five-axle tractor-semitrailer. The remaining 
38 percent will arrive in single-unit trucks, as typified by the three-axle truck. 

Table 7 Types of Trucks Used to Transport Grain to Elevators in North Dakota 
Truck Type Percentage of Inbound Volume 
Single unit three-axle truck (with tandem axle) 25.15% 
Single unit four-axle truck (with tridem axle) 
Five-axle tractor-semitrailer 
Tractor-semitrailer with pup (7 axles) 
Other 
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6.2. Truck Axle Weights 

Truck loads are transmitted to the pavement through the truck's axles and wheels. 
Therefore, axle configurations and weights are important in this study. The pavement 
design equations of the American Association of State Highway and Transportation 
Officials (AASHTO) are used to analyze axle impacts. These same equations are used by 
most state transportation departments in the United States. The equations are expressed in 
equivalent single axle loads (ESALs). In this metric, the weights of various axle 
configurations (e.g., single, tandem, and tridem axles) are converted to a uniform measure 
of pavement impact. With this concept, the service life of a road can be expressed in 
ESALs instead of truck trips. 

6.2.1. Effects of Axle Weights 

An ESAL factor for a specific axle represents the impact of that axle in comparison to an 
18,000-pound single axle. The effects are nonlinear. 1° For example, a 16,000-pound single 
axle followed by a 20,000-pound single axle generates a total of 2. I 9 ESALs, as compared 
to two ESALs for the passage of two 18,000-pound single axles. 11 An increase in a single­
axle load from 18,000 to 22,000 pounds more than doubles the pavement impact, 
increasing the ESAL factor from 1.0 to 2.44. Because of these nonlinear relationships, 
even modest illegal overloads (e.g., 22,000 pounds on a single axle) can significantly 
reduce pavement life. 

6.2.2. ESAL Factors 

ESAL factors are estimated for the prototypical grain trucks mentioned earlier. This 
calculation is illustrated for a tractor-semitrailer weighing 80,000 pounds with a weight 
distribution of 12,000 pounds on the front (steering) axle and 34,000 pounds on each of the 
tandem axles. The ESAL factor for a 34,000-pound tandem axle is 1.07, which suggests 
that its impact is only marginally greater than the impact of an 18,000-pound single axle. 
The ESAL factor for the 12,000-pound single axle is 0.177 and the overall ESAL factor for 
the truck is 0.177 + 1.07 x 2 = 2.32. This means that for every loaded mile the truck travels 
it is consuming a small part of a pavement's life, as measured by 2.32 units or ESALs. A 
similar calculation for a 50,000-pound three-axle truck (with a tandem rear axle) yields an 
ESAL factor of 1.68-i.e., 0.61 + 1.07. 

The AASHTO ESAL factors were originally estimated when tire pressures were much 
lower than they are today. As shown in Figure 11, modem tire pressures increase the 

'° The relationship between ESALs and axle loads is approximately a fourth power relationship. 
11 These calculations reflect a light pavement section with a structural number of2.0 and a terminal serviceability 
(PSR) of2.0. 
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ESAL factor by as much as 20%. In effect, the true ESAL factor of a tractor-semitrailer is 
2.78 per loaded mile. All ending calculations in this study reflect adjustments for higher 
tire pressures. 

The use of single instead of dual tires on drive and trailer axles may further impact the 
ESAL factor. With 6 inches of wander ( e.g., lateral variation in the placement of tires on 
pavements), the use of single tires on drive and trailer axles may increase the ESAL factor 
by as much as 50%. 12 In this study, only the steering axle of the truck is assumed to be 
equipped with single tires. Therefore, no adjustments are necessary. 

1.25 
~-----· ------

ESALs 1.2 / 

1.15 / 

1.05 ,-

1 

0.95 

75 

6.3. Surface Conditions 

80 85 90 95 100 105 110 
Tire Pressure (psi) 

cial Report 

Roads conditions are often assessed by examining the distress and roughness of the surface 
layer. Table 8 shows the results of a 2008 survey of county road managers in which they 
were asked to rate the current conditions of the roads in their counties, by functional 
class-i.e., county major collector or local road. The survey results have been weighted by 
the miles in each class and county. As the table shows, approximately nine percent of 
county major collector miles are in poor or fair-to-poor condition. In comparison, 42.5 
percent of county local road miles are in poor or fair-to-poor condition. Most of the miles 

12 Transportation Research Board. Truck Weight limits: Issues & Options, Special Report 225, National 
Academies Press, 1990 . 
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in each classification are rated as fair. Less than 5 percent of county locaf road miles are in 
good condition. 

Table 8 Percent of Miles by Condition Level and Functional Class 

Surface Condition County Major Collector Local Roads 

Good 26.98 4.51 

Good/Fair 4.61 

Fair 59.63 52.99 

Fair/Poor 3.11 4.41 

Poor 5.68 38.09 

6.4. Structural Numbers 

The capability of a paved road to accommodate heavy truck traffic is reflected in its 
structural rating, which is measured through the structural number (SN). The structural 
number is a function of the thickness of the surface and base layers and the materials of 
these layers. The surface layer is typically composed of asphalt while the base layer is 
comprised of aggregate material. The amount of cracking and deterioration of the surface 
layer is considered in the structural number of an aging pavement. Moreover, the 
conditions of base layers and underlying soils are important considerations when assessing 
seasonal load limits and the year-round capabilities of roads. 

The average thicknesses of pavement layers in county and local paved roads are shown in 
Table 9. These values represent weighted means derived from a 2008 survey. The 
estimates have been weighted by the miles of county major collector and local road in each 
reporting county. 

Table 9 Weighted-Average Layer Thicknesses of County Collector and Local Roads in 
North Dakota 

Base layer thickness (inches) 

Surface layer thickness (inches) 

County Major Collector 
5.1 
4.1 

Local Road 
3.9 
4.0 

When estimating in-service structural numbers, a badly deteriorated layer is likely to be 
assigned a lower coefficient. 13 For example, the average in-service structural number of a 

13 The pavement design guide of the American Association of Stale Highway and Transportation Officials 
(AASHTO, 1993) suggests the use of asphalt surface coefficients ranging from 0.15 to 0.40 for in-service 
pavements, based on the extent of longitudinal patterned (e.g., alligator) cracking and transverse cracks. As a 
point of reference, a new asphalt surface is typically assigned a structural coefficient of 0.44: For aggregate base 
layers, the AASHTO guide suggests using coefficients of 0.0 to 0.11, depending upon the extent of degradation 
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county major collector in poor condition with substantial distress may be computed as 5.1 
inches of base x 0.07 + 4.1 inches of asphalt x 0.20 = 1.2. Similarly, the average in-service 
structural number of a county local road in poor condition with substantial surface layer 
distress may be 1.1 ( e.g., 3.9 inches of base x 0.07 + 4.0 inches of asphalt x 0.20). 14 

6.5. Potential Improvements to County Collector and Local Roads 

The types of potential road improvements analyzed in this study are reconstruction and 
resurfacing. If a pavement is not too badly deteriorated, normal resurfacing is a cost­
effective method of restoring the structural capacity of a road. In this type of improvement, 
a new asphalt layer is placed on top of the existing pavement. The thickness of the layer 
may vary. However, it may be as thick as five inches. Without extensive truck traffic, a 
relatively thin overlay (e.g., 2 to 3 inches) can often be effectively applied. 

Reconstruction entails the replacement of a pavement in its entirety-i.e., the existing 
pavement is removed and replaced by one that is equivalent or superior. Reconstruction 
includes drainage work and shoulder improvements, as well as the widening of 
substandard lanes. In contrast, resurfacing leaves the pavement intact. In lieu of 
replacement, hot mix asphalt is placed on the existing surface in a quantity needed to return 
the pavement to an acceptable level of serviceability and restore its structural strength 

6.5.1. Reconstruction 

A road may be reconstructed for several reasons. (I) The pavement is too deteriorated to 
resurface. Roads in the poor and very poor classifications fall into this group. (2) The road 
has a degraded base that will provide little structural contribution to a resurfaced pavement. 
(3) The roadbed is comprised of poor soils that are susceptible to moisture. In this case, 
reconstruction is necessary to provide year-round service at the maximum legal weight. (4) 
The road is too narrow to accommo~ate thick overlays without widening. In this case, 
reconstruction may be the only alternative that does not reduce capacity or potentially 
affect safety. 

6.5.2. Feasibility of Overlays on Narrow Roads 

The graded width determines if a substantial new asphalt layer can be placed on top of the 
road without compromising its capacity. As the top of the road is elevated due to overlays, 

and contamination of aggregates with fine soil particles or abrasions. 
14 In comparison, the average in-service structural number of a county major collector in fair condition may be 
1.6 (e.g., 5.1 inches of base x 0.08 + 4.1 inches of asphalt x 0.28). Similarly, the average in-service structural 
number of a county local road in fair condition may be 1.4 (e.g., 3.9 inches of base x 0.08+ 4.0 inches of asphalt 
X 0,28) . 
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a cross-sectional slope must be maintained. 15 Consequently, the useable width may 
decline. Typically, this is not an issue for wider roads (e.g., 34-feet or more in width). 
However, for narrower roads, it may result in reduced lane and shoulder widths and/or the 
elimination of shoulders. In the ultimate case, the narrowest roads cannot be resurfaced. 
The probabilities of crashes increase when roadway widths are narrowed. 16 

6.5.3. Improvement Logic 

In this study, segments with higher traffic volumes are considered for reconstruction 
because of width and operational concerns. Unfortunately, detailed information regarding 
graded widths could not be obtained for this study. Only aggregate values were obtainable. 
Without knowledge of the widths of individual segments, reconstruction improvements are 
allocated to segments in counties with insufficient roadway widths based on traffic until a 
modest level of traffic is reached. 

At a minimum, reconstruction will prevent the loss of width. It may also provide for minor 
widening, shoulder and drainage improvements. As a result, reconstruction may enhance 
capacity (as measured in vehicles per hour) because of wider lanes and shoulders. Shoulder 
improvements may enhance safety. Last but not least, reconstruction will remove spring 
load restrictions and allow year-round operation at gross vehicle weights of 80,000 pounds 
or greater. 17 The allocation of reconstruction dollars to roads with higher traffic levels will 
maximize capacity and ride-quality benefits for all travelers . 

Roads not selected for reconstruction are eligible for resurfacing. However, the thickness 
and cost of the overlay depends upon the expected truck traffic level. 

15 Roads are "crowned" or elevated in the center prim3rily for drainage. With a cross-sectional slope, water 
readily drained off the crowned surface and into the ditches. 
16 For purposes of reference, a 24-foot graded width allows for an initial design of two I I-foot lanes with some 
shoulders. However, the lane widths and shoulders cannot be maintained as the height of the road is elevated 
during resurfacing. To illustrate, assume a 4: 1 cross-sectional slope for both the initial construction and 
subsequent overlays. In this case, each inch of surface height results in a loss of approximately eight inches of 
top width. Thus, a road with an existing surface thickness of four inches may suffer an ultimate top-width loss of 
five feet with a new four-inch overlay. The upshot is that lanes and shoulders must be reduced to fit the reduced 
top width. In the case of a road with a 24-foot graded width, shoulders must be eliminated and lanes reduced to 
IO feet or less. 
17 A thick structural overlay may remove spring load restrictions and allow year-round operation at the maximum 
legal weight. However, this result cannot be guaranteed. The outcome depends upon the existing road and its 
underlying soils. Old aggregate bases in roads that have never been reconstructed may be largely ineffective. 
Given the depths of the bases reported in the survey (i.e., from 2 to 6 inches) and their low implied coefficients, 
these bases are unlikely to provide significant structural contributions to a resurfaced pavement. Moreover, the 
bases may be degraded and contaminated with fines. In such cases, structural overlays are not guaranteed to 
remove spring load restrictions . 
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According to a 2008 survey, approximately seven percent of all miles of county major 
collector road clearly have insufficient graded widths to accommodate future overlays 
without substantially narrowing the roads. Another seven percent of the miles of county 
major collector road may have insufficient graded widths to accommodate future overlays 
without substantially narrowing the roads. However, it is impossible to verify this 
percentage without detailed field work. According to the same survey, approximately 86 
percent of all miles of county local road have insufficient graded widths to accommodate 
future overlays without substantially narrowing the roads. This does not mean that the 
roads will be closed. However, it does mean that many miles of road will have no 
shoulders and 10- or 11-foot lanes. 

Reconstruction is expensive, costing $1.25 million per mile. Thus, it can only be justified 
on roads with significant traffic volumes. Without knowledge of the widths of individual 
segments, · reconstruction improvements are allocated based on overall traffic with a 
minimum frequency of grain trucks per day, subject to the overall constraints of 14 percent 
of impacted county major collector miles and 86 percent of impacted county local road 
miles. These constraints correspond to the statewide proportions of county major collector 
and county local road miles that are candidates for reconstruction due to insufficient 
widths. 

Altogether, 147 miles of road with significant agricultural traffic met the minimum traffic 
thresholds for potential reconstruction. These segments represent are only a small portion 
of the 6,375 miles of paved county and local road in the state and the approximately 3,957 
miles of paved roads used for agricultural logistics. However, some of the ' miles of 
county and local paved road have only one or two predicted grain trucks per day, coupled 
with light ADT; and, therefore, are not candidates for reconstruction. 

In addition to wider roads, reconstruction is expected to provide year-round heavy-hauling 
capabilities. Since the vast majority of these segments are located in paths that feature 
county major collectors, access to key facilities (such as plants and large elevators) may be 
improved. Further, the allocation of reconstruction dollars to roads with higher traffic 
levels will maximize capacity and ride-quality benefits for all travelers. 

6.5.5. Resurfacing of Segments of Agricultural Routes 

Those roadway segments not selected for reconstruction are evaluated for overlays. The 
thickness of the overlay is a function of the grain truck traffic plus some allowance for 
other trucks traveling the roadways. These percentages are derived from the 2008 survey 
mentioned earlier. 
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Based on the estimated ESAL demand for the next 20 years, a new structural number is 
computed that considers the effective structural number of the existing surface and base 
layer at the time of resurfacing. 18 As shown in Table 10, the median overlay thickness 
needed on road segments in primary agricultural routes is four inches. For segments with 
lower truck traffic volumes, overlays of 2.5 to 3.0 inches will typically suffice. On the 
most heavily impacted miles, a 5-inch overlay may be needed. However, these segments 
are relatively few and are ones where considerable grain traffic is channeled in approaches 
to large facilities. 

Table 10 Estimated Surface Thicknesses for Major County Collector Segments in 
Agricultural Logistics Routes 

Weighted Percentiles of Distribution Inches of New Asphalt Surface Layer 

90th 

75th (Upper Quartile) 
50th (Median) 

Mean 
25th (Lower Quartile) 

4.7 

4.0 

4.0 

3.9 

3.7 

The resurfacing cost of each segment is estimated from the inches of overlay needed and a 
projected 2011 unit cost of $70,000 p'er inch per mile, which is applicable to two-lane rural 
roads. 19 With this unit cost, a four-inch overlay costs $280,000 per mile. A three-inch 
overlay costs $210,000 per mile, etc. 

6.6. Routine Maintenance 

Routine maintenance costs on paved roads include activities performed periodically (such 
as crack sealing, seal coats, and striping), as well as annual activities (such as patching). 
The cost relationships in Table 11 have been derived from a South Dakota Department of 
Transportation study, with the original cost factors updated to 20 IO levels and annualized. 
For example, the annualized seal-coat cost would allow for at least two applications during 
a typical 20-year life-cycle for roads with ADT of 200 or more. 

18 The assumed structural coefficient of a deteriorated surface layer (that now serves as a base layer) is 0.14, 
while the assumed structural coefficient of the original base layer is 0. 7. For local roads, this calculation results 
in a median residual structural number of0.7. The analogous number for county major collectors is 1.0. 
19 This unit cost was derived from the North Dakota Department of Transportation's 2009 cost for a structural 
overlay-i.e., the DOT's average cost of $340,000 per mile was divided by five inches to obtain $68,000 per 
mile. This value was then indexed to 2011 assuming a three percent inflationary increase in construction costs. 
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Table 11 Routine Maintenance Cost Factors for Paved Roads by Traffic Level 
ADT Traffic Range Annualized Cost of Road Maintenance Activities 

Lower Upper Crack Sealing Seal Coat Striping Patching 
99 $540 $2,340 $76 $900 

100 199 $540 $2,340 $113 $900 
200 299 $720 $3,150 $126 $900 
300 399 $720 $3,150 $126 $900 
400 499 $576 $3,285 $140 $900 
500 599 $480 $3,285 $144 $900 
600 699 $480 $3,285 $162 $900 
700 $480 $3,285 $162 $900 

6. 7. Highlights of Paved Road Analysis 

There are approximately 6,375 miles of paved road under the jurisdiction of county, 
township, and municipal governments in North Dakota. However, not all of these segments 
are significantly affected by agricultural traffic. Some of the segments have only a few 
predicted tons that do not amount to a full truckload. These segments are not specifically 
analyzed as part of an agricultural distribution route. Instead, they are reclassified as non­
agricultural segments . 

As shown in Table 12, the annualized cost of maintaining and improving roads 
significantly impacted by agricultural traffic is $58.9 million. There are 2,417 miles 
remaining, which are not significantly impacted by agricultural transportation. The cost of 
improving and maintaining these miles is estimated to be $41.6 million annually. 

Table 12. Paved County Collector and Local Road Miles and Cost by Impact Type 
Category Miles Annualized Cost 
Ag Impact 3,958 $58,883,223 
Other 2,417 $41,580,950 
Total 6,375 $100,464,172 

The annualized cost in Table 12 reflects reconstruction, resurfacing, and annual 
maintenance cost. Annual maintenance cost was calculated for any segment with 
agricultural truck traffic. The estimated annualized maintenance cost of these 3,958 miles 
is $18.5 million over the 20-year period (Table 13). Of the 3,958 miles significantly 
impacted by agricultural traffic, 147 miles were selected for reconstruction due to 
deficiencies in roadway width. The· estimated annualized cost of these reconstruction 
improvements is $9.2 million. An additional 2,541 miles were selected for resurfacing 
over the 20-year analysis period at an estimated annualized cost of $31.2 million. Those 
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segments with only one agricultural truck per day were not analyzed specifically to 
determine the pavement thickness, because it is assumed that the agricultural traffic will 
have no impact on the resurfacing decision. Rather, these segments are reclassified as non­
impacted routes for purposes of resurfacing and their resurfacing costs are included with 
that group. The total estimated annualized cost for agriculture impacted roads is $58.9 
million. 

Table 13 Ag Impacted Paved Miles Improved and Maintained by Improvement Type 

Reconstruction 
Resurfacing 
Maintenance 
Total 

Miles Annualized Cost 
147.0 $9,192,586.55 
2,541 $31,240,378.00 
3,958 $ I 8,450,258.00 

$58,883,222.55 

Table 14 shows the miles and annualized improvement and maintenance costs of roads not 
significantly impacted by agricultural traffic. In this analysis, the 2,417 miles not reflected 
in the maintenance cost estimate for agricultural routes are assumed to be maintained at an 
estimated annualized cost of $9.3 million, which reflects an average cost of $3,856 per 
mile per year. Moreover, all 2,417 non-impacted miles are assumed to receive a 
resurfacing treatment during the analysis period. In addition, those segments with only one 
agricultural truck per day that did not receive a resurfacing or reconstruction improvement 
in the agricultural analysis are included with this category. Altogether, 3,687 miles of road 
not significantly affected by agricultural traffic are assumed to receive a standard 
resurfacing improvement at an estimated annualized cost of $32.3 million. For these non­
impacted roads, it is assumed that a 2:5-inch overlay of each segment will provide 
reasonable service for 20 years in the absence of significant agricultural truck traffic. In 
total, the cost of maintaining and improving paved local roads that were not significantly 
impacted by agricultural traffic is estimated to be $41.6 annually. 

Table 14 Non-Impacted Paved Miles Improved and Maintained by Improvement 
Type 
Improvement Type 
Resurfacing 
Maintenance 
Total 

Miles 
3,687 
2,417 

Annualized Cost 
$32,261,075 
$9,3 I 9,875 

$41,580,950 

Comparatively, the estimated resurfacing cost of agricultural distribution routes is 40 
percent greater than the estimated resurfacing cost of non-agricultural routes on a per-mile 
basis. Comparatively, the estimated maintenance cost of agricultural distribution routes is 
21 percent greater than the estimated maintenance cost of non-agricultural routes on a per­
mile basis. These differences reflect higher levels of truck traffic and average daily traffic 
on these routes. Since 90 percent of the paved county-road miles in agricultural 
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distribution routes are major collectors, these comparisons reinforce the current investment 
priorities of counties. 

7. Conclusion 

The purpose of this study is to analyze changes in agricultural production and logistics and 
the importance of roadway investments to the distribution of crops produced in North 
Dakota. The essential objective was to quantify the funding level required to maintain and 
improve the existing local road network. 

In this study, a very detailed network model was developed to predict and route crop 
movements from 1,340 county subdivisions to elevators and ethanol plants. The predicted 
flows were used to specifically analyze investment needs for agricultural haul roads. In 
addition, the investment needs for other local roads not significantly affected by 
agricultural goods movements were estimated so that the total statewide local roadway 
needs could be quantified. 

Statewide, estimated needs total $ 100.5 million annually for county and local paved roads. 
Approximately $59 million of these needs relate to agricultural haul roads. The remainder 
corresponds to other county and local roads. Also, statewide, estimated needs total $110 
million annually for local unpaved roads. Approximately, $43.6 million of these needs 
relate to agricultural haul roads. The remainder corresponds to other local roads, especially 
township roads. Thus, the total estimated statewide need is $211.5 million per year, 
including $100.5 million of paved road investment needs and $110.0 million of unpaved 
road investment needs. 

In conclusion, it is important to note that the study has limitations, most of them due to a 
short time frame (i.e., 40 days), difficulties in obtaining data, and a limited budget, which 
precluded any field work. All crop flows could not be represented in the distribution model 
because of difficulties and delays in getting data. Therefore, the total ton-miles shown in 
Table 3 may be somewhat understated. Based on information available, it is likely that 
more than 95 percent of all crop ton-miles are reflected in the estimates. 

One of the issues not addressed in this study is the effect of spring load restrictions on farm 
producers, elevators, and plants. This is an issue that should be revisited and the major 
county collectors in agricultural logistics routes should be evaluated individually to assess 
the need for and cost of potential reconstructions or thicker overlays. Although county­
wide surface conditions were available from a previous survey, these values could not be 
assigned to individual segments without additional interviews and modeling. As a result, it 
is quite possible that many additional miles of county and local road may need 
reconstruction because of poor coildit\on. These detailed analyses were not possible within 

Agricultural Roads Study 

11 
.\ 
' 
_, 

Upper Gr~at Plains Transportation Institute Page 29 



a 40-day window. While further study is recommended, this report has identified the 
minimum threshold of county and local road investment needs. 
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8. Appendix A. Regional Trends in Crop Production North Dakota 
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Figure 12 Percentage of Acres Planted to Wheal in Western North Dakota 1990-2009 
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Figure 16 Percentage of Acres Planted to Corn in Central North Dakota 1990-2009 
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Figure 18 Percentage of Acres Planted to Soybeans in Western North Dakota 1990-2009 
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March 8, 2011 

Introduction to T ASC and Debt Settlement Issues and Comment on North Dakota HB 1038 

Introduction 

TASC respectfully submits this comment/written testimony to the Judiciary Committee for 
HB 1038. TASC supports all of the consumer protection provisions in the bill, but the fee caps in 
HB 1038 are significantly less than what the service costs to provide. TASC recommends using 
the recently adopted FTC rule language in lieu of the fee cap language in HB 1038. The FTC rule 
onfy permits the charging of fees once an individual has approved and accepted a settlement 
on his behalf which provides extremely strong protection, especially when combined with all of 
the other protections offered by HB 1038 including licensing, bonding, operational 
requirements, prohibitions, and strong enforcement provisions. While there are some 
provisions in the bill that now conflict with the FTC rule, with those technical changes and the 
adoption of the FTC fee language, TASC supports HB 1038. The below comment provides 
greater detail about the industry and support for TASC's position. 

Summary of Comment 

A. Introduction to TASC 
B. Introduction to Debt Settlement 
C. General Industry Comment 

1. The fee provisions in HB 1038 are unfair. 

a. The FTC Rule regarding fees for debt settlement companies provides 
significant protection. 

b. The fee cap in HB 1038 for debt settlement providers is much lower than 
what nonprofit credit counselors may charge in the bill. 

c. Debt settlement is a much more costly service to provide than credit 
counseling and should be paid more, not less than nonprofit credit 
counselors. 

d. The benefit to an individual in debt settlement should be measured by 
comparing the total cost of the consumer's other options. Under such 
comparison, debt settlement compares very favorably without the need 
for the fee cap in HB 1038. 

e. A fee structure mandating fees as a percent of savings frequently fails to 
consider what would be in a consumer's best interest. 

f. HB 1038's fees are not comparable to an attorney's contingency fee. 
2. The true story and statistics about complaints. 
3. Myths about debt settlement. 

16 N. Carroll Stre•l, Su1i. 900 f Maditon, WI 53703 I Ph, 608.512.1207 I fx, 310.808.6346 I www,t01aite.org 
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4. Testimonials by consumers who have been helped by debt settlement. 
D. Specific Comment and proposals regarding bill language 

A. Introduction to TASC 

TASC is the leading national association of settlement companies. It was formed to provide 
operating standards for member companies and to promote effective and fair legislation 
affecting the industry. TASC's goals are to promote good business practice in the debt 
settlement industry, protect the interests of consumer debtors, and educate legislators and 
regulators at all levels of government with respect to the issues involved in the debt settlement 
industry. The mission of TASC is to encourage debt settlement companies to provide services in 
accordance with the highest professional and ethical standards in order to retain the 
confidence of the public, the credit industry and local, state, and federal government. The 
standards TASC upholds and promotes nationwide are available on its website at 

www.tascsite.org. 

To help ensure that the above guidelines are in fact being followed by our members, TASC 
started two programs of self regulation - one is a secret shopping program performed by a 
third party company wherein the company calls each TASC member debt settlement company 
posing as a consumer. The shopper makes certain inquiries and evaluates the responses on a 
check list to gauge whether the company is abiding by TASC standards. The second program is 
also performed by a third party and involves an examination of each debt settlement company 
member's website to ensure that the advertising and statements made on the website are 
consistent with TASC standards. Companies who do not pass the examinations satisfactorily 
are notified of the issues and are shopped again shortly afterwards. Continued failure to meet 
TASC standards will result in revocation of that company's membership in TASC. TASC has 
terminated the membership of non-compliant companies as well as imposed discipline on other 
members for various violations of its standards. 

TASC has supported stringent regulation for debt settlement companies on the state level 
that provides significant consumer protections including bills that have passed and become law 
in more than 10 states. The most comprehensive of these bills are the Uniform Debt 
Management Services Act (UDMSA), which has so far passed, with TASC's support, in 5 states: 

Tennessee, Utah, Nevada, Colorado, and Delaware. 

B. Introduction to Debt Settlement 

Debt settlement is an effective and needed debt relief option for consumers at a time 
when they need more options in managing their unsecured debt, not fewer options. Debt 
settlement does not involve mortgages, loan modification, foreclosure, or any other secured 
debt issues. Debt settlement serves those who cannot qualify for or afford other options such 
as bankruptcy and traditional credit counseling. Debt settlement is also effective when 
compared to these other debt relief options. The national rate of completion for confirmed 
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Chapter 13 bankruptcy plans is 33%. 1 Nonprofit credit counseling companies historically have 
an approximate success rate of 21-26%2

• Debt settlement completion rates for TASC members 
are higher-approximately 34.S% 3• Further, those who only complete part of the debt 
settlement plan often benefit -for example, someone who had 10 debts coming into the 
program and now have Smay leave the program citing his debt is not at a manageable level. 
Nonprofit credit counselors often cite similar benefits of partial completion and have recently 
even used "completion rates" that are based on consumers completing 60"/4 of the credit 
counseling program. If the debt settlement industry used similar measurements, our 
completion rates would be significantly higher as well. 

Another difference between debt settlement and credit counseling is that debt 
settlement is a reduction in principal of the debt, not just a reduction in the interest rate. TASC 
companies settled over $1 billion of debt nationwide in 2009 alone for approximately $400 
million saving consumers approximately $600 million. In other words, these consumers paid 
creditors approximately $400 million in total satisfaction of $1 billion of debt owed. 

c. General Industry Comment 

1. The fee provisions in HB 1038 are unfair. 

The significant consumer protections offered by the 25 pages of HB 1038 together with 
the prohibition against advance fees by the FTC rule are more than enough protection 
for consumers. Restricting the fees so drastically for debt settlement providers is 
unnecessary and, as shown below, are unfair compared to the fees for other debt relief 
providers. If the bill is unchanged, consumers will not have debt settlement as an 
option to manage their debts. 

a. The FTC Rule regarding fees for debt settlement companies provides significant 
protection. 

TASC proposes that the FTC regul,ation on fees is appropriate and that no fee cap is 
needed in light of the complete consumer protection offered by the FTC language for 
the following reasons: 

i. The FTC rule provides the following protections: 
- The fees must be clearly and conspicuously disclosed prior to the 

consumer entering into an agreement with the provider. 
No fees are chargeable until a settlement is reached. 

1 
"Bankruptcy by the Numbets: Measuring Perfonnance in Chapter 13" by Gordon Berman! and Ed Flynn, 

Executive Office for the U.S. Trustees. 
2 Credit Counseling in Crisis: The Impact on Consumers of Funding Cuts, Higher Fees and Aggressive New Market 
Entrants, Consumer Federation of America and National Consumer Law Center, April 2003. 
3 TASC Comment Letter to FTC, Octobet 2009 . 
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The consumer has another opportunity to reject the fees by 
rejecting the settlement. Until a satisfactory settlement accepted 
by the consumer is reached, the consumer pays no fees. 
The consumer not only must approve of the settlement, but must 
affirm that approval by making a payment towards the 
settlement. 

ii. The FTC rule imposes a fee structure that is limited in the timing of when 
a provider may collect fees. It also is structured to ensure that fees must 
be proportionately collected, thus, protectfng against fees being front­
loaded in the program. However, the fee structure is completely 
untested and insufficient time has passed to fully evaluate the model and 
what would be an appropriate fee cap. 

iii. Consumers using debt settlement services in unregulated states actually 
pay less than those in regulated states. Market forces do work especially 

when it comes to pricing. While critics may claim otherwise, when 

limited to the specific price of a product or service, it is hard to refute the 
evidence that competition sets the market price. As such, requiring a 
specific fee cap is unnecessary and concerns that fees will be unfairly high 
is unfounded. 

b. The fee cap in HB 1038 for debt settlement providers is much lower than what 
nonprofit credit counselors may charge in the bill. 

i. There are a number of states that allow a 15% fee for credit counselors who are 

usually nonprofits including North Dakota, Idaho, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, 

Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Hampshire, Oregon, Virginia, Washington, 

and Wisconsin. However. the 15% is calculated as 15% of the total debt or 

payment made to the creditor. This is a significantly different calculation than a 

percentage of savings for debt settlement and results in significantly greater 

fees for credit counseling than that permitted for debt settlement even though 

debt settlement is a much more labor intensive service. 

1) Credit counseling contemplates paying back the full balance plus 

interest. So the 15% fee would equate to 15% of the principal plus 15% 

of the interest payment made to the creditor. Using the assumptions 
below' 5

, the resulting fee is 20.5% of the principal debt. 

4 Testimony ofnonprofit credit counseling agency at a committee hearing in Salem. Oregon, February 9, 2009 -the 
credit counselor stated she was unable to obtain concession rates better than 16% for her consumers; 
Credit Counseling in Crisis: The Impact on Consumers of Funding Cuts, Higher Fees and Aggressive New Market 
Entrants, Conswner Federation of America and National Consumer Law Center, April 2003 -average of concession 
rates was approximately 13% . 
' Based on module of $10,000 debt amortized at 13% interest for 60 months run on Bankrate.com 
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2) Nonprofit credit counselors further receive a fair share. Again, using the 

authority cited in my comment, the fair share' adds another 10.9% of 

the principal. 

3) Total credit counseling fees equal 31.4% of principal. 

4) Nonprofit credit counselors also get the benefit of being tax exempt. 

ii. The below is an analysis of the fees for debt settlement at 30"/4 of savings. 

1) Assume that the debt is settled for 50% of the balance. 

2) The fee is 30"/4 of the savings or 0.3 x 0.5 of the balance= 15% of the 

principal. 
3) This is less than½ of what credit counselors get in the above example. 

4) 15% of principal equates to about a 5% APR for a typical 3 year 

program. 

5) Debt settlement is also much more labor intensive of a process than 

credit counseling. 

iii. Applied to $25,000 of debt, the difference in fees is as follows: 

1) Nonprofit credit counseling fee= $25,000 x 0.314 = $7,850 

2) Debt settlement fees under HB 1038 = $25,000x 0.15 = $3,750 

3) Nonprofits make $4,100 more than for profit debt settlement. 

c. Debt settlement is a much more costly service to provide than credit 
counseling and should be paid more, not less than nonprofit credit counselors. 

Debt management and debt settlement are two different services albeit both in the 
debt relief industry. Since debt settlement is a much more costly service to provide, the 

fees should be greater to compensate for this extra expense. HB 1038 does the reverse 
and does not allow sufficient fees to sustain operations for debt settlement providers. 

Debt settlement is a much more labor intensive service than debt management in large 
part because debt management plans are prearranged, set payment plans that primarily 

involve making monthly payments. Debt settlement plans are very individualized plans 
involving negotiated deals with circumstances that change constantly throughout the 
plan. CareOne, who is not a member ofTASC but is a company that performs both debt 

management and debt settlement, states that it takes four times as much work to 
perform debt settlement. TASC further knows of debt management providers who hire 

10 times fewer staff for the same number of clients as debt settlement providers. 
Additionally, at least with respect to nonprofit providers, credit counselors receive fair 
share payments from creditors. A more detailed list of services performed by debt 

6 Fair share of 8% of payment- See page 2, lines 41-43 of H.P. 895, Legislative Docwnent No. 1289, 124th Maine 
Legislature. 
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settlement providers is attached as Exhibit A. This list further illustrates the labor 

intensive nature of debt settlement services. 

Further, debt settlement providers will provide significant services to individuals who 
end up not paying for those services when they cancel. Providers will have provided 
significant customer service, financial education, counseling and negotiation services 
without being paid. Individuals may cancel from programs at any time and reject 

settlement offers even if such offers are reasonable. 

d. The benefit to an individual in debt settlement should be measured by 
comparing the total cost of the consumer's other options. 

The way the bill defines an individual's "savings" in debt settlement skews the fee to 
look much larger than it actually is and ignores the time value of money. For example, if 
HB 1038 applied to the United States national debt, and if the U.S. could pay off its debt 
in three years at what it owed today, HB 1038 would place zero value on that 
transaction stating that the U.S. received no benefit. But the U.S. pays $400 billion a 
year in interest. So really the U.S. would benefit by $1.2 trillion over those 3 years (and 

trillions in future interest). 

The total cost of a debt management plan or credit counseling plan or other debt relief 
options likewise is much greater than just the principal amount of the debt because (1) 
there is no reduction in principal and (2) interest continues to accrue and is paid as part 
of the service. With debt settlement, reduction in principal provides significantly 
greater consumer benefit even including fees. For instance, if there was a 50% 
reduction in principal and a 25% of principal fee (only paid if the consumer accepts 
settlement), the total consumer cost for debt settlement would equal $18,750 
compared to $39,250 for credit counseling. 

(see chart below) 



• 

TASC Comment letter- page 7 

Debt 
Settlement 

Credit Debt Consolidation Pay Minimum Due 

$25,000 debt Counseling Home Equity Loan1' 1 @ 2.5% of Balance 

Months to pay off 36 
debt 60 120 565 Mo I 47 Yrs 

Interest Rate 0 13%[2] 9.00"/41' 1 21.00% 

Monthly Fees 0 $5,120.00 151 $1,500.00 161 

Fair Share by Creditor 
to nonprofit CCCS $2,730.00 171 

Total fees $6,250.001' 1 $7,850.00 $1,500.00 

lnterest181 
0[10] 

$9,130.0018] $13,000.00 181 $57,377.37 181 

Amount of Debt on 
$25,000.00 

Dayl 
$25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 

Total Cost: $18,750.00 $39,250.00191 $39,500.00 $82,377.37 

e. A fee structure mandating fees as a percent of savings frequently fails to 
consider what would be in a consumer's best interest. 

Sometimes a lower settlement is NOT in the consumer's best interest. Because the 
consumer may not be able to afford to pay one lump sum, a lower settlement offer may 
not do the consumer any good. Sometimes the consumer is better off taking a higher 
settlement but that is paid in a term over a longer period of time (because of the 
consumer's cash flow). Yet limiting fees to a percent of savings essentially tells 
providers NOT to explore these types of arrangements and thus are not in the 
consumer's best interest. Again, an individual can choose to accept or reject any 

IIJ Assumes gOOO credit and sufficient home equity. 
121 Testimony ofnonprofit credit counseling agency at a committee hearing in Salem, Oregon, February 9, 2009 -the 
credit counselor stated she was llllable to obtain concession rates better than 16% for her consumers~ 
Credit Counseling in Crisis: The Impact on Consumers of Funding Cuts, Higher Fees and Aggressive New Market 
Entrants, Consumer Federation of America and National Consumer Law Center, April 2003 - average of concession 
rates was approximately 13%. 
131 Per Bankrate.com for Denver, Colorado area - Wells Fargo Banlc 
( 4] Assumes a fee of 25% of debt ($25,000 x 0.25). 
[5]Assumes 15% of monthly payment for 5 years= 0.15 x ($25,000 principal+ $9,130 interest)= $5,120. 
[6]Assumes 10 year loan and total fees 6% of loan value. 
[7] 8% of client payments fair share - See page 2, lines 41-43 of H.P. 895, Legislative Document No. 1289, 124"' 
Maine Legislature. 
[8] Interest calculated by using Bankrate.com or CNNMoney.com calculators; does not include potential late fees, 
penalties, other costs. 
J9J $25,000 principal+ $9,130 interest+ $5,120 fees= $39,250. Fair share comes out of the principal/interest 
payment. 
[I OJ The 50% settlement figure is based off of debt at time of ernollment and any interest accrued is factored into the 
settlement percentage for this example. Similar numbers can be calculated using accretion rates and corresponding 
settlement percentages . 
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settlement and thus accept or reject any fees that she has to pay under the FTC Rule 
which should be the best protection for the consumer: consumer choice. 

f. The fee structure is not comparable to an attorney's contingency fee. 

(i) An attorney charging a contingency fee takes a fee on the entire recovery, 
not just the incremental benefit the individual realizes. For instance, an 
attorney gets a cut of actual damages like lost wages, medical bills etc. that 
are "out of pocket" losses an individual may have suffered. 

(ii) The fees are not only taken from damages as of the date the client signed up 
with the attorney. For instance, if the client continues to incur medical bills 
and/or lost wages during the representation, the attorney's fee is part of that 
as well. 

(iii) The attorney is paid costs in addition to fees. 
(iv) The attorney is not forced to charge a contingency fee. 
(v) An attorney's fee is not capped. 
(vi) An attorney may place a lien on any future recovery for work performed by 

that attorney. A debt settlement provider has no right to fees for work 
performed even if the work performed leads up to a settlement after 
termination of the agreement. 

2. The true story and statistics about complaints. 

The industry's opponents have always cited significant complaint volume as support for 
their positions yet relied only on individual cases or anecdotal evidence. Recent 
statistical evidence shows the contrary. 

a. An FOIA request made to the FTC regarding the volume of complaints against debt 
settlement companies reveals very few complaints. In response to the request, the 
FTC provided a breakdown of complaints by company for 2009 of the Top 100 
complaint targets in the category of "debt negotiation/credit counseling" 
complaints. There are no debt settlement companies in the Top 20, and the highest 
number of complaints received by any debt settlement company is 47 compared to 
the 3209 complaints received by the highest listed company, HSBC. In fact, the top 
four listed companies were all large banks. Debt settlement companies appear to 
comprise less than 20% of the number of companies on the list and constitute 
approximately S% of the total number of complaints. {See attached Exhibit B - FTC 
response to FOIA request). 

b. Likewise, Maryland Attorney General statistics received pursuant to an FOIA request 
by another organization, USOBA, reveal that once the complaints against Richard 
Brennan and his law firms are removed (who was shut down, disbarred and jailed 
after enforcement action was taken against him), only approximately 71 complaints 
over a three (3) year period were made against for profit debt settlement 
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companies, or an average of 24 complaints a year. (See attached Exhibit C -
summary of results of FOIA request by USOBA). 

So, even before the FTC rule was promulgated, there was not a significant complaint 
volume. Now with the FTC rule, there is significant protection in place. Thus, while 
TASC supports strong regulation, it is not necessary to impose overly burdensome 

restrictions. 

3. Myths about debt settlement. 

Critics have additionally attacked debt settlement by using the following 

arguments: 

a. Debt settlement takes advantage of uneducated, low income individuals. 
Debt settlement clients are not usually low income individuals. In order for an 
individual to get into enough trouble to need debt settlement services, the 
person generally has had a decent paying job to qualify for enough credit to get 
in trouble. Most companies do not take clients with less than $10,000 in debt 
and some have an even higher threshold. The average debt in a debt settlement 
program ranges from $20,000 to $30,000 usually comprised of 6-7 credit cards. 
Debt settlement clients often do not qualify for Chapter 7 bankruptcy because of 
the means test (that they make less than the median level of income for the 
State) and have usually experienced some financial hardship such as a divorce, 

job loss, or medical issue that created the financial problem 

b. There is no reason to use a debt settlement provider since an individual can 

negotiate his or her own debt. 
Ironically, this attack is usually posited by nonprofit credit counselors whose 
services usually consist of budget planning and a debt management plan 
involving, at best, concessions of reduced interest rates and a payment plan of 
equal monthly payments over 5 years. While debt settlement can be done by an 
individual himself, so can credit counseling/debt management. However, these 
individuals usually are in a situation where they are seeking assistance with their 
debt and do not want to do it on their own. Further, negotiating down the 
principal of a debt is more difficult than asking for a reduction in interest. Debt 
settlement providers also provide an expertise and knowledge that helps provide 
an advantage in many ways including knowing who to contact, when to 
negotiate, tendencies of certain creditors and the many changing policies of 

creditors. 

c. Debt settlement causes individuals who would otherwise pay their debts timely to 

default on their debt. 
USA Today reported in March 2010 that creditors wrote off over $80 billion in 
credit card debt in 2009 alone. The reasons are many including job loss, health 
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problems, divorce, and rising costs of other debts such as mortgages. However, 
some of the problems are a result of creditors own actions or changing policies. 
Increased interest rates or increased minimum payment requirements imposed 
by creditors often result in debts that were formerly affordable for a consumer 
to become overwhelming. For example, if a creditor lowers a consumer's credit 
limit, his debt to available credit ratio goes down which hurts his credit score. A 
creditor now uses this lower credit score as a basis for raising interest rates. 
Another creditor may also see the lower credit rating or adverse action by other 
creditors and follow suit. So it ends up being a domino effect and consumers 
cannot afford their debt payments anymore even though nothing much has 
changed in terms of their income or payment history. Whatever the reason, 
millions of Americans are unable to pay their debts and are dodging collection 
calls with or without debt settlement. 

d. Debt settlement is not effective because interest and late fees continue to accrue. 
Interest and late fees do accrue, but interest accrues with any debt relief option 
a consumer may choose. Some critics have also misrepresented the problem. 
Interest and late fees do not continue to accrue for the life of the debt - once 
the debt is charged off (typically when debt has been 6 months late) the debt is 
written off and usually the contractual terms expire 7. Again, the debtor would 
normally have experienced the same charges regardless of the debt settlement 
program. Further, critics demand the need to measure "success" of the client as 
of the time the client enrolls in a debt settlement program, and thus claim that 
fees should be reduced to a level so low that the consumer realizes significant 
savings off of his or her original balance. The problem is that position fails to 
consider the time value of money and the consumer's other options. In every 
option, interest is a significant cost. See chart in l(d) above. 

So, TASC continues to advocate that given the combination of (1) strong 
regulation of all other matters through licensing, and (2) the prohibition of 
charging fees until a settlement is reached that the consumer previously agreed 
to, together is comprehensive consumer protection that negates the need for a 
hard fee cap. Note in unregulated states, fees are actually lower because of 
com petition. 

4. Testimonials by consumers who have been helped by debt settlement. 
TASC has numerous testimonials in favor of debt settlement and positive 
testimonials greatly outweigh the negative testimonials. As an example, the FTC 
sought comment on its proposed rule and received approximately 200 consumer 
testimonials regarding debt settlement of which only 4 were negative and of 
those, 3 of the negative comments focused on creditors. These testimonials are 
available at www.ftc.gov. Also see www.consumercreditrights.org for video and 

7 The debtor may still incur collection charges. 



• 
TASC Comment letter-page 11 

audio recordings of consumers who have had positive experiences. TASC can 
provide more testimonials upon request. 

D. Specific Comment and proposals regarding bill language 

1. Page 7, line 23-26, Section 13-11-05 l.b. 
This section sets out qualifications for obtaining a license. One of the requirements 
is that the applicant, managers, partners, officers and directors have never been 
convicted of a misdemeanor. Another requirement is that those individuals not be 
the subject of a license disciplinary hearing concerning allegations involving 
dishonesty or untrustworthiness. While these may certainly be factors that should 
be considered in granting licensure, the language in 13-11-05 would mandate that 
the applicant be denied. A misdemeanor could be something as simple as a traffic 
violation. Allegations may be incorrect and assumes guilt before the proceedings 
are complete. The regulator should have discretion in this matter. 

Recommendation: 
Make the following redline changes: "The applicant, managers, partners, officers, 
and directors have not been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving 
dishonesty or untrustworthiness or a Fe Aet EUFFeAtl•( tile suejeet ef in a license 
disciplinary proceeding eeAeemiRg allegatieRs iRYel•1iRg has been found to have 
acted with dishonesty or untrustworthiness." 

2. Page 8, lines 1-3, Section 13-11-05 l.d. 
This section sets out qualifications for obtaining a license. One of the requirements 
is that the applicant, managers, partners, officers and directors have not violated 
any provision of the chapter. However, again this language is mandatory and gives 
the commissioner no discretion if the violating party has corrected or resolved the 
problem, or if the problem was not a serious violation. Instead, all violations are 
treated equally .. The regulator should have discretion in this matter. 

Recommendation: 
Insert at the end of the sentence, "unless any violations have been resolved to the 
commissioner's satisfaction." 

3. Page 16, line 24-25, Section 13-11-19 2 .. 
This states, "Any contract for the provision of debt settlement service entered in 
violation of this section is void." This fails to consider: 

(a) the seriousness of the violation; 
(b) the choice of the consumer; and 
(c) other provisions in the bill. 

Section 20 of the bill allows the consumer to cancel the contract for "material" 
violations. Section 28 of the bill provides for circumstances in which the contract is 
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voidable by the individual including (1) if the provider is not licensed and (2) if the 
fees exceed the authorized limits. These violations are conceivably more serious 
than some violations that might be technical or inconsequential or immaterial 
problems with the contract, yet the contract is not rendered void. Further, the 
consumer may not want the contract to be void. 

Recommendation: 
Make the following redline changes: "Any contract for the provision of debt 
settlement service entered in material violation of this section is voidable." 

4. Page 19, lines 17-29, Sections 13-11-213. and 4. 
Per the reasoning stated above in TASC Comment Section Cl, the fee caps result in 
fees that are significantly less than what the service costs to provide. Further, the 
FTC fee language offers extremely strong consumer protection especially when 
combined together with the numerous other consumer protections offered in HB 
1038. The FTC fee language prohibits the charging of any fees until the individual 
signs a written agreement at the start of the program, receives a settlement offer 
from a creditor, approves and accepts the settlement, and makes a payment 
towards that settlement. If the consumer does not think the settlement is favorable, 
he is free to reject the settlement and pay no fees. The FTC studied the industry for 
several years and spent approximately two years drafting and redrafting language it 
believed was appropriate. As such TASC recommends the FTC language as below. 

Recommendation: 
Replace 13-11-21 3. and 4. in its entirety with the FTC language below: 

"3. A debt-settlement provider may not request or receive payment of any fee 

or consideration until and unless: 

(i) the debt-settlement provider has settled the terms of at least one debt 
pursuant to a settlement agreement or other such valid contractual 
agreement executed by the consumer; 

(ii) the consumer has made at least one payment pursuant to that settlement 
agreement or other valid contractual agreement between the consumer and 
the creditor or debt collector; and 

(iii) the fee or consideration either: 

(a) bears the same proportional relationship to the total fee for settling 
the terms of the entire debt balance as the individual debt amount bears 
to the entire debt amount. The individual debt amount and the entire 
debt amount are those owed at the time the debt was enrolled in the 

service; or 
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(b) is a percentage of the amount saved as a result of the settlement. The 
percentage charged cannot change from one individual debt to another. 
The amount saved is the difference between the amount owed at the time 
the debt was enrolled in the plan and the amount actually paid to satisfy 
the debt." 

5. Page 19, lines 17-29, Sections 13-11-214. 
TASC also has a specific comment about subsection 4 of the fees section. This 
section prohibits collecting fees even after an individual accepts a settlement and 
the first payment has been made as allowed by the FTC Rule. Subsection 4 requires 
that the settlement be completely paid, even if it is a settlement involving 
installments. Thus, the provider may not get paid even though it provided support 
services to the individual, provided financial education, negotiated debt, obtained a 
settlement, the individual accepts the settlement, and the individual makes some 
payments towards the settlement. If the individual does not finish making the 
payments or is late and the creditor withdraws, the provider gets paid nothing. 
Further, there is a class action against a large creditor alleging thatthe creditor 
would settle with individuals and then reject the last payment to avoid a final 
resolution. In such circumstances, the provider also would not get paid anything for 
all of its work . 

Recommendation: 
Use the FTC language. 

In closing, TASC believes the FTC Rule alone provides sufficient and significant protection for 
consumers, and addresses the key concern, the charging and collection of advance fees. 
Together with the other protections offered by HB 1038 including licensing, bonding, operational 
requirements, prohibitions, and strong enforcement provisions, consumers in North Dakota would 
be amongst the strongest protected in the country. However, without changes, HB 1038 would 
result in no licensed debt settlement providers, which seems contrary to its purpose, as 
providers simply could not afford to provide services. Consumers today need more options to 
help manage their debts, not fewer options. Further, consumer protection involves not only 
preventing harm, but providing help. TASC's changes would accomplish both of these goals. 

Respectfully submitted, 
The Association of Settlement Companies (TASC) 
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Summary of work performed by a debt settlement provider 

Once the consumer is determined to be qualified for the program and after all of the 
consultations, disclosures and "front-end" work is done and the consumer has signed an 
agreement and is enrolled in the debt settlement program, the following preliminary tasks are 
performed at the start of the consumer's program: 

1. Gather additional necessary personal and account information from consumer for 

placement into database. 
2. Mail program packet to consumer, containing company contact information, etc. 
3. Contact consumer by phone to welcome them to the program, answer any questions they 

may have, go over again significant aspects of the program, ensure that client contact 

information is complete and accurate. 

During the typical two to three-year program length: 

I. Receive, review and process into database monthly account statements received from 

consumer. 
2. Discuss with client needed changes to program, such as payment amounts or dates, 

banking information, personal contact or employment information, etc., and process into 

database . 
3. Contact and locate creditors, collectors and debt buyers to maintain information on the 

accounts. 
4. Consult with consumer regarding particular settlement offers, often working out exact 

timing and, if needed, number of monthly payments, and then coordinating final 
arrangements with the creditor. This often takes a significant number of calls back and 
forth between the settlement company, the consumer and the creditor. 

5. Field calls from creditors, collectors and debt buyers who want to discuss possible 

settlement scenarios. 
6. Obtain and process settlement documentation and terms. 
7. Audit settlement terms for accuracy, verify funds available, and payment method. 
8. Maintain official settlement documents, sending copy to consumer. 
9. At the end of each day send updated consumer, account and settlement information to 

third-party payment processing company, and each day receive downloads from same. 

I 0. Ensure that creditor receives funds from client 
11. Address and resolve issues dealing with previously settled accounts. 
12. Obtain satisfaction/zero balance letters when necessary. 
13. Provide guidance to consumer regarding the handling of creditor calls, an on-going 

process, especially as accounts progress through the collection process with additional 

creditors. 
14. Contact creditors in regards to possible harassment of the consumer, at times having the 

creditor call a different number or at a different time. 
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15. Educate consumers regarding their rights in regards to dealings with creditors. 
16. Direct consumers to sources oflegal assistance when needed. 
17. Pro-actively call consumers on a regular basis (every 30) days to go over progress of 

program. 

18. Comfort consumers who may be feeling overwhelmed, pressured, depressed or otherwise 
agitated by various aspects of the program or even generally what is going on in their lives 
at the moment. 

19. Provide coaching and support to the consumer in regards to staying on budget with the 
program. 

20. Provide needed educational information to the consumer. 

21. Build, maintain and nurture relationships between the company and creditors, collections 
agencies and debt buyer/holders- these relationships are critical to securing favorable 
results. 

22. Utilize technology to keep client data secure. 

Aspects of specific negotiations: 

I. 
2 . 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Identify the proper creditor, collector or debt buyer that has the account. 
Prepare for negotiation by verifying account balance, savings balance, status of the 
account and who now is holding the account. 

Communicate hardship to the creditor, collector or debt buyer, especially as a means of 
advocating for the consumer the best possible settlement. 
Propose settlement offer. 
Entertain counter offer, consulting with consumer as necessary. 
Document finalized settlement with creditor. 

Communicate finalized settlement documents with consumer and with third party 
payment processor. 
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Summary of Complaint Information for debt settlement received from AG's office per FOIA request 

for period 2007-2009 

320 

85 

164 

------------
71 

Total Complaints 

Misclassified/non debt settlement 

Total Complaints for Richard Brennan/Frederick Law 
Group 

Re main in g complaints against debt settlement co.'s 
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MARCH 8, 2011 

UNIFORM DEBT-MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES ACT STUDY 

The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act was 
among the 2008 recommendations of the North Dakota 
Commission on Uniform State Laws for introduction in 
the 2009 legislative session. Before the 2009 legislative 
session, concerns were expressed by members of the 
commission, the Attorney General, and the director of 
the Department of Financial Institutions that before the 
uniform Act is introduced for adoption in North Dakota, a 
determination should be made as to which state agency 
would be the most appropriate agency for the 
administration and enforcement of the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. It was noted that the 
Uniform Debt-Management Services Act · is a 
complicated Act that will require additional staffing and 
budget to implement. Because of these concerns, it was 
recommended . that a study of the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act be conducted to 

-

ddress these concerns before introduction. · 
The Uniform Debt-Management ServiC\!S Act has 

een adopted in Colorado, Delaware, Missouri, Nevada, 
Rhode Island, Tennessee, and Utah. · 

Background 
The National Conference completed the Uniform 

Debt-Management Services Act in 2005. The uniform 
Act is intended to provide the states with a 
comprehensive Act governing these services that will 
allow for the national administration of debt counseling 
and management in a fair and effective way. 

Uniform Debt-Management 
Services Act Summary 

The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act.may be 
divided into three basic parts--registration of services, 
service-debtor agreements, and enforcement. 

Registration .. 
The Uniform Debt-Management Services Act 

provides that a service may not enter an agreement with 
any debtor in a state without registering as a consumer 
debt-management service in that state. Under the 
uniform Act, registration requires submission of detailed 
information concerning the service, including its financial 
condition, the identity of principals, locations at which 

•

rvice will be offered, form for agreements with debtors, 
d business history in other jurisdictions. To_ registe_r, a 
rvice must have an effective insurance policy against 

fraud, dishonesty, theft, and the like in an amount no 
less than $250,000. The service also must provide a 

security bond of a minimum of $50,000 which has the 
state administrator as a beneficiary. If a registration 
substantially duplicates one in another state, the service 
may offer proof of registration in that other state to 
satisfy the registration requirements in a state. A 
satisfactory application results in a certificate to do 
business from the administrator. A yearly renewal is 
required. 

Agreements 
In order to enter agreements with debtors, the 

uniform Act requires a disclosure requirement respecting 
fees and services to be offered and the risks and 
benefits of entering such a contract. The service must 
offer counseling services from a certified counselor, and 
a plan must be created in consultation by the counselor 
for debt-management service to commence. The 
·contents of the agreements and fees that may be 
charged are set by the statute. The uniform Act provides 
for a penalty-free three-day right of rescission on the part 
of the debtor. The debtor may cancel the agreement 
also after 30 days but may be subject to fees if that 
occurs. The service may terminate the agreement if 
required payments are delinquent for at least 60 days. 

Any payments for creditors received from a debtor 
must be kept in a trust account that may not be used to 
hold any other funds of the service. The uniform Act 
contains strict accounting requirements and periodic 
reporting requirements respecting funds held. 

Enforcement 
The uniform Act prohibits specific acts on the part of 

a service, including misappropriation of funds in trust, 
settlement for more than 50 percent of a debt with a 
creditor without a debtor's consent, gifts or premiums to 
enter an agreement, and representation that settlement 
has occurred without certification from a creditor. 
Enforcement of the uniform Act occurs at two levels--the 
administrator and the individual level. The administrator 
has investigative powers, power to order an individual to 
cease and desist, power to assess a civil penalty up to 
$10,000, and power to bring a civil action. An individual 
may bring a civil action for compensatory damages, 
including triple damages if a service obtains payments 
not authorized in the uniform Act, and may seek punitive 
damages and attorney's fees. A service has a good­
faith mistake defense against liability. The statute of 
limitations pertaining to an action by the administrator is 
four years and two years for a private right of action. 

Banks as regulated entities under other law are not 
subject to the uniform Act, as are other kinds of activities 
that are incidental to other functions performed. For 



example, a title insurer that provides a bill-paying service 
that is incidental to title insurance is not subject to it. 

North Dakota Statutory Provisions 
There are several areas of North Dakota law which 

may be impacted by the enactment of the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. North Dakota law 
regarding debt adjustment and consumer credit 
counseling services are contained in Chapters 13-06 
and 13-07. Chapter 13-06, which relates to debt 
adjusting, provides that unless exempted, any person 
who engages in the business of debt adjusting is guilty 
of a Class A misdemeanor. Section 13-06-03 provides 

1 for exemptions from the prohibition on debt adjusting, 
including situations involving debt adjusting incurred 
incidentally in the lawful practice of law in this state; 
banks and fiduciaries; title insurers and abstract 
companies; judicial officers or others acting under court 
orders; nonprofit or charitable corporations or 
associations engaged in debt adjusting; situations 
involving debt adjusting incurred incidentally in 
connection with lawful practice as a certified public 
accountant and licensed public accountant; bona fide 
trade or mercantile associations in the course of 
arranging adjustment or debts with business 
establishments; any person who, at the request of a 
debtor, arranges for or makes a loan to the debtor, and 
who, at the authorization of the debtor, acts as an 
adjuster of the debtor's debts in the disbursement of the 
proceeds of the loan, without compensation for services 
rendered in adjusting the debts; and licensed and 
bonded collection agencies. 

Chapter 13-07, which was enacted in 1993, provides 
for the · regulation of consumer credit counseling 
services. Under Section 13-07-01, a consumer credit 
counseling service is defined as "a nonprofit corporation 
engaged in the business of debt adjusting as defined in 
section 13-06-01." Section 13-07-02, which sets forth 
the contract requirements in an agreement between the 
consumer credit counseling service and the debtor, 
provides that a consumer credit counseling service may 
not enter an agreement with a debtor unless a thorough 
written budget analysis indicates that the debtor can 
reasonably meet the requirements of the financial 
adjustment plan and that the debtor will be benefited by 
the plan. Section 13-07 -06 authorizes the consumer 
credit counseling service to charge an origination fee of 
up to $50. Section 13-07-07 prohibits a consumer credit 
counseling service from taking a confession of judgment 
or a power of attorney to confess judgment against. the 
debtor or appear as the debtor in any judicial 
proceeding. This section also authorizes the Attorney 
General to receive and investigate complaints against a 
consumer credit counseling service. The remaining 
sections in this chapter set forth the surety bond, trust 
account, and accounting requirements for a consumer 
credit counseling service. 

Testimony and Committee Considerations 
The committee received extensive testimony and 

assistance from the Department of Financial Institutions 
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and the Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division of 
the Attorney General's office. 

The committee received testimony regarding the 
feasibility and impact of enacting the Unifo. 
Debt-Management Services Act, as well as testimo 
regarding consumer protection services that are bei 
provided by the state. The testimony indicated that other 
states have reported problems with some 
debt-management companies. According to the 
testimony, there are debt-management companies that 
lead consumers to believe the company can settle the 
debtor's debt for less than one-half of the debt owed. It 
was noted, however, when the company cannot deliver 
what has been promised, the debtor suffers. The 
Uniform Debt-Management Services Act would regulate 
debt-management companies. 

Nonprofit consumer credit counseling services 
companies that do business in the state are required to 
register with the Attorney General. The registration 
process includes the posting of a bond. Actions that 
have been taken against consumer credit counseling 
services companies were the result of the companies' 
failure to post a bond or contact the Attorney General's 
office, According to the testimony there are about 
25 consumer credit counseling services companies 
registered in the state; however, about 15 to 
20 companies may be doing business in the state 
without following the bond and registration requirements. 
Complaints regarding consumer credit counseling 
services companies are received by the Attorney 
General's office. It was noted that there are three to Ii. 
enforcement actions per year against consumer ere 
counseling services companies. According to th 
testimony, most of the · consumer credit counseling 
services companies, which are nonprofit, are legitimate. 

The testimony indicated the Attorney General has 
received few complaints from consumers regarding 
debt-management services companies in the state; 

· however, it was noted that the office has received 
complaints from bankruptcy trustees regarding these 
companies. According to the testimony, the deceptive 
practices among debt-management services companies 
have become a real problem over the past several 
years. The industry is ripe for abuse because the 
industry targets consumers who are desperate for help, 
and the Uniform Debt-Management Services Act may be 
a proactive way to prevent problems before they get to 
North Dakota. It was also noted that current law 
regarding consumer fraud is very broad and would allow 
the Attorney General to take action if needed; however, 
a specific law may allow the Attorney General to move 
more quickly against a company. According to the 
testimony, the Uniform Debt-Management Services Act 
would meld current consumer credit counseling services 
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laws with the debt-management regulations. The 
testimony indicated that the topic of regulating 
debt-management companies is one of concern to 
consumer protection offices throughout the country. • 
was noted, however, that many of the states do not lik 
the uniform Act because it does not provide enough 
consumer protection. 



, . . The committee also received testimony regarding the 
appropriate agency to administer the . Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. According to the 

•

testimony, while both the Attorney General and the 
epartment of Financial Institutions are willing to 
dminister the regulation provided for in the uniform Act, 

the Department of Financial Institutions would be the 
more appropriate agency. The testimony indicated that 
the regulation of debt-management services companies 
in other states is typically done by either a consumer 
fraud department or a banking department. 

Testimony from the Department of Financial 
Institutions indicated that there are concerns about some 
of the provisions in . the Uniform Debt-Management 
Services Act. The testimony indicated that one of the 
concerns is whether to require licensure of both for-profit 
and nonprofit companies. According to the testimony, if 
the state is going to regulate the industry, both types of 
companies should be regulated. The testimony 
indicated that the department would prefer licensing over 
registering as a method of regulating debt-management 
companies because when a license is issued the license 
can be revoked for violations. It was estimated that 
there may be 100 to 200 companies that potentially 
could be licensed under the uniform Act. It was 
suggested that any legislation should address the 
collection of fees and the department's ability to issue 
enforcement actions that are consistent with other 
entities that the department licenses. It was noted that 
significant resources for licensing, bonding, and 
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onitoring will be needed to regulate the 
ebt-management services industry. It was estimated 
at two to three FTE positions would be necessary to 

handle the regulation of the debt-management services 
companies that would be licensed in the state. The 
testimony indicated that the goal is to have a law that 
provides for accountability but that allows legitimate 
companies to do business. 

During the course of the committee's study, the 
committee considered a bill· draft relating to the 
regulation of debt-settlement providers. According to 
testimony, the bill draft incorporated some of the 
provisions of the uniform Act but also included provisions 
modeled after current North Dakota consumer protection 
laws, as well as provisions contained in Illinois 
debt-settlement provider legislation. Testimony in 
explanation of the bill draft indicated the changes were 
made to the uniform Act to make the legislation more 
workable for North Dakota consumers. It was noted that 

3 

the uniform Act only requires registration of the debt­
management companies; however, the bill draft would 
require licensure. Another distinction noted between the 
uniform Act and the bill draft was that the uniform Act 
allows for the regulation of either for-profit or nonprofit 
companies, or both; however, the bill draft would require 
the regulation of both types of companies. The 
testimony noted that the regulations in the bill draft do 
not apply to professions such as lawyers and 
accountants because those professions are already 
regulated and licensed by their respective licensing 
bodies. The bill draft retained private rights of action 
which would allow a person to sue a company in civil 
court. Under the bill draft, the Department of Financial 
Institutions would be responsible for the regulation of the 
debt-settlement companies, and the Attorney General 
would be given enforcement authority. 

The testimony indicated that the bill draft is consistent 
with other state laws. It was noted that many of the 
provisions of the Uniform Debt-Management Services 
Act are included in the bill draft but are located in 
different sections. The committee reviewed several 
documents that detailed the distinctions between the 
Uniform Debt-Management Services Act and the bill 
draft. 

Other testimony regarding the bill draft indicated that 
even if a federal law is enacted on debt-management 
services, a state law is helpful because a state is usually 
able to ·react much more quickly than the federal 
government. 

One committee member expressed concern about 
the bill draft and its deviations from the Uniform 
Debt-Management Services Act. It was noted that the 
area of debt management is very complicated, and the 
state's laws will not be uniform if the bill draft is adopted. 
It was noted that while the intent of uniform laws is to 
attain uniformity across the country, a state does not 
have to adopt uniform Acts, and a state can change a 
uniform Act to suit the state's needs. Concern was 
expressed about the effect this bill draft would have on a 
company . located in another state if the other state 
adopted the uniform Act and North Dakota did not. 

Recommendation 
The committee recommends House Bill No. 1038 to 

provide for the regulation of debt-settlement providers. 
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TESTIMONY FOR ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. I 038 

Senate Industry Business and Labor Committee 

Testimony of Robert J. Entringer, Commissioner, Department of Financial 
Institutions relating to the revised fiscal note for House Bill No. I 038 

Chairman Klein and members of the Committee, I am Bob Entringer, 

Commissioner for the Department of Financial Institutions. I am here today 

to testify in regard to the revised Fiscal Note provided by the Department of 

Financial Institutions for HB I 038 related to the regulation of debt-

settlement providers. 

FISCAL NOTE 

Mr. Chairman, as you are aware the Fiscal Note submitted by 

the Department of Financial Institutions projects Revenue of $85,950 in the 

2011-2013 biennium. The projected revenue is based on an estimate of 35 

applications for licensure at an annual licensing fee of $400 and a one-time 

investigation fee of $400 per licensee. In addition we are anticipating 

conducting an examination of at least 6 licensees in the first biennium; 

included in the revenue are examination fees which recoup the cost of . 

examiner's salary and benefits as well as expenses associated with the 

examination such as transportation, lodging, meals. 
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The expenditures for the biennium are estimated to be 

$173,907. Primarily, the expenditures are $85,650 to update our Financial 

Institutions Records Management system which is our database upon which 

we record pertinent information regarding all of our regulated entities. This 

estimate is based upon: I) the current costs from ITD for the upcoming 

biennium, and 2) we estimated the number of programming hours based on a 

similar update from a prior legislative session when our Department added a 

new license type. In addition we are projecting On-Line Application 

programming costs of $30,000; this is to upgrade our website to allow this 

new license type to apply for and renew license applications electronically. 

We based our estimate on the current ITD programming charges using an 

estimate of 300 hours to develop the programming. Mr. Chairman, we did 

not have time to request a formal estimate from ITD for the programming so 

we based our estimate on previous experience. 

Additional operating costs include travel of $24,750, which will 

be recouped through examination fees; printing of $2,200, which includes 

forms for paper applications; IT Data Processing of$17,160, which is the 

ongoing IT cost for our database; professional development of $3,200, 

which is for training to examine and regulate these entities and includes 

some travel costs; professional services of $7,700, which is an estimate of 

2 
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legal expenses to the Attorney General's office and agam 1s based on 

previous experience with adding a new license type; and operating fees and 

services which is primarily 0MB costs. 

The revenue for the 2013-2015 biennium 1s based on a 

projected increase in licenses of 20 and an estimate of 14 examinations 

conducted in the biennium. The major increase in expenditures is in travel 

which is related to the increase in the number of examinations conducted 

and, again these costs are recouped in examination fees. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee thank you for your time 

and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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SENATE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS & LABOR COMMITTEE 
SENATOR JERRY KLEIN, CHAIRMAN 

MARCH 8, 2011 

TESTIMONY BY 
PARRELLD.GROSSMAN 

DIRECTOR, CONSUMER PROTECTION AND ANTITRUST DIVISION 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Senate Industry, Business & Labor Committee. I am 
Parrell Grossman, Director of the Attorney General's Consumer Protection and Antitrust 
Division. I appear on behalf of Attorney General Wayne Stenehjem in support of Engrossed 
House Bill 1038. 

This legislation providing for the regulation of debt settlement services is legislation 
introduced by the Judiciary Interim Committee after a study of debt settlement practices and 
the Uniform Debt Services Management Act. The Attorney General recognizes the 
importance and benefit of uniform laws. However, the conduct and problems of fraudulent 
debt settlement service providers has rapidly outpaced the well-intentioned model legislation 
proposed by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform Laws in 2008. The 
Attorney General could not recommend to the Judiciary Committee or this Legislature the 
adoption of the model act without significant changes. In my 17 years with the Attorney 
General's Office I cannot recall any model uniform law that raised more discussion amongst 
my colleagues, the directors of Attorneys General Consumer Protection Divisions throughout 
the nation, due to concerns that the debt settlement model legislation simply did not meet the 
needs of actual fraud or industry abuse. Only a small number of states (less than 5) have 
adopted the Uniform Debt Services Management Act. 

Due to the rampant debt settlement fraud, this matter has been a topic of frequent discussion 
for Attorney General Stenehjem and other attorneys general throughout the country. He is 
particularly concerned about the consumer fraud in this industry. In 2010 Attorney General 
Stenehjem ramped up consumer protection enforcement in this area. In addition he has 
been working closely with the Department of Financial Institutions in a plan to more 
effectively protect North Dakota consumers. We jointly drafted new legislation for the Interim 
Committee's consideration and now consideration by this legislature. New legislation will be 
the most important component in enforcement efforts. For this reason the Attorney General 
is supporting enhanced legislation which incorporates many of the model law provisions. 

Before detailing some of the financial concerns with debt settlement companies the Attorney 
General wants to inform you that some debt reduction and debt settlement companies are 
among the worst offenders of North Dakota's do not call laws. They often utilize pre-recorded 
messages without providing caller identification or use fictitious "telephone numbers" for 
which it is difficult to determine the source of the calls, often originating from outside the 
country. The calls are not necessarily made directly by the debt adjusting entities, but are 
made by entities seeking clients on their behalf . 



• 

• 

• 

I want to briefly inform you of the North Dakota complaints and enforcement. During 2010 
and March 7, 2011 the Attorney General's Consumer Protection Division (CPAT) received 
approximately 38 complaints against companies that sold services categorized as "Debt 
Adjusting." These services included debt reduction, interest rate reduction services, debt 
negotiation and debt settlement services. The consumers reported to CPAT a total of 
$71,351 lost to these companies and were seeking restitution. As a result of complaint 
mediation, investigation and litigation, the Attorney General recovered a total of $51,394 in 
consumer restitution. The Attorney General has initiated 10 investigations. To date 3 of the 
matters have been resolved through legal action resulting in total civil penalties of $5,000 and 
consumer restitution of $40,534. Debt Settlement companies currently are a serious problem 
for North Dakota consumers and a significant enforcement issue for the Attorney General. 

The Attorney General is currently enforcing debt settlement violations under ch. 13-06 "Debt 
Adjusting" which prohibits debt adjusting by for profit entities. That chapter provides criminal 
sanctions and lacks specific mention of any civil authority by the Attorney General. When 
conduct is illegal the Attorney General's authority is inherent, so we have used the statute, 
nonetheless, in conjunction with the Attorney General's authority in the consumer fraud law in 
chapter 51-15. State's attorneys prosecute crime and 13-06 should be enforced by state's 
attorneys. They, however, are faced with more serious crimes and aren't able to make 
prosecutions in debt settlement complaints a priority. Chapter 13-06 would require a 
complete overhaul and Engrossed HB 1038 more directly and effectively addresses the debt 
settlement issues through both a regulatory and enforcement scheme . 

I have attached, for sample purposes, four consumer complaints that are not of particular or 
unique importance and demonstrate the nature of complaints by North Dakota consumers. 
One consumer paid almost $2,900 to the debt settlement company. Between May and June 
2010 that sum was withdrawn from her bank account. About $2,600 was paid to the debt 
settlement company and $240 was retained for future negotiating. The consumer's first three 
months of payments went directly to the debt settlement company. That entity told her to quit 
paying her credit card bills. Shortly after, she started receiving constant daily collection calls. 
She alleges the entity did nothing to assist her. In June she was sued by the credit card 
company on a $24,000 obligation. Ultimately she retained an attorney and that particular 
debt was settled for $12,000. Another consumer maintains she paid a debt settlement 
company $7,100 between May and November 2010 when she filed the complaint. The 
consumer complained the entity intended to keep about half of the $7,100 and had done 
nothing for the money. The third consumer paid $2,500, believed the debt settlement 
company did nothing to resolve her debt and was very dissatisfied. The fourth consumer 
paid hundreds of dollars, settled his debt himself, and was very upset with the company and 
their treatment of him. 

We have been advised by an individual very involved with North Dakota bankruptcy filings 
that many bankruptcy debtors have unsuccessfully used the services of debt settlement 
companies, and after paying thousands of dollars for bad advice to stop paying their debts, 
ultimately turn to bankruptcy to try and solve financial problems that have substantially 
worsened during the debt settlement relationships . 
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A coordinated, structured two-pronged licensing and enforcement statutory scheme appears 
to be the best approach to regulate the industry and ensure consumers receive the services 
they were promised for reasonable fees. Fees under chapter 13-07, the consumer credit 
counseling statutes, have been regulated for years. In our experience in enforcing chapter 
13-07 it is not the nonprofit entities that will take advantage of consumers in financial trouble. 
The victims of debt settlement fraud are well intentioned consumers who want to avoid 
bankruptcies and are vulnerable to sales pitches that falsely promise results. 

The fees for debt settlement often are heavily front end loaded. Many of the entities never 
deliver results. Consumers become very frustrated when they are sued after they are 
advised to stop paying their obligations and it is conveniently the consumer's fault for failing 
to follow through with a plan that isn't working. The debt settlement entity keeps the 
consumers' advance payments. Only the debt settlement entities are satisfied with that 
arrangement. 

The Attorney General encourages you to review, if time permits, the attached GAO report, 
"Debt Settlement. Fraudulent, Abusive, and Deceptive Practices Pose Risk to Consumers." 
The case studies and undercover calls are very informative of the industry abuses. I won't 
separately detail the findings but those findings are very enlightening. The Association of 
Settlement Companies ("TASC"), a national association of settlement companies, will be 
submitting its comments to the committee today, through the appearance of Mr. Wesley 
Young. Commissioner Entringer and I have had some pleasant and productive discussions 
with Mr. Young on the proposed legislation. In fact, we agreed to some amendments in the 
House and we have now agreed to some proposed amendments that I will be submitting to 
this committee today. I believe we have reached an agreement, through joint compromise, 
on all aspects of this legislation, except the fees that may be charged by debt settlement 
companies. 

The legislation originally proposed the debt settlement fees would not exceed 15% of the 
savings. Different states allow different fees. Some states allow fees based upon a 
percentage of the enrolled debt. Some states allow a choice between a percentage on the 
enrolled debt or the savings. Illinois allows 15% of the savings. Minnesota law allows debt 
settlement companies to charge 30% of the savings. The House raised the fees to 30% of 
the savings. The Interim Committee's original legislation contained considerable thought or 
discussion about the appropriate fee structure in proposing the 15% of savings. Attorney 
General Stenehjem's preference for changes by the House was 20% of the savings and 
respectfully asks this committee to hold the line on any further fee increases. The Attorney 
General does not want North Dakota to have the distinction of leading the nation in terms of 
the highest allowable fees for debt settlement companies. If a debt settlement entity saves a 
consumer $5,000 on a $20,000 credit card debt, the 30% fee of $1,500 is probably 
commensurate with the results. If the entity saves the consumer $10,000, the fee of $3,000 
is plenty considering the consumer will have paid a total of $13,000. Debt settlement 
companies will advocate higher fees and compare their fees to the fees nonprofit entities 
charge for consumer credit counseling fees. For many reasons it is an "apples to oranges" 
comparison. One significant reason is the legitimacy, reputation and credibility of consumer 
credit counseling services versus debt settlement entities. The Attorney General doesn't 
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receive complaints against nonprofit consumer credit counseling agencies and isn't 
investigating or suing those entities as the result of fraud or unsatisfied consumers. 

I'm certain there are legitimate debt settlement companies. TASC will present that 
perspective and explain that it sets standards for its members. When considering T ASC's 
comments the Attorney General directs you to the GAO report which notes that TASC's 
written standards for member companies, requiring strict adherence for members, explicitly 
state "No Members shall direct a potential or current client to stop making monthly payments 
to their creditors." Yet, the undercover investigation revealed a number of TASC members 
advised the undercover callers to stop making their monthly payments. We believe you 
should consider this information in deciding the effectiveness of TASC's written standards for 
its members. The significance is that despite TASC's good intentions, it caitcontrol all of its 
members and has not control over unscrupulous debt settlement entities that are not TASC 
members. The Attorney General is not suggesting that TASC and its members are not 
interesting in addressing debt settlement and industry abuses. TASC appears interested in 
promoting reasonable regulation and legitimate debt settlement entities and the Attorney 
General appreciates that cooperation. 

There is an important balance in regulating relationships between consumers and 
businesses, and the Attorney General does not interfere with those relationships, absent 
compelling circumstances revealing fraud and abuse. Unfortunately, the debt settlemenUdebt 
reduction industry, however, is plagued with fraud and abuse and the regulatory balance here 
is grossly imbalanced to the serious detriment or disadvantage of North Dakota consumers. 
This legislation will restore that balance and allow legitimate debt settlement entities to 
conduct business in North Dakota and while protecting consumers from fraudulent and 
abusive conduct. We believe that with this new legislation the Department of Financial 
Institutions and the Attorney General will be able to effectively regulate this industry. 

The Attorney General has some proposed amendments for the committee's consideration 
and I will attempt to explain those amendments. In addition, I will try to answer any 
questions. 

The Attorney General respectfully requests the Senate Industry, Business and Labor 
Committee give Engrossed House Bill 1308 a "do pass" recommendation. 

Thank you . 
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Proposed Senate Amendments to Engrossed HB1038 
Senate Industry, Business & Labor Committee 

March 8, 2011 

, Page 7, line 23, insert a colon after "directors" and remove "have not been" 

Page 7, remove lines 24 through 26 and replace with: 

(1) Have not been convicted of a felony; 
(2) Have not been convicted of a misdemeanor involving dishonesty or 
untrustworthiness; and 
(3) Have not been the subject of an adverse finding or adjudication in a license 
disciplinary or other administrative proceeding concerning allegations involving 
dishonesty or untrustworthiness. 

Page 8, line 3, after "commissioner" insert "unless the commissioner determines the violation 
is not material" 

Page 16, line 25, replace "void" with "voidable" 

Page 25, line 4 replace "Voidable" with "Void" 

Page 25, line 6 replace "individual may void the contract" with "contract is void" 

Page 25, line 7, after "and" insert "the individual may" 

Page 25, line 9, replace "voidable by the individual" with "void" 

Page 25, line 10, replace "If an individual voids a contract" with "For a void contract" 

Renumber accordingly . 



CONSUMER COMPLAINT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL - CONSUMER PROTECTION DN SI 
SFN 7418 (Rsv.11:2009) . . • ·• 

rn <4. '{\ . e., "L 
.-----1, 

City Zip Code 

-5~1 
Work Telephone Number 

L----,--------'-F ...... 

Aga• 

lol 
Sex• 

"F 
'Optional· (For StallBUcal & 

Whan filling out this form, please keep In mind that Enforcemant Purposos Only.) 
a copy of this complaint forin•may be forwarded to the party or flnn complained agalnsL 

. PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM IN PENCIL\ 
Data of Tranaadlon Product or Service lmolvecl 

r,\ • I,➔ . ~ ·'l-4-lc:> r, ......... nAu.-1\ 

Amount of money yoo have •~•edy peld: $ g.,'8'&4, 17 1· -~(,,~_,..,6jil'l ( 
Amount al money pe111011 or firm says you still owe: l . .-...- -·. 1 t'\Ji, .. 

How would you Ilka to hav{our complaint resolvatl7 . . 

.}\.L~ ol ~ _;;), '2, 1( ~/2.~~0 .J:~ .J-Q-\O...l N..cQ 
~~ __li.\u., ~ ~. ~. 

-~ -~ . ~-~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 0-\.. ~ • ..Cl !l~~ru-..d) ~ 'i:, ~ 
FIRST CONTACT BETWEEN YOU AND PERSON OR FIRM WHERE 01D THE TRANSACTION TAKE PLACE? .. 

(CHECK THE MOST APPROPRJATEANSWER) . (CHECX THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

• I contacted or went to the llnn's regular piece of 

□ Al the firm's place of business. 
....... 

· business: 
D The firm contacted me In person at my home or 

□ At my home. place of work. 
D I contacted or went to Iha firm's temporary place □ Away from the firm's place of business (for example, 

of business. at your place of employment, etc.). 

D I received a telephone call from the firm. -g Over the telephone. 

D I responded to a radlonv ad. By mall. . 

D I resp~nded to a written advertisement. · □ There was no transaction. 

(21:,J received Information In the mall from _the firm. 0 On the Internet. 

0 Yellow pages of telephone book. '-

D On the Internet. 

Did you sign a contract or written agreement? □ NO !><rYES - If ''YES" attach a copy 
........... -~ ...... .. "". . ............... ·• ...... ...... 

□ ···No· · _®es .:. If 'Yl:S" atfocli a copy · Did you receive a contract or a receipt? 

Name of person(s) with whom you dealt, If anv. . '4i 
· ~ OOJwno... ~I\ ceote) ~s-..Gl31 

N wh Ir\ eRN °1 'Kta (p - '5 ;;i €: ~ 9 It., q 

Have you contacted a private attorney or another agency? □ NO J8::vES •• If ''YES", ldenUfv below. .. 

~& B(il)\__, ~ ... 

. _ .,urt action pending or completed? □ NO ~YES - If ''YES", what was the result? 

I _·. 
CONTINUE WITH EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIDE OF FORM 

:l02971 



CONSUME!:! COM_PLAINT-CONTINUEDSFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) · 

EXPu.NAllON OFlRANSACTION 
Explain the facts and clrcumstance.s of the fraud, decepUon or mlsrepresantaUon fully and speclfli:ally. 

If you need more room, use addlUonal sheets of paper and attach to Complaint. 

against the part named. I understand the Con1,1smer Protection and AnUtrust Division Is not permitted to engage In the private 
practice of law, and therefore Is not my lawyer or legal representative. I am, however, flRng this complaint to noUfy the 
Consumer Protection and AnUtrust Division of the actlvlUes of the person/firm about which I have a complalnt. 
Com lalnt forms not sl ned wlll be returned 
Dale Slgnalure 

ATTACHTHE FOLLOWING TO THE COMPLAINT 
1 - Copy of any contract or written agreement. 

. 2 - Copy of any receipt. 
3 - Copy of any cancelled check or other proof of 

payment 
4 - Copy of any written advertisement. 
5 - Copy of any correspondence. 
6 - Co of an other related documents. 

. r:.DTO: 
.,SUMER PROTECTION DMSION 

Office of Attorney General · 
Gatew~y Professional Center 
1060 E lnteralete Ave Suite 200 
Bismarck ND 68603-657 4 

Thank you for laking the Ume lo complete 
this Consumer Complaint fonn. The 
lnfonnat/on you have provided will help·us 
n OIJr efforts to i:esofve your consumer 

Offjsi%f.liiM!>mey General 
RECEIVED 

<:: r .., ., l.' 'J010 ', ,r..1 1 £. • 

Consumer Protection 
Bismarck North Dakota · · · · ·-------i,,,a,yne Stenehjem · · 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 
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CONSUMER COMPLAINT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL· CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 
SFN 7.418 (Rev.11-2009) 

'Opllonal - (For Statistical & 
When fllllng out this form, please keep In mind that Enforcement Purpose& Only,) 

a copy of this complaint forin•may be forwarded lo ttie party or firm complained agalnsl 
PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM IN PENCIL 

Amount of money you have already paid: $ 7 11 9 , 5~ Amcunl of money person or firm says you sUII owe: $ 

How would you like to ~ave your complaint resolved? . . '-1 I 
C::C 0-.tY\ qt:t-hn~ ~ttC!t.,.1l37i1p_q8 , TuL1 sa~ T OLvef 343'3, /r, rn 
ftt~. L- 1/'vO-.:i 'SV--f-'\?<)'~-tcl -\o OJ-'>r: 1.,LfXU,t,,,--\es fV)oh#-1<-:) lA.,ra. mv·t'. hlrl­

~r\ ()._ %1 Vl'J :-T~ 1 k Mis \ctl. ~ 1-,t; Lno....@) c~f\l. pell)%· 
FIRST CONTACT BETWEEN YOU AND PERSON OR FIRM 

(CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

I conlacled or went.to the firm's regular place of 
business. 

D The firm contacted me In person at my home or 
place of work. 

D I contacted or went to the firm's temporary place 
of business. 

D I received a telephone call from the firm. 

D I responded to a radlonv ad. ,.. . 

,. ·:,! I responded to a written aclvertlsemenl . . 

(5u I received Information In the mall from the fir,;,. 

□ Yellow-pages of telephone book. . 

D On the Internet 

Did you sign a conlrei:t or written agreement? 

Did you receive a contract or a receipt? 

□ 
□ 
□ 
~ 
rn 
□ 
□ 

WHERE DID THE TRANSACTION TAKE PLACE7 
. (CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

At the firm's place of business. 

At my home. 

Away from the firm's place of business (for example, 
at your place of employment, etc.). 

Over the lelephone. 

By mall. 

There was no transacllon. 

On the Internet. 

NO · l2SJ YES - If "YES" attach a copy 

NO □ YES - If "YES" attach a copy 

Name of person(s) with whom you dealt, ((any •. 

.. Mt!Alf\ ·,~fnr::-J,._,_I m.:...,_. ·=e_·~=··· i:-":....· •·--~~~-=\:U-Ul.i.f-=L!Ll.~~o---~-~~--·--·-
Have you contacted a private attorney or another agency? 

.urt action pending or comp!eted? 
NO O YES - If ''YES", what was the resull? 

CONTINUE WITH EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIDE OF FORM 



CONSUMER COMPLAINT· CONTINUED SFN 7 418 (Rev. 11 -2009) . 

. EXPLANATION OF TRANSACTION 
Explain the facts end circumstances of the fraud, deception or misrepresentation fully and specifically. 

If you need more room, use addlUonal sheets of paper and attach to Complalnt. 

men s con accura e to 
against the part named. I understand the Con.usmer Protection and Antitrust Division Is not permitted to engage In the private 
practice of law, and therefore Is not my lawyer or legal representative. I am, however, filing this complaint to noUfy the 
Consumer ProtecUon and AnUtrust Division of the activities of the person/firm about which I have a complaint. 

nod v,ill be re urned 
Signature 

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING TO THE COMPLAINT Thank you for taking Iha time lo complete 
1 _ Copy of any contract or written agreement. this. Consumer Complaint form. The 

. ~-:·~~;1~~:~t~;~;:1~d c~ec __ o~~~ganer I .... :'1 ;:~:~u,:a;::,:vl~irw!~!~m~~ 
4 - Copy of any written advertis ent. V l 

9 2010 5 - Copy of any corresponden NO 
~ - Copy of an other related do urneru;;;..---, -· ··· 

-

0 TO: consumer Protectio l 

SUMER PROTECTION DMSION 
Office of Attorney General 
Gateway Professional Center 
1060 E Interstate Ave Suite 200 
Bismarck ND 68603-6674 

Bismarck North Dako_!"I--~ 

Wayne Stenehjem 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 



CONSUMER COMPLAINT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL - CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 
SFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) 

•optional • (For SlaUsUcal & 

· When filling out this form, please keep In mind that Enforcement Purposes Only.) 
a coj>y of this complaint form may be forwarded to the party or firm complained against. 

PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM IN PENCIL) 
Dale of Transaction. Prd ;1erv1ce Involved 
s-k,..r+S°Ulhe2010 f <Jon so Ii' dtd-ton 
Amount of money you have already paid: $ . :)'-/-b 1. &:, CJ Amount of moneY person or firm says you sUII owe: $ 

How would you like to have your complaint resolved? 

f).e<!.Ove~ tnofl e !J -Ma.)- l..'A.s · ~er> 4-o,,., rn.::J Acd.-

FIRST CONTACT BETWEEN YOU AND PERSON OR FIRM WHERE DID THE TRANSACTION TAKE PLACE? 
/CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) /CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

I contacted or went to the firm's regular place of 

□ At the firm's place of business. business. 
O The firm contacted me In person at my home or 

place of work. . . □ At my home. 

D I contacted or went to the firm's temporary place □ Away from the firm's place of business (for example, 
of business. . · at your place of employment. etc.). 

D I received a telephone call from the firm. □ Over the telephone. 

D I responded to a radio/TV ad. ~ By mall. 

D I responded to a written advertisement. □ There was no transaction. 

~ I received information In the mall from the firm. □ On Iha Internet. 

0 . Yellow pages of telephone book. 

D On the Internet. 

Did you sign a contract or written agreement? □ NO ~ YES -- If "'YES" attach a copy 
' 

Did you receive a contract or a receipt? □ NO □ YES - If "YES" attach a copy 

Name of person(s) with whom you dealt, If any. 

{h;l!.e. Ll//en - ,Toi<nn'"' rna.,,-f-in " , 

0 
', ' 

Have you contacted a private attorney or another agency? NO □ YES·- lf"YES", identify below. 

' court action pending or completed? jg] NO 0 YES - If "YES", what was the result? 

CONTINUE WITH EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIDE OF FORM 11UO?O 

' 



CONSUMER COMPLAINT- CONTINUED SFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) 

.. EXPI.ANATIONOFTRANSACTION 
Expiain the facts and circumstances of the fraud, deception or misrepresentation fully and specifically. 

If you need more room, use additional sheets of paper and attach to Complaint. 

I received the information in the mail and thought it would be a good idea to consolidate 
my unsecured debt and just have one payment. I called them and talked to Johnny Martin 
and got everything set up. After the set up it was Mike Allen that I was talking to. 

I then took off some of my accounts and just left 3 credit cards for them to pay thus 
making the payment go from $654.27 to the $501.88. There has been 3 payments of the 
$654.27 taken out and one of the $501.88 for a total of$2464.69. 

They have paid NOTHING on any of the credit cards that I included in the consolidation. 

Being nothing has been paid to the companies, I feel I should be refunded the total 
amount of what I paid in. 

By them not paying, one of the credit card companies have put a judgment on me. I am 
working with all three credit card companies and have a work out with them. But this has 
affected my credit terribly. It should have never gotten that far if they would have made 

. the payments when I was paying them. 

The statement contained in this complaint are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I wish to file a complaint against the 
party named. I understand the Consumer Protection and Ant~rust Division is not permitted to engage in the private practice of law, 
and therefore is not my lawyer or legal representative. I am, however, filing this complaint to notify the Consumer Protection Division 
of activities of the person/firm about which I have a complaint. (Complaint forms not signed will be returned) 

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING TO THE CO Thank you for taking the time to complete 
'1 - Copy of any contract or written agreement. --1his.. Consumer Complaint form. The 
2 - Copy of any receipt. · -Office of Attorney Gen ralnfortbation you have provided will help us 

..G - Copy of any cancelled check r other pr~Qt:IVED in oJ, efforts to resolve your consumer 
payment. ] prob/ m. 

4 - Copy of any written advertise ent. JA_ · r~_ o 6 2 0_ 1_ 1 · · 
/2 - Copy of any correspondence. 

6 - Co of an other related do nsumer Protect on 
END TO: Bismar~_~orth~ ~--
ONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 

Office of Attorney General 
Gateway Professional Center 
1050 E Interstate Ave Suite 200 
Bismarck ND 58503-5574 

Wayne Stenehjem 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 
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CONSUMER COMF ,INT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL - CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 
SFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) 

•opllonel - (For Stallallcal & 
When fllllng out this form, please keep In mind that Enforcement Purposes Only.) 

a copy of this complaint forin·may be forwarded lo the party or Hrm complained agalnsl 
PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM IN PENCIL\ 

Dal!" of Transaction Product or Service Involved 

Amount of money you have a~eady paid: $ · I Amount of money person or flrm says you stlll owe: $ 

How would you like to have your complaint resolved? 

FIRST CONTACT BElWEEN VOU AND PERSON OR ARM WHERE DID THE TRANSACTION TAKE PLACE? 
(CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) (CHECK THE MOST APPROPRIATE ANSWER) 

~ I contacted or went.lo Iha firm's regular place of 

□ 
...... 

business. Al Iha firm's place of business. 
The Hrm contacled me In person at my home or 

□ Almy home. place of work. 
D I conlacled or wenl lo lhe ftrm's lemporary place □ Away from the firm's place of business (for example, 

of business. . al your place of employment, etc.). 

D I received a lelephone call from the firm. [X) Over the telephone. 

rlJ I responded to a radloffV ad. □ By mall. 

D I resp~nded lo a wrillen advertisement. □ There was no transaction. 

□ I received lnformallon In Iha man from the firm. IYI On Iha Internet. 

□ 
-

Yellow pages of lelephone book. 

D On the Internet. 

Did you sign a conlracl or written agreement? □ NO Ix) YES - If "YES" attach a copy 

Did you receive a contract or a receipt? rn NO □ YES - If "YES" attach a copy 

Name of person(s) with whom you dealt, If any . 

. 

Have you contacted a private attorney or another agency? . 111 NO □ YES - If ''YES", Identify below . - .. 

-

-court action pending or comp!eled? tll NO □ YES - If "YES", what was lhe resull? 

CONTINUE WITH EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIDE OF FORM 



CONSUMER COMPLAINT· CONTINUEO SFN 7418 (Rev.11-2009) 

EXPLANATION OF TRANSACTION 
Explain the facts and circumstances of the fraud, deception or misrepresentation fully and specifically. 

If you need more room, use addltlonal sheets of paper and attach to Complaint. 

+r·,.,d -lo _::1ote... o."d" ..S.q.'d Omc,,j 

.,.:, -t\---c.+ X J,c& C d~" ' . S, 

G/oGa.l c lie,+ 

against the part named. I understand lhll Conusmer Protection and Antitrust Division Is not permitted to engage In the prtvate 
practice of law, and thererore Is not my lawyer or legal representative. I am, however, fifing this complaint to notify the 
Consumer ProtecUon and Antitrust Division or the activities of the person/firm about which I have a complaint. 
Com lalnt fonms not sl ned wll be retu 

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING TO THE COMPLAINT Thank you for taking the time to complete 
1 c f t t itt int:- -c..,---f---llR/S Consumer Complaint form. The 

. 2 ~ c~~~ ~f :~~ ~~~~f. or wr e Office 7AttOmeY Genera i ormation you have provided will help us 
3 - Copy of any cancelled chec or other Gf:d}(ED . In our efforts to resolve your consumer 

payment. p blem. 
4 - Copy of any written advertls 
5 - Copy of any correspondenc 

- Co of an other related d I\SumerProtectlo 
__ """N..;.D..;.T'""o'-:;;.;...;..;.;.,.......;;.;.._.;....;.;...;._-+-~~Bvlsmarck North Dakota 

CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 
Ofnce of Attorney General 
Gateway Profeselonal Center 
1060 E lntarstate Ave Sulla 200 
Bismarck ND 68603-6674 

Wayne Stenehjem 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 
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Global Client Solutions LLC 

~ 4500 S. 129th East Ave, Ste 177 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74134 

Global Client Solutions LLC 
Account#:6036335099593446 

• RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED 

February 03, 2011 

Bonell O'Brien 
410 4th Ave NW 

Belfield, ND 58622 

DATE DESCRIPTION TYPE AMOUNT 

12/01/2010 Account Maintenance Fee - 11/10 Transaction Fee -9.85 
12/17/2010 monthy draft - 12/15/10 Deposit 370.00 
01/03/2011 Account Maintenance Fee - 12/10 Transaction Fee -9.85 

Withdrawal Withdrawal -212.05 ~4/2011 
4/2011 25% 11603-2900. 75 -pro fee of 800 -600.75 Customer Fee -1,500.00 

discount - 01/14/11 

Account Inquiries (800) 398-7191 

Corresp:1ndence Address- Paymont Addiess-
4500 S. 129th East Ave, Ste 177 PO Box 690870 

A · Tulsa, Oklahoma 74134 Tulsa, OK 74169-0870 

.. ase note our new correspondence address. If you have any questions or need assistance you may contact us at the 
phone number referenced above or by email, customersupporf:@globalclientsolutions.com. Please note that the balances in 
your account are held in an FDIC.insured Custodial accour,t at an FDIC.insured bank. The balance shown may not be the 
actual balance of your account due to pending transactions not yet processed. 

Please see the reverse side for Error Resolution Procedures 

BALANCE 

1,351.90 
1,721.90 
1,712.05 
1,500.00 

0.00 



03-08-2011 

TESTIMONY FOR ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1038 

Senate Industry Business and Labor Committee 

Testimony of Robert J. Entringer, Commissioner, Department of Financial 
Institutions relating to the revised fiscal note for House Bill No. I 038 

Chairman Klein and members of the Committee, I am Bob Entringer, 

Commissioner for the Department of Financial Institutions. I am here today 

to testify in regard to the revised Fiscal Note provided by the Department of 

Financial Institutions for HB I 038 related to the regulation of debt­

settlement providers. 

FISCAL NOTE 

Mr. Chairman, as you are aware the Fiscal Note submitted by 

the Department of Financial Institutions projects Revenue of $85,950 in the 

2011-2013 biennium. The projected revenue is based on an estimate of35 

applications for licensure at an annual licensing fee of $400 and a one-time 

investigation fee of $400 per licensee. In addition we are anticipating 

conducting an examination of at least 6 licensees in the first biennium; 

included in the revenue are examination fees which recoup the cost of 

examiner's salary and benefits as well as expenses associated with the 

examination such as transportation, lodging, meals. 

l 



I The expenditures for the biennium are estimated to be 

$173,907. Primarily, the expenditures are $85,650 to update our Financial 

Institutions Records Management system which is our database upon which 

we record pertinent information regarding all of our regulated entities. This 

estimate is based upon: I) the current costs from ITD for the upcoming 

biennium, and 2) we estimated the number of programming hours based on a 

similar update from a prior legislative session when our Department added a 

new license type. In addition we are projecting On-Line Application 

programming costs of $30,000; this is to upgrade our website to allow this 

new license type to apply for and renew license applications electronically. 

We based our estimate on the current ITD programming charges using an 

estimate of 300 hours to develop the programming. Mr. Chairman, we did 

not have time to request a formal estimate from ITD for the programming so 

we based our estimate on previous experience. 

Additional operating costs include travel of $24,750, which will 

be recouped through examination fees; printing of $2,200, which includes 

forms for paper applications; IT Data Processing of $17,160, which is the 

ongoing IT cost for our database; professional development of $3,200, 

which is for training to examine and regulate these entities and includes 

some travel costs; professional services of $7,700, which is an estimate of 

2 
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legal expenses to the Attorney General's office and agam 1s based on 

previous experience with adding a new license type; and operating fees and 

services which is primarily 0MB costs. 

The revenue for the 2013-2015 biennium is based on a 

projected increase in licenses of 20 and an estimate of 14 examinations 

conducted in the biennium. The major increase in expenditures is in travel 

which is related to the increase in the number of examinations conducted 

and, again these costs are recouped in examination fees. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee thank you for your time 

and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have . 
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